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Dear AMCORE Shareholders

As you know 2008 was an unpreceden ed
year many respects for he nator the ndust ano AMCORE

We are one ofthe worst economic recessions decados uremp oyment rates ave ht 25 year Pg
and the credit crisis has continu to inte isfy We are disaooonte wth our 2008 results especa for

company that has set high bar of deliverng solid results fo nearly 100 years respor to ths

environment we have aken agaressve steps throughout the year

Preserving Capital Strength Dye the current ecomo nic chal enges retention of capita the ke

imperative During the fourth quarter we suspended tse quarterly divdend and merged the non

depository trust charte into the banks charter to strengt ie capital resoumes As of December 2008

AMCORE had near $411 mIlion regulatory bans capTal whcL speaks to the wherewthal ou

resources We nave pu sued and contnue to oursu ctively and exte isve all capPa rasing acts es

available todays marketo ace

Building Reserves Against Losses Economic condihons 05cr ast sm iase bee pa Luar
\j

sallenging for commerca real estate loans to builders and developers Throughout year

increased provisions as oans became stressed and economy detWorate AMCORE has ore no

highest reserve levels as percent of loans the ndustry Loan loss reserves and cao4a prove he

protection against whch losses may be harged nd two combinod aporox SaOO ii on as

December 31 2008

Expense Management In 2008 we reduced core opera ng expenses by four percent TLe riost

signficant cost savings compared to year ago nd ide $6 ml reducho 11 percert worl

in personnel costs in addition to decreases advertsng bus ness deve opment IT processro

expenses We continue to close manage costs and revew the peora ice ota our ooa ons

Improvements to the Credit Process As new salle iges er serged during he year we mp me ted

ratng system that strengthened the risk dentifcation pract ces of our commerca oar por Fo ad
enhan md the credit admnistration and underwrti 1g functions with ado4iora exoartse and resour cs
independent th4dparty review of our commercia credt portfo was como ed rno third outer
and the regulators updated ther credt exam the fourth on ter with rea rirmed the rooress se

making to improve our credit processes

Commitment to Customers To gse customers and loca isireses addtiona peace mird we

participating in the FDICs Transactior Account Guarantee Prog am whcb pro\Iides insurane tc

customers with nonhnterest bearing transacton accounts regardless of the dol ar amo nt Ths

additon to the standard FDIC lsura ice tha was increased to $250 000 qe depostor Boft dDIC

programs are in effect through December 31 2009

Looking Ahead to 2009 Our we dese ved reputa io for cus omer and commurlty se as

always been an important driver of our husness and
strong ccmoet ts advartaoe 2009

we have mplemented back to bascs strategy with our Die Bank nSative Put smp ft

is companwide stra egc imperative focused on leverag 10 ombined experse our

people across a11 our Ines 0c business to bette meet our customers nanc reedn Ss

strategy had ts roots in the foundatior the Bank that our busi iess begrs ard enos svh

customer

VVe recognze that 2009 wi be dffcu To respond we have nc eased uu focus on

strategc relationshp-based accounts tc improve our hsk oti and bus ness

opportunites and onfnue to reduce our exposure to ion strategi on reIn iorsho

based accoun Our core istonier base is our greates ass Mea iwb your

management team is taking he strategic actio 1S necessary verse tb bes ests of

our shareho ders our ients nd our busness

Sincerely

WIlam McManaman
Chairman Chief Executive Officer



Five-year Comparisons

$55 $45 $45 $80
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Total Ending Assets Total Average Loans Total Average Deposits Non-Interest Income

$5.06 Billion in 2008 $3.86 Billion in 2008 $3 88 on in 2008 $74.6 Million in 2008

Financial Highlights

lie thousands except per xhxre data 2008 2007 Change

OPERATING RESULTS

Net interest income 131885 160584 17.9%

Provision for loan losses 202716 29087 596.9%

Non-Interest income 74602 70997 5.1%

Qpinq Expense 172479 _______ 165339 _________ 4.3%

Pre-tax loss income 168708 _________ 37155 554.1%

Net Loss Income 97799 28241 446.3%

EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE 11

Basic earnings per share 4.32 1.20 460.0%

Diluted earnings per share 4.32 1.20 460.0%

Dividends per share 0.28 0.72 61.4%

Average common shares outstanding 22629 23546 3.9%

Average diluted shares outstanding 22629 22556 3.9%

PERFORMANCE RATIOS

Return on average equity -29.64% 7.32%

Return on average assets -1.91% 0.54%

Net interest margin 2.84% 3.35%

Leverage ratio 6.06% 8.00%

YEAR END BALANCES

Total assets 5059824 5192778 2.6%

Gross loans and leases 3786029 3932684 3.7%
Total deposits 3919038 4003256 2.1%

Stockholders equity 261998 368567 28.9%

STOCK PRICE INFORMATION AT YEAR END

Book value per share 11.55 16.31 29.2%

Closing stock price 3.62 22.70 84.1%

ll Restated for 2008 stock dividends issued



Annual Meeting Stock Listing

The annual meeting of the stockholders will be held at 200 p.m on May 2009 at Northern Illinois
University 8500 State

Street Rockford Illinois 61108 Common stock of AMCORE Financial Inc is traded on The NASDAQ Stock Market under

the symbol AMFI

comprehensive presentation of the consolidated financial statements and Managements presentation of the analysis of

financial condition and results of operations can be found in the 2008 Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities

Exchange Commission which can be referenced at www.SEC.gov and at www.AMCORE.com/SEC All shareholders have

been provided with the 2008 Proxy Statement Notice of 2009 Annual Meeting and the 2008 Annual Report and Form 10-K

If you wish to receive copy of the 2008 Form 10-K free of charge you may write to AMCORE Financial Inc attention

Corporate Secretary 501 Seventh Street Rockford IL 61104 or call 815968-2241

Total Return Performance

140

80

60

40 AMCORE Fisancial Inc

.-NASDAO Composite

20 AMCORE Financial Peer Group

12/31/03 12/31/04 12/31/05 12/31/06 12/31/07 12/31/08

Company Performance

The graph above compares the cumulative total shareholder return on the common stock of the Company for the last five

years with the cumulative total returns on the NASDAQ Stock Market Index and selected peer group index These figures

assume that all dividends paid over the five-year period were reinvested and that the starting value of each index and the

investment in common stock was $100.00 on December 31 2003 The peer group of 12 banks consists of the following

Chemical Financial Corporation CHFC MB Financial Inc MBFI
Citizens Republic Bancorp Inc CRBC Old National Bancorp ONB
First Financial Bancorp FFBC Park National Corporation PRK
First Midwest Bancorp Inc FMBI 1st Source Corporation SRCE
FirstMerit Corporation FMER Susquehanna Bancshares Inc SUSO
Fulton Financial Corporation FULT Wintrust Financial WTFC

NOTES
The lines represent yearly index levels derived from compounded daily returns that include all dividends

The index level for all series was set to 100.00 as of December 31 2003
Cumulative Total Return for the indexes at each year end were as follows

12/03 12/04 12/05 12/06 12/07 12/08

AMCORE Financial Inc 100.00 121.40 117.38 129.17 92.15 15.45

NASDAQComposite 100.00 108.59 110.08 120.56 132.39 78.72

PeerGroup 100.00 116.25 107.17 110.76 81.53 74.64

For upcoming 2009 comparisons the peer group WS revised due to changes in the asset size and market capitalization of AMCORE and its peer
Companies The largest Companies in the group were replaced with smaller companies which positioned AMCORE closer to the median of the peer group
in terms of asset size and market capitalization First Financial Bancorp Inc FirstMerit Corp Fulton Financial Corp and Susquehanna Bancshares Inc

were removed from the peer group and replaced with Heartland Financial Independent Bank Midwest Banc Holdings and Old Second Bancorp The
revised peer group

for 2009 will consist of Chemical Financial Corporation Citizens Republic Bancorp Inc First Midwest Bancorp Inc Heartland Financial

Independent Bank MB Financial Inc Midwest Banc Holdings Old Second Bancorp Old National Bancorp Park National Corp 1st Source Corp and
Wintrust Financial Corp



AMCORE Locations

In Illinois

Algonquin
Lombard North Main Baraboo

798 South Randall Road 2810 Highland Avenue 1275 Bennington Road 1159 Eighth Street

Algonquin IL 60102 Lombard IL 60148 Rockford IL 61103 BarabooWl 53913

Antioch Machesney Park 3201 Perryville Road 615 Highway 136

515 Route 173 1530 West Lane Rockford IL 61114 Baraboo WI 53913

Antioch IL 60002 Machesney Park IL 61115
Hilander Belleville

Aurora McHenry 1715 Rural Street OneW Main Street

2505 Farnsworth Avenue 4101 Shamrock Lane Rockford IL 61107 BelIeville WI 53508

Aurora IL 60502 McHenry IL 60050
501 Seventh Street Darlington

Belvidere Mendota Rockford IL 61104 155 Wells Street

401 Southtowne Drive 801 Washington Street Darlington WI 53530
Sixth Street Drive Up

Belvidere IL 61008 Mendota IL 61342
920 Fourth Avenue Lodi

782 Beloit Road Drive Up Rockford IL 61104 713 Main Street

Belvidere IL 61008 609 Eighth Avenue Lodi WI 53555

Mendota IL 61342
228 Main Street

Carol Stream Rockford IL 61101 Madison

426W Army Trail Road Mt Prospect
3003 Washington Avenue

Roscoe
Carol Stream IL 60188 1800S Elmhurst Road Madison WI 53704

Mt Prospect IL 60056
4844 Hononegah Road

Carpentersville Roscoe IL 61073 8020 Excelsior Drive

94 Kennedy Memorial Drive Naperville
Madison WI 53717

St Charles

Carpentersville IL 60110 2772W 75th Street
2601 Oak Street 6698 Odana Road

Naperville IL 60563

Chicago-Van Buren St Charles IL 60175 Madison WI 53719

1033W Van Buren Street Northbrook

Suite 1000 3100 Dundee Road
Schaumburg 4702 Verona Road

Chicago IL 60607 Suite 910
1180 Higgins Road Madison WI 53711

Northbrook IL 60062
Schaumburg IL 60173

14W Muffin Street

Crystal Lake
South Beloit Suite 101

5100 Northwest Highway Oregon
640 Blackhawk Boulevard Madison WI 53701

Crystal Lake IL 60014 122 Fourth Street
South Beloit IL 61080

Oregon IL 61061 Monroe
Dee rfie Id

677 Lake Cook Road Orland Park
South Elgin 1625 Tenth Street

536 RandallRoad Monroe WI 53566

Deerfield IL 60015 16057 LaGrange Road

Orland Park IL 60467
South Elgin IL 60177

Drive Up
Dixon

101 First Street Peru
Sterling 1919 Tenth Street

302 First Avenue Monroe WI 53566

Dixon IL 61021 2825 Plaza Drive

Peru IL 61354
Sterling IL 61081

Mt Horeb
101 Independence Court

Drive Up 100 First Street

Dixon IL 61021 Drive Up
302 First Avenue Mt Horeb WI 53572

2022 Fourth Street

212 North Hennepin Avenue
Peru IL 61354

Sterling IL 61081
Drive Up

Dixon IL 61021
Vernon Hills 1300 Business Hwy 18/1 51 East

Princeton

Elgin 1407 Main Street
1620 Milwaukee Avenue Mt Horeb WI 53572

1950 Big Timber Road
Princeton IL 61356

Vernon Hills IL 60061
New Glarus

Elgin IL 60123
Wheaton 512 Highway 69

815 Main Street

250 Dundee Avenue 1051 Roosevelt Road New Glarus WI 53574
Princeton IL 61356

Elgin IL 60120 Wheaton IL 60187

Rock Falls
Portage

170 McLean Boulevard Willowbrook 2851 New Pinery Road
941 First Avenue

Elgin IL 60123
Rock Falls IL 61071

40W 75th Street Portage WI 53901

Willowbrook IL 60527

Freeport RockFord
Sauk City

1753 West Avenue Woodstock 525 Water Street

Alpine Village 225W Jackson Street Sauk City WI 53583
Freeport IL 61032

2510 Alpine Road
Woodstock IL 60098

Joliet Rockford IL 61108 Verona

1523 Essington Road
Brynwood

610W Verona Avenue

Verona WI 53593
Suites 1523 1525

2705 Mulford Road In Wisconsin
Joliet IL 60435

Rockford IL 61114 Wauwatosa

Lake Zurich
Argyle 2365 Mayfair Road

Colonial Village 321 Milwaukee Street Wauwatosa WI 53226900W Main Street
1480 Alpine Road

Argyle WI 53504
Suite 100

Rockford IL 61108
Lake Zurich IL 60047

Opened 1st Quarter 2009



ikMCORE Financial

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

To Be Held May 2009

To the Stockholders of AMCORE Financial Inc

The Annual Meeting of Stockholders of AMCORE Financial Inc the Company Nevada corporation will

be held at Northern Illinois University NIU-Rockford 8500 East State Street Rockford Illinois on May 2009

at 200 P.M Central Daylight Time for the following purposes

To elect three directors

To approve an amendment to the Companys Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation which

would declassify the board of directors and

To transact such other business as may properly come before the meeting or any adjournment thereof

The board of directors unanimously recommends vote for Item of the foregoing

Only stockholders of record at the close of business on March 2009 are entitled to notice of and to vote at the

meeting or any adjournment of the meeting

Stockholders are cordially invited to attend the Annual Meeting Seating at the meeting will be limited to room

capacity and any shareholders arriving after the room has been filled will be instructed to access the meeting via

webcast at the Companys website at www.amcore.com Whether or not you are able to attend the meeting we

would appreciate if you would complete and deliver your proxy promptly We are pleased to be able to offer you

the option of delivering your proxy by telephone or by Internet transmission in addition to the traditional method

of completing signing and mailing proxy card The proxy may be revoked at any time before it is voted

provided that written notice thereof has been given to the Secretary of the Company If you are present at the

meeting you may vote your
shares in person

and the proxy will not be used If you need directions to the

meeting please call 815 968-2241

In accordance with proxy householding rules only one copy of the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K

Annual Report and Proxy Statement Proxy has been sent to multiple stockholders of the Company who share

the same address and last name unless the Company has received contrary
instructions from one or more of

those stockholders In addition the Company has been notified that certain intermediaries i.e brokers or banks

will household proxy materials The Company will deliver promptly upon oral or written request separate

copy of the Annual Report and Proxy to any stockholder at shared address If you wish to receive separate

copy of the Annual Report and Proxy now and/or in the future you may write to AMCORE Financial Inc

Attention Corporate Secretary 501 Seventh Street Rockford Illinois 61104 or call 815 968-2241

Stockholders sharing an address who now receive multiple copies of the Companys Annual Report and Proxy

Statement may request delivery of single copy by writing or calling the Company at the above address or by

contacting their broker provided they have determined to household proxy materials

For further information concerning individuals nominated as directors the stockholder proposal or the use of the

proxy you are respectfully urged to read the Proxy Statement on the following pages

By order of the Board of Directors

Guy Francesconi

Secretary

March 19 2009

Rockford Illinois



AMCORE Financial Inc
501 Seventh Street

Rockford Illinois 61104

March 19 2009

PROXY STATEMENT

This proxy statement is furnished in connection with the solicitation of proxies to be voted at the Annual Meeting

of Stockholders of AMCORE Financial Inc the Company or AMCORE Nevada corporation to be held

on May 2009 at 200 P.M Central Daylight Time at Northern Illinois University NIU-Rockford 8500 East

State Street Rockford Illinois and any adjournment thereof and further to inform the stockholders concerning

the use of the proxy and the business to be transacted at the meeting

The enclosed proxy is solicited by the Board of Directors of the Company the Board The proxy may be

revoked at any time before it is voted Proxies may be revoked by filing written notice of revocation with the

Secretary of the Company before the meeting or by attending the meeting and voting in person The items

enumerated herein constitute the only business that the Board of Directors intends to present or is informed that

others will present at the meeting The proxy does however confer discretionary authority upon the persons

named therein or their substitutes with respect to any other business that may properly come before the meeting

Stockholders are entitled to one vote for each share Only stockholders of record at the close of business on

March 2009 are entitled to notice of and to vote at the meeting

Pursuant to the Bylaws of the Company majority of the outstanding shares of the Company entitled to vote

represented in
person or by proxy shall constitute quorum at the meeting Directors shall be elected by

plurality of the votes cast in the election of directors Generally any action to be taken by vote of the

stockholders other than the election of directors must be authorized by majority of the votes cast at meeting

of stockholders by the holders of shares entitled to vote thereon In tabulating the vote broker non-votes and

abstentions will be disregarded and will have no effect on the outcome of the vote except that abstentions are not

allowed for the election of directors

The expenses in connection with the solicitation of proxies will be borne by the Company Solicitation will be

made by mail but may in some cases also be made by telephone or personal call by officers directors or regular

employees of the Company who will not be specially compensated for such solicitation This proxy statement

and the accompanying proxy are first being mailed or delivered to stockholders on or about March 19 2009

IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING THE AVAILABILITY OF PROXY MATERIALS
FOR THE STOCKHOLDERS MEETING TO BE HELD ON MAY 2009

THE PROXY STATEMENT AND ANNUAL REPORT ARE AVAILABLE AT

https//www.amcore.com

ITEM 1ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

In the election of the Board of Directors stockholders are entitled to one vote for each common share owned by

them for each of the director nominees Stockholders may not cumulate their votes As of February 13 2009 the

Company had outstanding 22682317 shares of common stock Proxy votes not limited to the contrary will be

cast for the election of the nominees named below but should any of such individuals unexpectedly become

unavailable for election the proxies reserve the right to nominate and vote for such other person or persons as

they shall designate



The following sets forth the names ages principal occupations during the last five years and other information

regarding the director nominees and those directors whose terms continue after the meeting

There are three Class II directors to be elected at the 2009 Annual Meeting Nominees for Class II directors

whose terms will expire in 2012 are John Gleeson William McManaman and Jack Ward

Class II Directors

John GleesonDirector since 2003

Mr Gleeson age 62 retired as Senior Vice President and Chief Strategy Officer of Waigreen Co retail drug

stores in March 2008 He has been board member of The Talbots Inc national specialty retailer and cataloger

of apparel shoes and accessories since April 2004

William McManamanDirector since 1997

Mr McManaman age 61 has been Chief Executive Officer of the Company since February 2008 and Chairman

of the Board since May 2008 He has also been Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of AMCORE

Bank N.A Bank and was Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of AMCORE Investment

Group N.A AIGNA since February 2008 until AIGNA merged into the Bank on December 31 2008 He

was Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer Ubiquity Brands manufacturer and distributor of

snacks from April 2006 to September 2007 Jays Foods and Select Snacks subsidiary of Ubiquity Brands

filed Chapter 11 Bankruptcy in October 2007 and was sold to Snyder Foods in December 2007 He was Senior

Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of First Health Group Corporation national managed care company

serving the group health workers compensation and state agency markets from March 2004 until January 2005

Jack WardDirector since 1995

Mr Ward age 56 is an Attorney at Law and partner with the law firm of Reno and Zahm LLP of Rockford

Illinois

Those directors whose terms do not expire this year are

Class III Directors terms expire 2010

Paula BauerDirector since 1999

Ms Bauer age 54 retired as Senior Vice President Global Supply Chain and Information Services from

Spectrum Brands Inc formerly RAYOVAC Corporation manufacturer of batteries shaving and grooming

products specialty pet supplies and lawn and garden products in February 2008 She was Senior Vice President

Integration at Spectrum Brands Inc from February 2005 until January 2007 and was previously Vice President

Supply Chain at RAYOVAC Corporation

Paul DonovanDirector since 1998

Mr Donovan age 61 was Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Wisconsin Energy

Corporation diversified holding company primarily providing energy services until June 2003 At that time he

became special advisor to the Chairman of Wisconsin Energy Corporation pending his retirement from

Wisconsin Energy Corporation in February 2004 He is director of CLARCOR Inc diversified manufacturer

and director of Woodward Governor Company manufacturer of controls for various types of engines



Teresa Iglesias-SolomonDirector since 2006

Ms Iglesias-Solomon age 51 has been Vice President of Multi-Cultural Initiatives for Best Buy since August

2007 She was previously the Hispanic Marketing Director for Dominos Pizza national pizza chain from

January 2005 to August 2007 Prior to that she was an independent marketing consultant and was President and

founder of Ninos Catalog Company direct marketing firm focused on bilingual educational products for

children

Class Directors terms expire 2011

John HaibrookDirector since 1997

Mr Halbrook age 63 retired as Chairman of the Board of Woodward Governor Company manufacturer of

controls for various types of engines in January 2008 and remains member of that board He retired as Chief

Executive Officer in June 2005 He has been board member of HNI Corporation manufacturer of office

furniture and fireplaces since May 2004

Frederick HayDirector since 1997

Mr Hay age 64 retired as Senior Vice PresidentOperations of Snap-on Incorporated manufacturer of tools

in February 2002

Steven RogersDirector since 2005

Mr Rogers age 51 is Gordon and Llura Gund Family Distinguished Professor of Entrepreneurship at the J.L

Kellogg Graduate School of Management at Northwestern University He is board member of SuperValu Inc

supermarket retailer and distributor and Oakmark Mutual FundsHarris Associates providers of investment

advice to wealthy individuals and institutions

Information Concerning the Board of Directors and Its Committees

The Board adopted Corporate Governance Guidelines to assist the Board in the exercise of its responsibilities

The Board is in compliance with the requirement that the Board contain majority of independent directors This

determination of independence was made by the entire Board using the definitions of independence prescribed by

the Securities and Exchange Commission SEC and by the NASDAQ Stock Market NASDAQ Each director

on the Board was determined to be independent with the exception of Mr McManaman who is Company

employee The Corporate Governance Guidelines provides that no more than two management executives may
serve on the Board at the same time The Guidelines also require the non-management directors of the Company
to meet in executive session without management on regularly scheduled basis

The Board is in compliance with the requirement to have at least three Audit Committee members all of whom
must be independent The members of the Audit Committee were determined to be independent under the Audit

Conmiittee independence requirements set forth by the SEC and the NASDAQ The independence requirements

for Audit Committee members are more stringent than regular Board independence requirements The full Board

named John Gleeson as the Audit Committee Financial Expert of the Audit Committee under the definition

prescribed by the SEC

The Charter of the Governance and Nominating Committee Charter of the Audit Committee Charter of the

Compensation Committee the Companys Code of Ethics Corporate Governance Guidelines and Whistle

Blower Provisions are all available on the Companys website at http//www.amcore.com/governance



Committees of the Board of Dire ctors

The Company has an Executive Committee whose members are Messrs Gleeson Hay McManaman Rogers and

Ward The Executive Committee exercises certain powers of the Board in the management of the Company that

have been delegated to the Executive Committee by the Board The Executive Committee met once during 2008

The Company has an Audit Committee which was established in accordance with Section 3a58n of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended The Audit Committees members are Ms Bauer and Iglesias

Solomon and Messrs Gleeson and Rogers each of whom is independent as defined in Rule 4200a15 of the

NASDAQ listing standards Mr McManaman was member of the Audit Committee until February 2008 The

Audit Committee is appointed by the Board to assist the Board in monitoring the integrity of the financial

reporting process and systems of internal control of the Company the compliance by the Company with legal

and regulatory requirements and the independence and performance of the Companys internal and external

auditors For more information on the responsibilities of the Audit Committee please refer to the Audit

Committee Charter on our website at http//www.amcore.com/governance The Audit Conmittee held nine

meetings during 2008 report of the Audit Committee is set forth later in this Proxy Statement

The Audit Committee is also responsible for approving services provided by the independent auditors in

accordance with the Audit and Non-Audit Services Policy Proposed services may either be pre-approved

pursuant to pre-approval policies and procedures established by the Audit Committee that are detailed as to the

particular service and do not delegate Audit Committee responsibilities to management without consideration of

specific case-by-case services by the Audit Committee or require the specific pre-approval of the Audit

Committee Unless type of service has received general pre-approval it will require specific pre-approval by

the Audit Committee if it is to be provided by the Companys external auditor For both types of pre-approval

the Audit Committee shall consider whether the services to be performed by the auditor are consistent with the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and applicable SEC and PCAOB rules on auditor independence and whether the

provision of such services by the auditor would impair the auditors independence In addition to the rules of the

SEC relating to auditor independence the Audit Committee takes into consideration various other relevant

factors

The Company has an Investment Committee whose members are Ms Iglesias-Solomon and Messrs Donovan

Gleeson and Rogers Mr McManaman was member of the Investment Committee until February 2008 The

Investment Committee is appointed by the Board to establish review and administer the investment policies

strategies and performance of the Company and its subsidiaries and monitor compliance with such policies

and strategies by the responsible employees of the Company and its subsidiaries During 2008 the Investment

Committee held six meetings

The Company has Compensation Committee whose members are Messrs Donovan Halbrook Hay and Ward

each of whom is independent The Compensation Committee is appointed by the Board to oversee the

Companys compensation and employee benefit plans and practices including its executive compensation plans

and its incentive-compensation and equity-based plans and produce an annual report on executive

compensation for inclusion in the Companys proxy statement in accordance with all applicable rules and

regulations During 2008 the Compensation Committee held eleven meetings

The Company has Governance and Nominating Committee whose members are Ms Bauer and Messrs

Haibrook Hay and Ward each of whom is independent as required under the SEC and NASDAQ listing

standards The Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee met four times during 2008 See discussion

below for more information concerning the functions of the Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee

As of December 31 2008 the Company had no other committees of the Board



The Board met fifteen times during 2008 All directors attended at least 75% of the meetings of the Board and

meetings held by all committees of the Board on which they served during the period for which they were

directors in 2008 It is the Companys policy that directors are invited and encouraged to attend the Annual

Meeting of Stockholders Four directors were in attendance at the 2008 Annual Meeting The Governance

Guidelines adopted by the Board states that director is expected to regularly attend meetings of the Board and

committees on which such director sits director who is unable to attend meeting which it is understood will

occur on occasion is expected to notify the Chairman of the Board or the Chairman of the appropriate committee

in advance of such meeting All directors have complied with this requirement

Governance and Nominating Committee

The board of directors the Board of AMCORE Financial Inc the Company has Governance and

Nominating Committee the Governance and Nominating Committee The functions of the Governance and

Nominating Committee include the following

identify and recommend to the Board individuals qualified to serve as directors of the Company

recommend to the Board directors to serve on committees of the Board

advise the Board with respect to matters of Board composition and procedures including

compensation

periodically review the set of corporate governance principles applicable to the Company and adopted

by the Board and recommend any desirable changes to the Board and oversee corporate governance

matters generally and

oversee the annual evaluation of the Board and the Companys management

The Governance and Nominating Committee is governed by charter current copy of which is available on our

website at www.AMCORE.com under the headings Investor Information/Corporate Governance copy of the

charter is also available in print to shareholders upon request addressed to the Corporate Secretary at AMCORE
Financial Inc 501 Seventh Street Rockford Illinois 61104

The Governance and Nominating Committee will consider director candidates recommended by shareholders In

considering candidates submitted by shareholders the Governance and Nominating Committee will take into

consideration the needs of the Board and the qualifications of the candidate The Governance and Nominating

Committee may also take into consideration the number of shares held by the recommending shareholder and the

length of time that such shares have been held To have candidate considered by the Governance and

Nominating Committee the candidate must meet the independence requirement set forth by NASDAQ and the

shareholder must submit the recommendation in writing The recommendation must include the following

information

The name of the shareholder and evidence of his or her ownership of Company stock including the

number of shares owned and the length of time of ownership and

The name of the candidate the candidates resume or listing of his or her qualifications to be

director of the Company and the candidates consent to be named as director if selected by the

Governance and Nominating Committee and nominated by the Board

The shareholder recommendation and information described above must be sent to the Corporate Secretary at

501 Seventh Street Rockford Illinois 61104 and must be received by the Corporate Secretary not less than fifty

50 days nor more than seventy-five 75 days prior to the date of the annual meeting of shareholders

The Governance and Nominating Committee believes that the minimum qualifications for serving as director of

the Company are that nominee demonstrate by significant accomplishment in his or her field an ability to



make meaningful contribution to the Boards oversight of the business and affairs of the Company and have an

impeccable record and reputation for honest and ethical conduct in both his or her professional and personal

activities In addition the Governance and Nominating Committee examines candidates specific experiences

and skills time availability in light of other commitments potential conflicts of interest and independence from

management and the Company The Governance and Nominating Committee also seeks to have the Board

represent diversity of backgrounds experience gender and race

The Governance and Nominating Committee identifies potential nominees by asking current directors and

executive officers to notify them if they become aware of persons meeting the criteria described above who

have had change in circumstance that might make them available to serve on the Board for example

retirement as CEO or CFO of public company The Governance and Nominating Committee also from time

to time may engage firms that specialize in identifying director candidates for which the firm is compensated As

described above the Governance and Nominating Committee will also consider candidates recommended by

shareholders

Once person
has been identified by the Governance and Nominating Committee as potential nominee the

Governance and Nominating Committee may collect and review publicly available information regarding the

nominee to assess whether he or she should be considered further If the Governance and Nominating Committee

determines that the nominee warrants further consideration the Chairman or another member of the Governance

and Nominating Committee contacts the nominee Generally if the nominee
expresses willingness to be

considered and to serve on the Board the Governance and Nominating Committee requests information from the

nominee reviews his or her accomplishments and qualifications including in light of
any

other candidates that

the Governance and Nominating Committee might be considering and conducts one or more interviews with the

nominee In certain instances Governance and Nominating Committee members may contact one or more

references provided by the nominee or may contact other members of the business community or other persons

that may have greater first-hand knowledge of the nominees accomplishments The Governance and Nominating

Committees evaluation process does not vary based on whether or not nominee is recommended by

shareholder although as stated above the Board may take into consideration the number of shares held by the

recommending shareholder and the length of time that such shares have been held

Shareholder Communications with Directors

The Board has established process to receive communications from shareholders and other interested parties

Shareholders and other interested parties may contact any member or all members of the Board including

without limitation the Chair of the Governance and Nominating Committee Fred Hay or the non-management

directors as group any Board committee or any chair of any such committee by mail or electronically To

communicate with the Board of Directors any individual director or any group or committee of directors

correspondence should be addressed to the Board of Directors or any such individual director or group or

committee of directors by either name or title All such correspondence should be sent do Corporate Secretary

at 501 Seventh Street Rbckford Illinois 61104 To communicate with any of our directors electronically

shareholders should go to our website at www.AMCORE.com Under the headings Investor Relations

Corporate GovernanceCommunicating with our Board you will find an on-line form that may be used for

writing an electronic message to the Board any individual director or any group or committee of directors

Please follow the instructions on our website in order to send your message

All communications received as set forth in the preceding paragraph will be opened by the office of the

Corporate Secretary for the sole purpose of determining whether the contents represent message to our

directors Any contents that are not in the nature of advertising promotions of product or service or patently

offensive material will be forwarded promptly to the addressee In the case of communications to the Board or

any group or committee of directors the Corporate Secretarys office will make sufficient copies of the contents

to send to each director who is member of the group or committee to which the envelope or e-mail is addressed



Compensation of the Board of Dire ctors

In order to more closely link directors pay to performance and to further align the Boards interests with

stockholders retainer is paid in AMCORE common stock Each non-employee director receives at the

directors option restricted stock retainer of either $15000 per year or $10000 per year plus $5000 to

be paid in cash or $10000 per year plus $5000 to be deferred into the AMCORE Financial Inc Deferred

Compensation Plan discussed below The cash portion of this payment if elected begins on the first anniversary

of their election to the Board An annual cash retainer of $7500 is paid to the Audit Committee Chairman for

duties and responsibilities associated with that position All non-employee directors earned fee of $1500 for

each Board and committee meeting attended during 2008 with the exception of the committee chairmen who

received $3000 for each committee meeting attended and chaired The committee chairmen earn $3000 for each

Executive Committee meeting attended Non-employee directors participating in specifically called telephonic

committee meetings received $500 per meeting with the exception of the committee chairman who received

$1000 for each such meeting chaired The Company also reimburses non-employee directors for all

out-of-pocket travel expenses incurred for travel to attend Board and committee meetings

Non-employee directors may elect to defer cash fees pursuant to the AMCORE Financial Inc Deferred

Compensation Plan Deferred amounts are credited to one of 11 measurement funds Deferral amounts are

credited to accounts in the name of each participating director on the Companys books are unsecured and are

payable in cash following termination of the directors service to AMCORE or at such other payment date as

elected by the director The value of these accounts will appreciate or depreciate based on market performance

The deferred amounts will be paid out of general corporate assets

In May 2008 non-employee directors each received an option grant for 3000 shares pursuant to the AMCORE

Financial Inc 2001 Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors Each option has an exercise price equal to

the closing stock price of the shares on the date the option is granted and is exercisable for ten years after the date

of grant Options vest one-third per year beginning on the first anniversary of the grant date Upon change in

control CIC of AMCORE these options become immediately exercisable Options may be exercised during

the remaining option term upon resignation or retirement The exercise price of an option may at the

non-employee directors election be paid in cash or with previously owned shares of common stock or

combination thereof

Messrs Milton Brown and Robert Doyle as Director Emeriti each receive lifetime retainer of $10000

per year Non-employee directors who joined the Board prior to 1997 and had 10
years

service at the time of

retirement were eligible to receive lifetime retainer After 1997 and prior to 2007 non-employee directors not

eligible for lifetime retainer received 650 shares of restricted common stock These restricted shares begin

vesting in year five after issuance and vest 20% each year until fully vested in year
nine In 2007 the Board

determined to eliminate the issuance of the shares of restricted stock in lieu of lifetime retainer for new

directors In addition the two non-employee directors entitled to lifetime retainer Messrs Ward and Watson

agreed to eliminate their entitlement to lifetime retainer in exchange for credit to the AMCORE Financial

Inc Deferred Compensation Plan that approximated the value of lifetime retainer benefit



The following table sets forth the compensation of AMCOREs directors during the fiscal
year ended

December 31 2008

Fees Nonqualified

Earned Deferred

or Paid Stock Option Compensation
in Cash Awards Awards Earnings Total

Name

Bauer Paula 37000 10000 10771 57771

Donovan Paul 47000 10000 10771 3497 71268
Gleeson John 49000 16903 10771 99 76773
Halbrook John 48000 15000 10771 73771

Hay Frederick 49500 15000 10771 4180 79451

Iglesias-Solomon Teresa 31000 13030 10771 54801

McManaman William 8000 1336 9336
Rogers Steven 38500 14558 10771 63829
Ward Jack 55000 10278 10771 5789 81838

Includes vested restricted stock awards issued in lieu of cash retainer or in lieu of lifetime retainer See

Security Ownership of Directors and Officers for more information regarding director stock holdings as of

December 31 2008 The amounts reported include amounts recognized in the Companys results of

operations pursuant to Financial Accounting Standard 23RShare-Based Payment FAS 23R Restricted

shares are valued based on observable market prices on the date of issuance and are adjusted for the value

impact of restrictions

Includes amounts recognized in the Companys results of operations pursuant to FAS 123R Options are

valued using Black-Scholes model Assumptions used in the calculation of options granted in 2008 include

volatility rate of 25.86% risk free rate on the date of grant of 3.448% expected life of years dividend

yield of 5.88% and for
purposes of this reported fair value no forfeitures were included

Totals in this colunm reflect the above market portion of earnings pursuant to the Companys Deferred

Compensation Plan

Fees earned prior to Mr McManamans employment by the Company on February 25 2008
Mr McManaman stock and option awards are reported in the Grants of Plan-Based Awards and

Outstanding Equity Awards tables

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

There were no known Compensation Committee interlocks as of the date of this Proxy Statement

COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Compensation Philosophy Objectives

AMCOREs core compensation philosophy is to pay its executive officers competitive level of compensation
that best reflects individual experience and expertise ii overall responsibility to the Company iii pay
levels for

peers within the Company iv pay levels in the market place for similar positions and

performance of the Company and business units

To implement its compensation philosophy AMCORE concentrates on the following three objectives

providing total compensation that is competitive within AMCOREs industry and AMCOREs market in

order to recruit retain motivate and reward high caliber diverse workforce encompassing wide range

of professional and technical talent



building performance culture that aligns compensation with stockholder interests and rewards

achievement of specific corporate business unit and individual objectives AMCOREs compensation

program is connected to AMCOREs business
strategy and rewards exceptional performance and

establishing rational approach to compensation and benefits across the Company

The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors or Compensation Committee provides overall

guidance for executive compensation policies and determines the amounts and elements of compensation for

executive officers Consistent with rules promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission the

executive officers as designated by the Board of Directors are the chief executive officer CEO president

executive vice-presidents in charge of principal business units divisions or functions and any other officers who

perform policy-making functions

Four members of the Board of Directors sit on the Compensation Committee each of whom is an independent

director under the definitions of independence prescribed by NASDAQ The Compensation Committees

function is described in its charter which has been approved by the Board of Directors and can be viewed at

http//www.amcore.comlgovemance

In considering executive compensation the Compensation Committee engages the services of an independent

compensation consultant Frederic Cook Co Inc FWC has been retained to assist with the review of

the compensation package of the CEO and other executive officers In addition FWC assists the Compensation

Committee and AMCORE with other compensation-related projects including the establishment of pay packages

for potential executives the establishment of retention bonus plan the calculation of severance liabilities for

departing executives where appropriate and providing information regarding trends in non-employee director

compensation

Although the Compensation Committee retains FWC directly FWC also interacts with management as

necessary and in particular with the CEO and AMCORE Bank N.A.s Executive Vice President of

Administrative Services These two executives also attend Compensation Committee meetings relating to

executive compensation matters but are excused from meetings when their own compensation is discussed or

voted on Only Compensation Committee members are allowed to vote on executive compensation decisions

Specifically decisions regarding the CEOs compensation package are made by the Compensation Committee

with input from FWC Decisions regarding other executives are also made by the Compensation Committee with

input from FWC but in making such decisions the Compensation Committee considers the recommendations

from the CEO

In determining competitive pay levels the Compensation Committee considers all forms of compensation and

benefits and relies upon data provided by FWC which reflects both the compensation practices of AMCORE
direct peers and general industry practices The data comes primarily from public filings by selected banks of

comparable asset size in AMCOREs region and is supplemented by survey data In general survey data is used

because public filings generally provide information on only the top five executive officers For purposes of

comparability to financial institutions the Compensation Committee generally looks to banks with an asset size

of from 50% to 200% of the asset size of AMCORE however in all cases general industry survey data is given

some weight to ensure that conclusions are being drawn from sufficiently large data sample size



In addition to public surveys for the
purpose

of setting 2008 compensation the following 12 companies were

used for benchmarking purposes
with respect to executive officers

1st Source Corp Fulton Financial Corp

Chemical Financial Corporation MB Financial Inc

Citizens Republic Bancorp Inc Old National Bancorp

First Financial Bancorp Inc Park National Corp

First Midwest Bancorp Inc Susquehanna Bancshares Inc

FirstMerit Corp Wintrust Financial Corp

As will be described later in this section the peer companies used for benchmarking purposes for 2009 were

significantly changed from the peer companies used in 2008

The data provided by FWC to the Compensation Committee includes benchmarking data with respect to base

pay base pay plus bonus which is referred to as total cash compensation and base pay plus bonus plus

long-term incentive compensation which is referred to as total direct compensation Taking into account this

competitive market data from the review of peer companies and surveys the Compensation Committee generally

intends that the base pay and total direct compensation opportunity for each executive will be at the median of

the peer companies Each executive will have an opportunity to achieve total direct compensation near the 75th

percentile for exceptional performance when compared to targets

As noted above notwithstanding AMCOREs overall pay positioning objectives pay opportunities for specific

individuals vary based on number of factors such as scope of duties tenure institutional knowledge andlor

difficulty in recruiting Actual total compensation in given year will vary above or below the target

compensation levels based primarily on the attainment of operating goals and the creation of stockholder value

The level and mix of compensation decided upon is considered within the context of both the objective data from

competitive assessments of compensation and performance and the subjective factors outlined above The

Compensation Committee believes that each of the named executive officers compensation packages for 2008

was within the competitive range when compared to the objective comparative data of the
peer companies and

met the overall compensation objectives of the Company

Compensation Structure

AMCORE generally utilizes four main components of compensation

Base Pay

Short-Term or Annual Incentives

Long-Term Incentives and

Benefits

These particular elements of compensation are utilized to provide compensation for attraction and retention of

executives coupled with equity-oriented and at-risk compensation which is dependent on the achievement of

performance goals As will be described below it was determined in 2008 that fifth component retention

bonus plan should be provided to the executive officers and certain other key employees

For executive officers the mix of compensation is weighted toward at-risk pay in the form of annual and long

term incentives consistent with the Companys overall philosophy of maintaining pay mix that results

fundamentally in pay-for-performance orientation for executives Each element of compensation that the

Company utilizes is described below
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Base PayBase pay is determined by the level of the position within the Company and the individuals current

and sustained performance results In addition base pay levels and any increases or decreases to those levels for

each executive are reviewed and approved each
year by the Compensation Committee and any adjustments may

be based on factors such as new roles and/or responsibilities assumed by the executive the performance of the

executives business unit the executives impact to the extent significant on strategic goals and the executives

length of service with AMCORE Base pay is generally targeted at the market median based on the

benchmarking process
described above and relevant compensation survey data

Base pay for executive officers is generally set annually at the Compensation Committees November meeting

However due to Mr Wilsons promotion from Chief Financial Officer CFO to President Chief Operating

Officer on August 15 2007 Mr Wilsons base pay was increased with his promotion in August 2007 and

remained unchanged for 2008 With respect to Ms Sutfin who began employment as the Companys CFO on

December 17 2007 the base pay set forth in her initial employment offer letter took into account market data

the terms of Ms Sutfin previous employment and the need to structure an employment package that would

attract her Her base pay remained unchanged through 2008 Mr McManaman base pay was set at $570000

pursuant to the terms of his employment offer letter This base pay was the same as previously set for Kenneth

Edge the former Chief Executive Officer the Former CEO

Annual IncentivesPursuant to the 2005 Stock Award and Incentive Plan the 2005 Plan which is

stockholder-approved plan the 2008 annual incentive amounts were payable contingent upon the attainment of

financial targets These targets are described in more detail below The Compensation Committee
approves

targets that it believes require improved performance by the Company With respect to each executive his or her

opportunity to earn an annual incentive is expressed as percentage of his or her base pay The targeted

percentage of base pay for each eligible executive reflects his or her performance and position within the

Company

The general structure of the Annual Incentive Plan AlP was modified in 2008 to reflect the Compensation

Committees determination that in light of the volatile environment in the financial markets change in the

incentive plan design would better advance the Companys interests The financial targets were modified so that

earnings per share EPS was the only financial criterion While previous metrics had included among others

total revenues return on equity and EPS the Compensation Committee concluded that it would be more

appropriate to select EPS as the single metric for 2008 because it best aligned the interests of the executive

officers with those of its stockholders The EPS target was set at $1.50 No bonuses would have been payable

under the plan if the target EPS was not met and it was recognized in April 2008 that this target would not be

achieved Had the target been met the named executive officers would have become eligible for bonuses of 50%

to 150% of their target bonus which is described below subject to the complete discretion of the Compensation

Committee to reduce the bonuses The previous maximum bonus level of 200% had been reduced in conjunction

with this new design The target bonuses for the named executive officers as percentage of their base pay
were Mr McManaman108% this was the same percentage that previously applied to the Former CEO
Mr Wilson86% Ms Sutfin75% and each of Mr Stiles and Mr Francesconi58% Mr Francesconis

higher target bonus percentage in 2008 the percentage in 2007 was 40% reflected his additional responsibilities

Retention Bonus PlanIn April 2008 the Company became concerned that it might not be able to retain its

executives many of whom had been recently recruited This concern arose from the facts that the number of

shares available for future long-term incentive awards was very limited uncertainties in the financial markets

made it difficult to establish acceptable financial performance goals for long-term performance plans and

executives did not anticipate that any bonus opportunities would be achievable under the 2008 AlP To
address this concern the Company adopted retention bonus plan the Retention Bonus Plan to provide

incentives for the executive officers and other key employees to remain with the Company through the end of

2008 as well as through the end of each of the following two years

With respect to the named executive officers the Retention Bonus Plan provides for the payment of retention

bonus in three installments payable on or before January 31 2009 January 31 2010 and January 31 2011
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provided that the executive is employed on the respective date of payment With respect to the executive officers

the three installments approximate 83 1/3% 33 1/3% and 33 1/3% respectively of the target bonus that would

have been payable to these executives for 2008 under the AlP as described above The scheduled retention

bonuses for the named executive officers excluding the Former CEO who did not receive retention bonus for

the periods ending January 31 2009 January 31 2010 and January 31 2011 are as follows Mr McManaman

$513000 $205200 $205200 Mr Wilson$250833 100333 $100333 Ms Sutfin$190625 $76250

$76250 Mr Stiles$132916 $53166 $53166 and Mr Francesconi$125666 $50266 $50266 Payment

of any retention bonus to named executive officer is contingent on AMCORE Bank N.A the Bank meeting

its obligations under the formal agreement signed with the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency in May

2008 which requires the Bank to make significant enhancements to its credit risk management practices

Long-Term IncentivesLong-term incentives are provided to executives to reward achievement of long-term

strategic goals and to provide balance against over-emphasis on short-term results Executives may receive

long-term incentives in the form of cash and/or equity Equity-based incentives may include restricted stock and

stock options Through stock ownership executives interests are aligned with stockholder value Additional

discussion regarding stock ownership guidelines may be found in the section entitled Stock Ownership

Guidelines and Hedging Policies

With the exception of Mr McManaman who received 14000 shares of restricted stock on his employment date

long-term incentives for 2008 were awarded exclusively in the form of stock options In general these options

were awarded on January 24 2008 the second business day after AMCORE issued its fourth quarter 2007

earnings release In addition to the January 24 option awards on May 2008 Ms Sutfin was awarded an

additional 30000 stock options with per share exercise price equal to the closing price of AMCORE stock on

the date of grant which was $11.96 pursuant to her employment offer letter Further details regarding these

grants may be found in the Grants of Plan-Based Awards table

Stock options awarded to executives generally have 10-year term and are issued with
per

share exercise prices

equal to the closing price of AMCORE stock as of the date of grant Vesting is generally over four years of

continued employment at the rate of 25% per year starting with the first anniversary of the date of grant with

certain exceptions in the event of retirement or change in control Mr McManamans restricted stock grant is

scheduled to vest 50% on the first anniversary of his employment date and 50% on the second anniversary

unless he is previously terminated for Cause or resigns without Good Reason as those terms are defined in

his employment offer letter Mr McManaman shorter vesting was negotiated as part of his employment offer

letter

AMCORE generally grants options on one of two dates depending on whether or not the recipient of the option

grant is an executive officer With respect to executive officers the determination of the number of options to be

awarded generally occurs at the November Compensation Committee meeting The options however are

awarded on the second business day following the day of AMCORE fourth quarter earnings press release With

respect to other employees granted options the grant occurs at the May Compensation Committee meeting at

which time the number of options to be granted is determined approved and awarded Exceptions to these

general rules may occur in the case of newly hired executives for whom an option may be granted around the

time of their initial employment but outside of blackout period Currently all options granted prior to January

2009 are underwater

Other Executive Benefits including Retirement Benefits and PerquisitesExecutives are entitled to employee

benefits generally available to all full time employees subject to fulfilling any minimum service period This

includes elements such as the vacation and health and welfare benefits generally available to all employees In

designing these elements AMCORE seeks to provide an overall level of benefits that is competitive with that

offered by similarcompanies in the markets in which AMCORE operates
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AMCORE employees including executive officers participate in the AMCORE Financial Security Plan or the

FSP The FSP is tax qualified 401k plan pursuant to which AMCORE matches certain portion of

employee contributions and contributes an additional amount equal to 3% of cash compensation after eligibility

requirements are met The maximum AMCORE contribution is 7% of cash compensation subject to certain

statutory limits

AMCORE provides deferred compensation plan DCP for senior officers including the named executive

officers which provides participants with the opportunity to defer portions of base pay and annual incentives

The DCP authorizes AMCORE in its discretion to make supplemental Company contributions Tax rules limit

the amount of compensation that can be taken into account for computing contributions to the FSP and the

maximum contribution to the FSP for any participant in any one-year In order to make up for these limits on

contributions imposed by these tax rules AMCORE is currently providing contributions under the DCP to

eligible officers for the contributions that would have been made on their behalf to the FSP if these limits did not

apply

On August 10 1998 AMCORE entered into an Executive Insurance Agreement with the Former CEO Under

this agreement split-dollar and/or company owned life insurance policies were purchased to provide an informal

funding mechanism for the benefits related to non-qualified unfunded supplemental pension program the

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan or SERP described below This agreement terminated on the date

of the Former CEOs retirement This agreement was competitive with those being provided to other similarly
situated executives at the time it was entered into

AMCORE adopted the SERP on May 20 1998 for the Former CEO and which provides him with retirement

benefit As result of the Former CEOs retirement he qualified for an Early Retirement Benefit which is

10-year certain life annuity benefit to be paid by the Company discounted by 5% for each year that his early

retirement preceded age 65 With regard to the Former CEO the SERP benefit was offered for competitive

reasons and was similar to those being provided to comparable executives at that time Currently there are no
active participants in the SERP

In addition certain perquisites are made available to the CEO and other executive officers Further details

regarding these benefits are contained in the Summary Compensation Table and accompanying footnotes These

perquisites are provided because the Compensation Committee has concluded that they are generally competitive

with those provided by comparable financial institutions and banks

2009 Compensation Changes

As described below number of compensation changes were made in 2008 to the composition of the Companys
peer group for 2009 and to the design of the 2009 compensation for the executive officers

Revised Peer Group

In August 2008 the Compensation Committee determined that it was appropriate to revise the peer group of

companies used for benchmarking purposes Revision was necessary because of changes in the asset size and
market capitalization of both AMCORE and the 2008 peer companies Specifically some of the largest

companies were removed from the
peer group and replaced with smaller companies to position AMCORE closer

to the median of the peer group companies in terms of asset size and market capitalization First Financial

Bancorp Inc FirstMerit Corp Fulton Financial Corp and Susquehanna Bancshares Inc were removed from
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the peer group companies and replaced with Heartland Financial Independent Bank Midwest Banc Holdings

and Old Second Bancorp The revised peer group for 2009 consists of the following companies

1st Source Corp MB Financial Inc

Chemical Financial Corporation
Midwest Banc Holdings

Citizens Republic Bancorp Inc Old National Bancorp

First Midwest Bancorp Inc Old Second Bancorp

Heartland Financial Park National Corp

Independent Bank Wintrust Financial Corp

The adoption of the revised peer group of companies lowered the benchmark values for the executive officers

with respect to base pay annual bonuses and long-term incentive compensation the smaller values were result

of the average
size of the companies in the revised peer group being significantly smaller than the average size of

the companies in the prior peer group

Changes to 2009 Compensation Structure

As described below the Compensation Committee determined that it was in the best interests of the Company to

revise the Companys compensation structure for 2009

AlPAs with the adoption of the Retention Bonus Plan the Company continued to need an effective

compensation program to retain its executive officers The Compensation Committee concluded that as

consequence of the ongoing uncertainties in the financial markets financial performance metrics similar to those

used in the past would not lead to sufficient performance or retention incentives Consequently the

Compensation Committee significantly modified the AlP structure for 2009 Specifically for the 2009 plan year

the performance goals are based on compliance control and strategic objectives that have been individually

developed for the executive officers and approved by the Compensation Committee The range of the bonus

award opportunities is from 50% to 150% of the target bonus subject to the complete discretion of the

Compensation Committee to reduce the bonuses In addition no award may be paid in excess of 50% of the

target award unless the Bank is deemed well capitalized as of December 31 2009 within the meaning of

applicable regulatory authority administered by the federal banking agencies

Base Pay and Potential Bonus OpportunitiesIn addition to the Companys retention concerns another factor

affecting the structuring of 2009 compensation was that as result of the minimal amount of compensation value

that could be granted in the form of equity awards under the 2005 Plan the executive officers received smaller

equity compensation awards in 2009 than in prior years Therefore the Compensation Committee determined

that the appropriate compensation strategy for 2009 was to modestly increase executive officers base pay and to

increase their 2009 bonus target percentages such that each officers targeted compensation for 2009 would

modestly exceed the level of compensation that had been initially targeted for 2008 Mr McManaman target

compensation for 2009 was however increased by larger amount based on the Compensation Committees

recognition of his significant contributions during 2008

Base Pay and Bonus Target ChartThe following table sets forth the 2008 and 2009 base pay and.bonus

target percentages for the Companys named executive officers as described above

2008 Bonus 2009 Bonus

2008 Base 2009 Base Target Target

Name Pay Pay of Base Pay of Base Pay

McManaman $570000 $600000 108% 130%

Wilson $350000 $360000 86% 120%

Sutfin $305000 $320000 75% 105%

Stiles $275000 $280000 58% 73%

Francesconi $260000 $273000 58% 73%

Represents base pay as of December 31 2008

Represents base pay as of January 2009
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Compensation Committee Considerations and Overall PolicyIn determining the appropriate compensation

strategy for 2009 the Compensation Committee took into account the fact that its strategy resulted in potential

compensation for 2009 assuming bonuses are awarded at target significantly higher than the compensation that

would have resulted using the median compensation levels of the new peer group companies It was the

Compensation Committees conclusion however that the Companys need to retain and motivate its recently
recruited senior management team when the industry is facing critical issues justified the compensation strategy
and

the_programs that it adopted In this regard the Compensation Committee considered the importance of the

retention of the senior management team consisting primarily of recently recruited executives who are charged
with the responsibilities to manage the Bank and its loan portfolio through these

very difficult times and to make
the changes necessary to comply with the recommendations of the regulators

Adjustment or Recovery of Awards

The Company has no specific policies to adjust or recoup prior awards However under Section 304 of Sarbanes

Oxley if the Company is required to restate its financials due to material noncompliance with any financial

reporting requirements as result of misconduct the CEO and CFO must reimburse the Company for any
short-term incentive or other incentive-based or equity-based compensation received during the 12 months

following the first public issuance of the non-complying document and any profits realized from the sale of

securities of the Company during those 12 months

Employment Agreements and Post- Termination Payments

The Company generally does not maintain employment agreements with
any

of its named executive officers In

connection with Mr McManamans employment as the CEO of the Company on February 25 2008 and in order

to secure his services the Company and Mr McManaman agreed to an employment offer letter containing the

initial terms of his employment The offer letter provides him with certain severance benefits if he is terminated

prior to the second anniversary of his commencing employment In connection with Ms Sutfins acceptance of

employment with the Company as its CFO in December 2007 and in order to secure her services the Company
agreed to provide her with certain severance benefits and to enter into Transitional Compensation AgreementTCA with her which is discussed below Finally in recognition of Mr Francesconis superior performance
in achieving certain compliance objectives and his assumption of additional responsibilities in connection with

the retirement of Mr James Waddell the Companys former Chief Administrative Officer including

assumption of the role of Corporate Secretary the Company enhanced Mr Francesconis TCA which is

discussed below by providing him with increased change in control-related severance benefits and change in

control-related
gross-up These named executive officers severance benefits and employment offer letters to the

extent applicable are discussed under the heading Executive CompensationPotential Payments upon
Termination or Change-in-Control

From time to time severance arrangements have been negotiated for executive officers who have been

terminated without cause In these cases in exchange for severance benefits the executive has agreed to

cooperate in
any matters that may require his or her input to refrain from competing or soliciting business or

employees for an agreed upon period and to relinquish any right to bring suit against AMCORE for any cause of

action

The Company has entered into individual TCAs with its executive officers including each named executive

officer other than the CEO These agreements provide payments only in certain circumstances following or
prior but relating to change in control of the Company The TCAs reflect the continuing consolidation that is

occurring throughout the banking industry and the Companys conclusion that its ability to attract and retain

executive officers would be enhanced by arrangements that provided benefits in the event of certain terminations

subsequent to or prior but relating to change in control The TCAs are further described under the heading
Executive CompensationPotential Payments upon Termination or Change-in-Control
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On February 22 2008 AMCORE and the Former CEO entered into Separation Release and Consulting

Agreement Pursuant to this agreement the Former CEOs last day of employment as CEO was February 22
2008 He remained Chairman of the Board of Directors until immediately prior to the annual meeting of

stockholders on May 2008 the 2008 Annual Meeting Following the 2008 Annual Meeting he remained

employed in consulting capacity through February 22 2009 The Former CEOs agreement is an exhibit to the

Form 8-K filed on February 25 2008 by the Company with the SEC The Former CEOs agreement is further

described under the heading Executive CompensationPotential Payments upon Termination or

Change-in-Control

Stock Ownership Guidelines and Hedging Policies

The Company has adopted stock ownership guidelines for its senior executive officers The Companys CEO has

stock ownership goal of four times his annual base pay and other senior executive officers are expected to own

Company stock in an amount equivalent to three times their annual base pay Executives are typically given three

to five years to reach the desired level of Company stock ownership pursuant to the Company guidelines and

there are no formal penalties for failure to meet the stock ownership guidelines

Management annually reviews and reports to the Compensation Committee with respect to the progress of the

officers toward their applicable stock ownership goals At the present time none of the named executive officers

have stock ownership positions that meet the guideline amounts reflecting in part the large decrease in the price

of AMCORE stock in the recent past The Company prohibits executives from either holding Company securities

in margin account or pledging Company securities as collateral for loan

Impact of Tax and Accounting

As general matter the Compensation Committee considers the various tax and accounting implications of all

compensation approaches utilized by the Company

When determining the amounts of long-term incentive grants to executives and employees the Compensation
Committee examines the accounting cost associated with the grants as calculated pursuant to Statement of

Financial Accounting Standard 123R These costs are expensed over the requisite service period See Note 11 of

the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements included in the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for

further information

Section 162m of the Internal Revenue Code the Code generally prohibits any publicly held corporation

from taking federal income tax deduction for compensation paid in excess of $1 million in any taxable year to

the CEO or any of its three next highest compensated officers other than the Chief Financial Officer

Exceptions are made for qualified performance-based compensation among other things The Compensation
Committees general policy is that payments under the executive compensation plans should be structured to

comply with the deduction rules of Section 162m of the Code unless otherwise deemed appropriate by
AMCORE to achieve its corporate objectives AMCORE believes that Section 162m of the Code did not limit

the deduction of any compensation paid in 2008
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COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT

We have reviewed and discussed the foregoing Compensation Discussion and Analysis with management Based

on our review and discussion with management we have recommended to the Board of Directors that the

Compensation Discussion and Analysis be included in this Proxy Statement and in AMCORE Annual Report

on Form 10-K for the
year

ended December 31 2008

Submitted by Jack Ward Chairman

Paul Donovan

John Haibrook

Frederick Hay
Members of the Compensation Committee

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in any of the Companys previous filings under the Securities

Act of 1933 as amended or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended that incorporate future filings

including this Proxy Statement in whole or in part the foregoing Compensation Committee Report shall not be

incorporated by reference into any such filings

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Summary Compensation Table

The following table sets forth information conceming the compensation of AMCOREs Chief Executive Officer

and Chief Financial Officer as well as the three other most highly compensation executive officers the Named
Executive Officers who served in such capacities during the fiscal year ended December 31 2008

Change in

Pension Value

and

Nonqualified

Non-equity Deferred

Stock Option Incentive Plan Compensation All Other

Salary Bonus Awards Awards Compensation Earnings Compensation Total

Name and Principal Position Year

McManaman William 2008 484500 526417 135387 9617 13364 684554 1225712
Chairman of the Board

Chief Executive Officer

Sutfin Judith 2008 305000 190625 108929 20425 248785 631.474

Executive Vice President 2007 12708 20000 32708
Chief Financial Officer

Wilson Donald 1-1 2008 350000 250833 18382 260080 32906 744026 956.987

President 2007 329583 38007 194553 88197 574326

ChiefOperatingOfficer 2006 265385 92641 110304 102450 239 29397 600416

Stiles Richard 2008 275000 132916 25333 60609 456417 539499

AMCORE Bank N.A

Executive Vice President

Commercial Banking Group

Francesconi Guy 2008 253333 125666 80331 10638 428438 503236
Executive Vice President

General Counsel

Former Executive Officer

Edge Kenneth 2008 198544 6668 349280 5096679 5880179 1652176
Chairman of the Board 2007 560000 162956 600995 178652 93825 1270516
Chief Executive Officer 2006 540000 176292 321053 295056 484344 110509 1927254

Retention bonus paid January 22009 Mr McManaman also received $13417 per the terms of his offer letter for an equivalent 401k

company match for 2008

Includes amounts recognized in the Companys results of operations pursuant to FAS 123R Stock and option awards are valued pursuant

to FAS 123R using Black-Scholes model as applicable See FAS l23R Assumptions table for assumptions used in the calculation of
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option fair values For Ms Sutfin and Messrs Francesconi McManaman Stiles and Wilson expense is recognized over the service

period which is the same as the vesting period

No bonuses were earned in fiscal year 2008 under the Annual Incentive Plan

Includes $1336 of above market earnings on deferred compensation All other compensation is composed of financial tax planning

car allowance of $14583 country club of $11005 non-deductible company paid travel expenses of $11392 deferred compensation

Company contribution of $18836 and federal income and employment tax gross-ups totaling $7788
Includes $2042 of above market earnings on deferred compensation All other compensation is composed of car allowance of $17500
executive long-term disability life insurance premium of $330 non-deductible company paid travel expenses of $3831 and federal

income and employment tax gross-ups totaling $1599
Includes $3290 of above market earnings on deferred compensation All other compensation is composed of country club of $16524

car allowance of $17500 executive long-term disability employer contribution to the 401k plan of $16100 consisting of $6900

employer basic contribution and $9200 employer matching contribution and federal income and employment tax gross-ups totaling

$8037
All other compensation is composed of country club of $8450 car allowance of $17500 executive long-term disability employer

contribution to the 40 1k plan of $9932 consisting of $4388 employer basic contribution and $5544 employer matching contribution

deferred compensation Company contribution of $5313 and federal income and employment tax gross-ups totaling $750

Includes $1063 of above market earnings on deferred compensation All other compensation is composed of club dues of $834 car

allowance of $17500 executive long-term disability employer contribution to the 401k plan of $16100 consisting of $6900 employer

basic contribution and $9200 employer matching contribution deferred compensation Company contribution of $3214 and federal

income and employment tax gross-ups totaling $1394
Mr Edge retired from the Company effective May 2008 Reflects change in pension value and nonqualified deferred compensation

earnings Includes $491533 of change in the actuarial present value of Mr Edges pension accumulated benefit obligation and $18114

of above market earnings on deferred compensation All other compensation is composed of $371364 of consulting pay SERP
retirement payment of $157972 and the value of the automobile transferred to Mr Edge per the terms of his agreement of $23145 Also

included are amounts paid prior to separation with Company including country club of $13163 federal income and employment tax

gross-ups totaling $4997 executive long-term disability and employer contribution to the 401k plan of $13389 consisting of $5738

employer basic contribution and $7651 employer matching contribution

Grants of Plan-Based Awards

The following table sets forth information concerning option grants to the Named Executive Officers during the

fiscal year ended December 31 2008 as well as estimated future payouts under cash incentive plans
Grant

All Date

other fair

stock All other value

awards option Exercise of

Number awards or base stock
Estimated future payouts under

of Number of price of and
Non-equity incentive plan

shares securities option option

Date of of Stock underlying awards awards
Grant Committee Threshold Target Maximum or units options

Name Date Action

McManaman William 2/25/2008 2/22/2008 615600 14000 20.32 284480

Sutfin Judith 1/24/2008 1/22/2008 228750 75000 20.42 322155

5/7/2008 5/7/2008 30000 11.96 53235

Wilson Donald 1/24/2008 11/7/2007 301000 58000 20.42 253228

Stiles Richard 1/24/2008 11/7/2007 159500 25000 20.42 109150

Francesconi Guy 1/24/2008 11/7/2007 150800 25000 20.42 109150

Former Executive Officer

Edge Kenneth 1/24/2008 11/7/2007 214195 80000 20.42 349280

Includes the amounts that could have been earned with respect to fiscal 2008 under the Annual Incentive Plan For the 2008 performance

year if the
target

level of performance had been achieved or exceeded bonus percentage ranging from 50% to 150% would be

declared Target performance was not achieved therefore there were no payouts pursuant to the plan

Exercise price of option awards is equal to the closing stock trading price on the date of grant

Option awards are valued pursuant to FAS 123R using Black-Scholes model See FAS 123R Assumptions table for the assumptions

used in the calculation of option fair values

Eligible for pro-rata payment through his termination date of May 2008
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FAS 123R Assumptions

The following table sets forth the FAS 123R assumptions used in the calculation of the stock option awards

presented in our Summary Compensation Table and Grants of Plan-Based Awards For purposes
of reported

fair values no forfeitures were included

Assumptions

Fiscal

Expected Risk-Free Dividend 2008

Volatility Life Interest Yield Expense

Name Grant Date Years Rate

McManaman William 5/2/2007 19.16 6.00 4.551 2.49 5936

5/2/2006 19.08 4.50 4.950 2.51 3681

Sutfin Judith
5/7/2008 25.86 6.25 3.480 5.88 8692

1/24/2008 25.86 6.00 3.276 3.62 100237

Wilson Donald 1/24/2008 25.86 6.25 3.357 3.62 59166

2/7/2007 19.16 6.25 4.702 2.15 2682

1/25/2007 19.16 6.25 4.849 2.25 51352

2/6/2006 19.08 6.00 4.520 2.46 122741

Stiles Richard 1/24/2008 25.86 6.25 3.357 3.62 25503

4/20/2007 19.16 6.25 4.585 2.43 35106

Francesconi Guy 1/24/2008 25.86 6.25 3.357 3.62 25503

5/2/2007 19.16 6.25 4.536 2.49 22625

5/3/2006 19.08 6.25 5.070 2.48 16566

2/13/2006 19.08 6.25 4.560 2.48 15638

Former Executive Officer

Edge Kenneth 1/24/2008 25.86 6.25 3.357 3.62 349280

5/22/2007 19.16 0.50 5.015 2.45

2/7/2007 19.16 6.25 4.702 2.15

1/25/2007 19.16 6.25 4.849 2.25

1/23/2006 19.08 6.00 4.320 2.43
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Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year End

The following table sets forth information concerning equity awards held by the Named Executive Officers at

December 31 2008

Option Awards Stock Awards

Equity

Incentive Equity

Plan incentive

Market Awards Plan Awards
Number Value of Number of Market or

of Shares Shares Unearned Payout Value
Number of Number of or Units or Units Shares of Unearned
Securities Securities of Stock of Stock Units or Shares Units

Underlying Underlying That That Other or Other
Unexercised Unexercised Option Have Have Rights Rights That

Options Options Exercise Option Not Not That Have Have Not

Exercisable Unexercisable Price Expiration Vested Vested Not Vested Vested

Name if Date

McManaman William 1000 21.8440 5/19/20091
750 19.2815 5/9/20101

1500 20.1500 5/16/20111

4500 24.0400 5/7/20091

2000 25.8800 5/3/20151
1333 667 29.4500 5/2/20161
1000 2000 29.7100 5/2/20171

1301 471

140002 50680

Sutfin Judith 75000 20.4200 1/24/20 183
30000 11.9600 5/7/20184

Wilson Donald 40000 20000 29.8700 2/6/20 163
6875 20625 32.9400 1/25/20174

3462 10388 34.4900 2/7/20174
58000 20.4200 1/24/20184

59005 21358

Stiles Richard 5500 16500 30.4000 4/20/20 174
25000 20.4200 1/24/20184

2500 9050

Francesconi Guy 5000 5000 29.8900 2/13/20164 15006 5430
5000 5000 29.8300 5/3/20164
3750 11250 29.7100 5/2/20174

25000 20.4200 1/24/20184

Edge Kenneth 5000 19.2815 5/9/20104
25000 20.1500 5/6/20114
45278 22.7050 1/10/20097

35399 24.5050 5/15/20097

9879 23.7750 5/7/20108

18741 23.7750 5/7/20109

21259 23.7600 5/9/20109
12966 23.8700 5/9/201010
17279 29.0000 8/13/200910

45000 29.8900 5/6/20113

34667 17333 30.5950 5/6/20133

12887 38663 32.9400 5/6/20134
6350 19050 34.4900 5/6/20134

80000 20.4200 5/6/20134

Mr McManaman option grants and restricted stock occurred as non-employee director

Mr McManamans restricted stock grant vests 50% on his first anniversary and 50% on his second anniversary unless

terminated for Cause or resigns without Good Reason

Options vest at rate of one-third per year beginning one year after the date of grant of the ten-year option term

Options vest at rate of 25% per year beginning one year after the date of grant of the ten-year option term

Shares will vest nine years from grant date
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The Deferred Stock Award vest one-third of the shares on December 31 of each of 2010 2011 and 2012 provided that

the participant remains continuously employed and upon attainment of specified performance goal

Options vest at rate of one-third per year beginning one year after the date of grant of the seven-year option term

Options vest at rate of 50% per year beginning one year after the date of grant of the seven-year option term

Options vest at rate of 25% per year beginning one year after the date of grant of the seven-year option term

10 Reload grants vest immediately and terminate on the original grant expiration date

Option Exercises and Stock Vested

The following table reflects activity during fiscal 2008 for the Named Executive Officers of exercised stock

options and vested shares

Number of Shares Acquired Value Realized on
Name on Vesting Vesting

McManaman William 639 9059

Sutfin Judith

Wilson Donald

Stiles Richard

Francesconi Guy

Former Executive Officer

Edge Kenneth 2627 33468

Pension Benefits

The Company has adopted non-qualified unfunded supplemental pension program or the SERP that is

applicable to Mr Edge which provides retirement benefits by the Company on non-contributory basis

Mr Edge was participant in the SERP prior to his separation from the Company in May 2008 The Company
has not formally funded these supplemental retirement benefits but accrues liability in the amount of the

actuarially determined present value of the retirement benefits

The annual benefit payable at normal retirement date age 65 under the SERP is equal to three percent of the

participants final base salary times his number of years of service but the plan further provides that the

benefit may not exceed 70% or be less than 45% of final base salary The benefits described in the preceding

sentence are reduced by any other Company provided benefits and 50% of any applicable Social Security

benefits The benefit is payable in installments for the participants life There is minimum payment period of

10 years so that if the participant dies before 10 years have elapsed his beneficiary will receive payments for

any remaining months in the ten-year period See Note 14 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

included in the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for further information on the Supplemental Executive

Retirement Plan SERP

Early retirement is retirement between ages 62 and 65 In the event of early retirement the benefit otherwise

payable will be reduced by the application of reasonable actuarial assumptions determined by AMCORE If

participants employment is terminated for other than cause as defined in the SERP before the participant

qualifies for early retirement he will receive lump sum payment equal to the actuarial equivalent of his

retirement benefit
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The following Pension Table further describes the benefits payable or paid to Mr Edge Actuarial calculations

utilize 6.25% discount rate and the RP 2000 Mortality Table

Number of Payment
Years Present Value of During Last

Plan Credited Accumulated Fiscal Year
Name Name Service Benefits

Former Executive Officer

Edge Kenneth SERP 38.67 1836775 157972

Payment made pursuant to the terms of the SERP and Mr Edges early retirement

Non-Quah fled Deferred Compensation

As reflected in the following table certain of the Named Executive Officers participate in non-qualified

deferred compensation plan

Aggregate Aggregate

Earnings Balance

Executive Registrant in Last Aggregate Last

Contributions Contributions Fiscal Withdrawals/ Fiscal

in Last Fiscal in Last Fiscal Year Distributions Year End
Name Year Year

McManaman William 1000002 18836 5308 158775

Sutfin Judith 2402462 8113 248359
Wilson Donald 716152 13070 232260
Stiles Richard 5313 5314
Francesconi Guy 335952 3214 128 89025

Former Executive Officer

Edge Kenneth 202922 38910 11950193 104214

Amounts reported are included in salary in the Summary Compensation Table

These amounts include above market earnings that are reported in the Summary Compensation Table

Mr McManaman $1336 Ms Sutfin $2042 and Messrs Wilson $3290 and Francesconi $1063

Net amount after withdrawal penalty of $61254

Potential Payments upon Termination or Change-in-Control

This section describes and quantifies the payments that would be due to the Companys named executive officers

in connection with their termination or in connection with change in control whether or not termination

has occurred It will also describe certain aspects of the employment arrangements between the Company and

Mr McManaman and Ms Sutfin respectively including certain severance arrangements that apply whether or

not change in control has occurred It will describe the terms of the Transitional Compensation Agreements

TCAs that have been entered into with all of the named executive officers It will describe the terms of the

Separation Release and Consulting Agreement between the Company and Mr Edge that was entered into on

February 22 2008 Finally this section will quantify the potential payments that would have been made to the

named executive officers employed on December 31 2008 if these officers had terminated employment as of

December 31 2008 or change in control had occurred Payments due to named executive officer as result of

termination of employment of the executive or change in control of the Company may in certain cases be

subject to the prior approval of applicable regulatory agencies

Employment Arrangements

Mr McManaman commenced employment as the Chief Executive Officer of AMCORE on February 25 2008
Mr McManaman has received base salary annual bonus opportunity and participation in other AMCORE
benefits at the same levels that applied to Mr Edge as of the date of Mr McManamans hire In lieu of stock
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options however Mr McManaman received 14000 shares of restricted stock which are scheduled to vest 50%
on the first and second anniversaries of his hire date unless prior to those dates he is terminated for cause or

resigns without good reason as those terms are defined below

In addition Mr McManaman will receive additional payments subject to release of claims if he is terminated

without cause or resigns for good reason prior to the second anniversary of his date of hire If termination

occurs before the first anniversary the payment is lump sum equal to twice his base salary if termination

occurs before the second anniversary the payment is lump sum equal to his base salary Mr McManaman did

not receive TCA

Cause is defined to generally include the failure to substantially perform duties other than as result of

illness or injury willful misconduct or gross negligence material breach of fiduciary duties to the

Company or its affiliates serious crime involving moral turpitude or felony and material breach of

the Companys written policies or procedures that is not corrected Good reason is defined to generally include

material reduction in duties or responsibilities reduction in salary or material reduction in benefits

other than change in benefits applicable to all senior executives and requirement to relocate more than

25 miles from Rockford

TCAs for Messrs Wilson Francesconi Stiles and Ms Sutfin

The TCAs for each of Mr Wilson and Ms Sutfin provide that in the event that during the three
years and with

respect to the TCAs for Messrs Stiles and Francesconi during the two years in each case following change in

control as defined below or under certain circumstances prior to but relating to change in control the

Company terminates the executives employment for reasons other than cause as defined below or disability

or the executive terminates his employment for good reason as defined below the executive will become

entitled to the following payments and benefits

Within 30 days after the date of termination the executive will receive the following amounts in lump
sum cash payment

the sum of any unpaid base salary through the date of termination of his or her employment the

product of the executives recent average bonus as defined below times fraction equal to the

portion of the calendar year that has elapsed as of the date of termination any compensation previously
deferred by the executive adjusted for

any earnings or losses pursuant to the applicable deferral

arrangement and any accrued but unpaid vacation pay the total of these amounts are referred to as the

Accrued Obligations Recent average bonus for this purpose is generally the average of the annual

bonuses paid to the executive during the three
years preceding the year of termination and

with respect to Mr Francesconi an amount equal to the product of two times the annual

base salary plus the product of two times the recent
average bonus with respect to Mr Stiles an

amount equal to the product of 2.99 times the annual base salary plus ii the product of 2.99 times

the recent average bonus and with respect to Mr Wilson and Ms Sutfin an amount equal to three

times the sum of the annual base salary plus the recent average bonus provided that for each of

Messrs Francesconi Stiles Wilson and Ms Sutfin the amount will be reduced by any other severance

payments payable to the executive the Severance Amount

All stock options restricted stock and similar awards that would have become vested solely through
continued employment for period not longer than three years after the date of termination will be deemed

vested and will in the case of options remain exercisable for minimum period of one year after the

executives date of termination of employment or if earlier the stated expiration date of the option

Mr Wilson and Ms Sutfin will be entitled to any outstanding award opportunity under long- or

intermediate-term incentive plan or program based on the assumed achievement of target performance for

the entire specified performance period pro rated based on the total performance completed as of the

termination date
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In general the executive will be entitled to lump sum payment equal to the value of in the case of

Mr Wilson and Ms Sutfin three years and in the case of Messrs Francesconi and Stiles two years of any
welfare benefits provided to the executive and family as of the time of termination of his or her employment

or if better those benefits thereafter in effect from time to time following the termination of the executives

employment subject to any necessary modification to avoid the imposition of 20% excise tax to the

executive by reason of Section 409A which imposes certain limitations on deferred compensation This

benefit is referred to as the Welfare Benefit Payment

Following the date of termination Mr Wilson and Ms Sutfin or his or her family will be entitled to

lump payment equal to the value of Other Benefits for three years in the case of Messrs Francesconi and

Stiles two years Other Benefits are defined generally to include the benefits and perquisites being

provided to the executive and his or her family during the 90 day period immediately preceding the change

in control or if more favorable to the executive in effect generally from time to time thereafter during such

three year period for Mr Wilson and Ms Sutfin such two year period for Mr Francesconi and Stiles with

regard to other peer executives of the Company and its affiliate companies and their families specifically

including employer contributions to the AMCORE Security Plan employer contributions to the AMCORE
Deferred Compensation Plan and any other defined contribution retirement plan club membership fees

financial planning allowance and car allowance This benefit is also subject to any necessary modification

by reason of Section 409A This benefit is referred to as the Other Benefits Payment

Effective January 2008 in order to comply with the provisions of Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code
the TCAs for each of the named executive officers were generally amended to provide that for amounts subject

to Section 409A payments will generally be delayed for period of six months following separation of service

and will be increased by six-months of interest computed at the prime rate

The TCAs define change in control to generally include subject to certain exceptions the acquisition of

15% or more of AMCORE common stock by person or group subject to certain exceptions change in

the composition of the Board of Directors so that less than 50% of the directors are individuals whose election or

nomination was approved by Incumbent Directors which are defined to include directors at the time the TCAs

were adopted and directors approved by Incumbent Directors subject to certain exceptions reorganization

if following such reorganization the stockholders prior to the reorganization do not own more than 60% of the

Companys common stock subsequent to the reorganization stockholder approval of complete liquidation

or dissolution of the Company and the sale or other disposition of all or substantially all of the assets of the

Company

Generally and subject to certain exceptions the TCAs define cause to include the willful and continued

failure by the executive to substantially perform his or her duties after written demand for performance has

been delivered and the willful engaging by the executive in conduct which is materially and demonstrably

injurious to the Company Good reason generally includes the assignment to the executive of any duties

materially inconsistent with the executives position prior to the change in control including any diminution in

such position any reduction in the executives compensation or benefits any requirement that the

executive be based more than 20 miles from his or her location in effect immediately prior to the change in

control any purported termination by the Company of the executives employment other than as expressly

permitted by the TCA and in the case of Mr Wilson the Companys failure to require successor to

expressly agree to perform all the obligations of the TCA and any determination by the executive in his sole

discretion after the first anniversary of the change in control that his or her compensation is not satisfactory

In addition the TCAs provide that if any portion of the severance payment is subject to an excise tax as

defined in the Section 4999 of the Internal Revenue Code by reason of the payment being an excess parachute

payment within the meaning of Section 280G of the Internal Revenue Code the Company will pay the

executive gross up payment in an amount such that after the payment by the executive of all taxes including

the excise tax imposed on the gross up payment the executive retains the amount of the
gross-up payment equal
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to the excise tax imposed on the total payment Mr Stiles TCA does not include the gross-up payment and his

severance payment would be scaled back by the amount subject to the excise tax to avoid the deduction
disallowance

As condition to the effectiveness of the TCA each executive has entered into confidentiality and

non-compete agreement The non-compete provisions apply beginning upon change in control and continue
while the executive is serving as an executive officer of the Company and for one year following termination of

employment with the Company The non-compete provisions generally cover competition against AMCORE
within certain geographic areas including becoming involved in competing businesses disturbing business

relationships soliciting employees and similar activities The confidentiality provisions extend to confidential

information intellectual property and related matters In addition the confidential and non-compete agreement
contains provisions with regard to non-disparagement and cooperation with litigation If the executives

employment is terminated for cause as defined in the TCA AMCORE may nevertheless elect to have the

confidentiality and non-compete provisions apply in which case with respect to Mr Wilson and Ms Sutfin the

Company will pay one-third the Severance Amount in equal installments payable on the dates salary would have
been paid had employment not been terminated subject to modification by reason of Section 409A

Different provisions apply if the executives termination of employment is on account of death disability for

cause or voluntary separation without good reason each as defined in the TCA

In the event of death or disability AMCOREs obligation is generally limited to payment of the Accrued

Obligations the Welfare Benefit Payment and the Other Benefits Payment as these three payments are

described above except that in the case of termination of employment due to disability the Welfare Benefit

Payment and the Other Benefits Payment will be based on the values of such benefits to be received in the

case of Mr Wilson and Ms Sutfin three years and in the case of Messrs Francesconi and Stiles two years
following such termination

In the event of termination for cause except as otherwise described above payment is limited to any
unpaid base salary and any previously deferred compensation adjusted for earnings or losses pursuant to the

terms of the applicable deferral arrangement

In the event of termination by the executive other than for good reason the executive will receive only
the Accrued Obligations

Separation Release and Consulting Agreement for Mr Edge

On February 22 2008 AMCORE and Mr Edge entered into Separation Release and Consulting Agreement
which provided for Mr Edges transition from CEO of the Company to retirement The agreement is an exhibit

to Form 8-K filed on February 25 2008 by the Company Mr Edge and the Company agreed that he would

resign as CEO effective February 22 2008 After February 22 he continued as Chairman of the Board of

Directors until immediately prior to the annual meeting of the Companys stockholders the Termination Date
As of the close of business on May 2008 Mr Edge retired from the Company From May 2008 through

February 22 2009 he continued to provide services to the Company as consultant and adviser During this

period of time Mr Edge agreed to provide up to 300 hours of consulting services with respect to Company-
related matters upon reasonable request

Through the Termination Date Mr Edge received the same salary and benefits as he had received while CEO
From the Termination Date through February 22 2009 Mr Edges compensation was limited to continuation of

his base salary and he did not receive
any other employee benefits from the Company Under the agreement

Mr Edge received consideration valued at approximately $2.3 million including amounts which had previously
been earned This consideration included benefits payable pursuant to the terms of the SERP valued at

approximately $1.8 million health
coverage for Mr Edge and his spouse similar to that offered to similarly

situated active employees until Mr Edge attains age 65 or the date Mr Edge obtains full-time employment with
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another employer and obtains health insurance from that employer and transfer to Mr Edge of the ownership
of the Company automobile that he used In addition as of the Termination Date all options held by
Mr Edge under the Companys 1995 Stock Incentive Plan and 2000 Stock Incentive Plan shall as provided in

the respective option plans remain exercisable until the third anniversary of the Termination Date or if earlier

their previously scheduled expiration date to the extent unvested all options held by Mr Edge under the

Companys 2005 Stock Award and Incentive Plan shall as provided in the plan continue to vest at the stated rate

in the related option agreements and be exercisable until the stated expiration of the option and any
restrictions on any award of restricted stock shall lapse

In addition to standard confidentiality and non-disparagement protections the agreement provided that from the

Termination Date until the first anniversary of the end of the consulting period Mr Edge would not directly or

indirectly solicit employees customers or suppliers of the Company nor unless waived by the Company
engage in competitive activities as defined within the agreement within 150 miles of the Companys office in

Rockford As condition to the agreement Mr Edge executed general release of claims against the Company

Payments Due in the Event of Various Termination Events or Change in Control

The following tables quantify the payments due to the named executive officers in the event of various

termination events or change in control In each case the termination is assumed to have occurred as of

December 31 2008 the last business day of the Companys 2008 fiscal year The calculation of the amounts

payable is based upon the closing price of the Companys stock on December 31 2008 which was $3.62

Post-Employment PaymentWilliam McManaman

Involuntary

Termination CIC with

Without Termination for

Executive Payments and Benefits upon Cause/Good CIC without Good Reason or
TerminationlClC Reason Termination Without Cause Death Disability

Compensation

Severance $1140000 $1140000
Other Cash Incentives

2008 Bonus

Long-term Incentives

Acceleration of Unvested Stock Options

Acceleration of Unvested PSUs

Acceleration of Unvested RS/RSUs 51151 51151 51151 51151 51151
Benefits Perquisites

Continuation of Benefits and Perquisites

Medical Dental 21081 21081

Total $1212232 $51151 $1212232 $51151 $51151

Includes only benefits that are enhanced payments

Per Mr McManamans offer letter if terminated by the Company other than for cause or he resigns for good reason prior

to the first anniversary of his hire date Mr McManaman is eligible for lump sum severance payment equal to two
times his annual base salary After the first anniversary and prior to the second anniversary of his hire date the lump sum
severance payment would be equal to one times annual base salary

Equity awards valued at AMCOREs closing price of $3.62 as of December 31 2008

Represents intrinsic value of stock options As of December 31 2008 unvested option grants were underwater

Restricted shares vest 50% on February 25 2009 and 50% on February 25 2010 Using the closing stock price on

February 27 2009 of $1.10 the value of the restricted shares would decrease approximately 70% to $15500

Values estimated based on 2008 employer premiums Per Mr McManamans offer letter if terminated by the Company
other than for cause or he resigns for good reason the Company will provide Mr McManaman and his spouse with health

insurance until the date he is age 65
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Post-Employment PaymentDonald Wilson

Executive

Payments and
CIC with

Benefits upon
Termination for

Terminationl Voluntary CIC without Good Reason or

Change in Control CIC Termination Termination Without Cause Death Disability

Compensation

Severance
$1222060

Other Cash Incentives

2008 Bonus

Long-term Incentive

Acceleration of Unvested Stock Options

Acceleration of Unvested PSUs 213586 213586

Acceleration of Unvested RSIRSUs

Benefits Perquisites

Enhanced Disability Benefit insured
4991267

Continuation of Benefits and Perquisites
22320689

Medical Dental
30360910

Supplemental Life Insurance 50000011

280G Tax Gross-up
42516012

Total $21358 $1979497 $500000 $499126

Includes only benefits that are enhanced payments

CIC payments calculated using three year average bonus not including current year and therefore do not include any

retention bonuses

Equity awards valued at AMCOREs closing price of $3.62 as of December 31 2008

Represents intrinsic value of stock options As of December 31 2008 unvested option grants were underwater

Options remain outstanding for period of one year
from termination by death or disability

Values estimated based on 5900 Performance Share awards Using the closing stock price on February 27 2009 of

$1.10 the value of the RSUs would decrease approximately 70% to $6400

Enhanced supplemental disability benefit of $4000 per month payable until age 65 Disability pay would increase by

$6250 per month if deemed catastrophic benefit loss of two or more daily activities of living Excluding the

catastrophic benefit disability amount has been present valued using monthly interest rate equivalent to an annual rate

of 6.00%

Value of benefits and perquisites calculated based on actual 2008 costs Income tax gross-ups on perquisites estimated at

$24110

Welfare benefits other benefits and perquisites continue for three years following termination by death after CIC and

for one year following termination by disability following CIC however no other CIC termination benefits are

payable in these circumstances

10 Values estimated based on 2008 employer premiums

11 An additional $500000 of life insurance is available through the AMCORE Group Life Insurance Policy for total life

insurance benefit of $1000000

12 Each Executives Transitional Compensation Agreement provides for an associated excise tax gross-up to the extent

any change in control payment triggers the golden parachute excise tax provisions under Sections 280G and 4999 of the

Code The following major assumptions were used to estimate executive excise taxes and associated tax gross-ups

-One year of the executives severance payment has been treated as allocable to the performance of the Confidentiality

and Noncompete Agreement provisions provided in his Transitional Compensation Agreement for the termination

scenario

-Options are assumed cashed out on December 31 2008 at each options intrinsic value assuming December 31 2008

closing stock price of $3.62

-Parachute payments for time vesting stock options were valued using Treasury Regulation Section l.280G-l

QA 24c
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Post-Employment PaymentJudith Sutfin

CIC with

Termination

for Good

Reason or

Executive Payments and Benefits upon Voluntary CIC without Without

Termination/Change in Control CIC Termination Termination Cause Death Disability

Compensation
Severance 915000
Other Cash Incentives

2008 Bonus

Long-term Incentive

Acceleration of Unvested Stock Options

Acceleration of Unvested PSUs

Acceleration of Unvested RSIRSUs

Benefits Perquisites

Enhanced Disability Benefit insured 5350576
Continuation of Benefits and Perquisites .- 7560378
Medical Dental 1644589
Supplemental Life Insurance 50000010
280G Tax Gross-up 11 N/A N/A

Total $1007048 $500000 $535057

Includes only benefits that are enhanced payments

CIC payments calculated using three year average bonus not including current year and therefore do not include any
retention bonuses

Equity awards valued at AMCORE closing price of $3.62 as of December 31 2008

Represents intrinsic value of stock options As of December 2008 unvested option grants were underwater

Options remain outstanding for period of one year from termination by death or disability

Enhanced supplemental disability benefit of $4000 per month payable until age 65 Disability pay would increase by

$6354 per month if deemed catastrophic benefit loss of two or more daily activities of living Excluding the

catastrophic benefit disability amount has been present valued using monthly interest rate equivalent to an annual rate

of 6.00%

Value of benefits and perquisites calculated based on actual 2008 costs Income tax gross-ups on perquisites estimated at

$4797

Welfare benefits other benefits and perquisites continue for three years following termination by death after CIC and

for one year following termination by disability following dC however no other dId termination benefits are

payable in these circumstances

Values estimated based on 2008 employer premiums

10 An additional $500000 of life insurance is available through the AMCORE Group Life Insurance Policy for total life

insurance benefit of $1000000

11 Each Executives Transitional Compensation Agreement provides for an associated excise tax gross-up to the extent

any change in control payment triggers the golden parachute excise tax provisions under Sections 280G and 4999 of the

Code The following major assumptions were used to estimate executive excise taxes and associated tax gross-ups

-One year of the executives severance payment has been treated as allocable to the performance of the Confidentiality

and Noncompete Agreement provisions provided in his Transitional Compensation Agreement for the termination

scenario

-Options are assumed cashed out on December 31 2008 at each options intrinsic value assuming December 31 2008

closing stock price of $3.62

-Parachute payments for time vesting stock options were valued using Treasury Regulation Section .280G-

QA 24c
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Post-Employment PaymentRichard Stiles

CIC with

Termination

for Good

Reason or
Executive Payments and Benefits upon Voluntary dC without Without
Termination/Change in Control dC Termination Termination Cause Death Disability

Compensation

Severance $822250
Other Cash Incentives

2008 Bonus

Long-term Incentive

Acceleration of tJnvested Stock Options

Acceleration of Unvested PSUs

Acceleration of Unvested RS/R5Us 90506
Benefits Perquisites

Enhanced Disability Benefit insured 4032557
Continuation of Benefits and Perquisites 9204889
Medical Dental 196459l0
Supplemental Life Insurance

280G Tax Gross-up 11
Total

$942993 $403255

Includes only benefits that are enhanced payments

CIC payments calculated using three year average bonus not including current year and therefore do not include any
retention bonuses

Equity awards valued at AMCOREs closing price of $3.62 as of December 31 2008

Represents intrinsic value of stock options As of December 31 2008 unvested option grants were underwater

Options remain outstanding for period of one year from termination by death or disability

Values estimated based on 2500 restricted shares Using the closing stock price on February 27 2009 of $1.10 the value

of the RS would decrease approximately 70% to $2750

Enhanced supplemental disability benefit of $4000 per month payable until age 65 Disability pay would increase by
$5.52 per month if deemed catastrophic benefit loss of two or more daily activities of living Excluding the

catastrophic benefit disability amount has been present valued using monthly interest rate equivalent to an annual rate

of 6.00%

Value of benefits and perquisites calculated based on actual 2008 costs Income tax gross-ups on perquisites estimated at

$1501

Welfare benefits other benefits and perquisites continue for two years following termination by death after CIC and
for one year following termination by disability following dC however no other CIC termination benefits are

payable in these circumstances

10 Values estimated based on 2008 employer premiums

Ii Each Executives Transitional Compensation Agreement provides for an associated excise tax gross-up to the extent

any change in control payment triggers the golden parachute excise tax provisions under Sections 280G and 4999 of the

Code The following major assumptions were used to estimate executive excise taxes and associated tax gross-ups

-One year of the executives severance payment has been treated as allocable to the performance of the Confidentiality
and Noncompete Agreement provisions provided in his Transitional Compensation Agreement for the termination

scenario

-Options are assumed cashed out on December 31 2008 at each options intrinsic value assuming December 31 2008
closing stock price of $3.62

-Parachute payments for time vesting stock options were valued using Treasury Regulation Section l.280G-l
QA 24c
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Post-Employment PaymentGuy Francesconi

CIC with

Termination

for Good
Reason or

Executive Payments and Benefits upon Voluntary CIC without Without

Termination/Change in Control dC Termination Termination Cause Death Disability

Compensation

Severance $585034

Other Cash Incentives

2008 Bonus 32517

Long-term Incentive

Acceleration of Unvested Stock Options

Acceleration of Unvested PSUs

Acceleration of Unvested RS/RSUs

Benefits Perquisites

Enhanced Disability Benefit insured 3254596

Continuation of Benefits and Perquisites 8568578
Medical Dental 2024089

Supplemental Life Insurance

280G Tax Gross-up 10 N/A N/A

Total $_ $723476 $325459

Includes only benefits that are enhanced payments

CIC payments calculated using three year average bonus not including current year and therefore do not include any

retention bonuses

Equity awards valued at AMCOREs closing price of $3.62 as of December 31 2008

Represents intrinsic value of stock options As of December 31 2008 unvested option grants were underwater

Options remain outstanding for period of one year from termination by death or disability

Enhanced supplemental disability benefit of $2625 per month payable until age 65 Disability pay would increase by

$4375 per month if deemed catastrophic benefit loss of two or more daily activities of living Excluding the

catastrophic benefit disability amount has been present valued using monthly interest rate equivalent to an annual rate

of 6.00%

Value of benefits and perquisites calculated based on actual 2008 costs Income tax gross-ups on perquisites estimated at

$2789

Welfare benefits other benefits and perquisites continue for two years following termination by death after CIC and

for one year following termination by disability following dC however no other CIC termination benefits are

payable in these circumstances

Values estimated based on 2008 employer premiums

10 Each Executives Transitional Compensation Agreement provides for an associated excise tax gross-up to the extent

any change in control payment triggers the golden parachute excise tax provisions under Sections 280G and 4999 of the

Code The following major assumptions were used to estimate executive excise taxes and associated tax gross-ups

-One year of the executives severance payment has been treated as allocable to the performance of the Confidentiality

and Noncompete Agreement provisions provided in his Transitional Compensation Agreement for the termination

scenario

-Options are assumed cashed out on December 31 2008 at each options intrinsic value assuming December 31 2008

closing stock price of $3.62

-Parachute payments for time vesting stock options were valued using Treasury Regulation Section l.280G-l

QA 24c
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Security Ownership of Directors and Officers

The following tabulation sets forth the number of common stock of the Company beneficially owned by each of

the directors and nominees for election to the Board by each named executive officer employed by the

Company and by all directors and officers as group as of February 13 2009 and the
percentage that these

shares bear to the total common stock outstanding on that date

Percent

Amount and Nature of ofName of Beneficial Owner Beneficial Ownership 12 Class

Bauer Paula 200373
Donovan Paul 159033
Francesconi Guy 241974
Gleeson John 110683
Halbrook John 260823
Hay Frederick 251453
Iglesias-Solomon Teresa 47063
McManaman William 5895134
Rogers Steven 943636
Stiles Richard 364844
Sutfin Judith 32501

Ward Jack 302783
Wilson Donald 108892456
All executive officers and directors 18 persons 5762043456 2.54%

The amount shown is less than /2% of the outstanding shares of such class

The information contained in this column is based upon information furnished to the Company by the

persons named above or obtained from records of the Company The nature of beneficial ownership for

shares shown in this column is sole voting and investment power unless otherwise indicated herein

Includes shares which such
person has right to acquire within sixty days through the exercise of stock

options as follows Ms Bauer1 1083 shares Messrs Donovan12083 shares Francesconi22500
shares Gleeson7333 shares Halbrook12083 shares Hay12083 shares Ms Iglesias-Solomon
2333 shares Messrs McManaman12083 shares Rogers4333 shares Stiles11750 shares Sutfin
25001 shares Wardl2083 shares Wilson95175 shares and all executive officers and directors
380328 shares

Includes shares of restricted stock granted by the Company as follows Ms Bauer810 shares Messrs
Donovan8 10 shares Gleeson1 060 shares Halbrook3692 shares Hay3692 shares Ms Iglesias

Solomonl330 shares Messrs McManaman14742 shares Rogers3025 shares Ward349 shares

and all executive officers and directors32085 shares

Includes shares held in trust with power to vote but without investment authority as follows Messrs
Francesconi 1697 shares McManaman4145 shares Stiles1557 shares Wilson1206 shares and
all executive officers and directors33088 shares

Includes shares held in trusts of which such persons are trustees having sole voting and investment power as

follows Mr Wilson2970 shares and all executive officers and directors10970 shares

Includes shares held in joint tenancy with the
spouses of certain of the directors and executive officers as to

which voting and investment power is shared as follows Messrs Rogers5103 shares Wilson9541
shares and all executive officers and directors2 1506 shares
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Section 16a Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Pursuant to Section 16 of the Exchange Act the Companys officers directors and holders of more than five

percent of the Companys common stock are required to file reports of their trading in equity securities of the

Company with the SEC the Company and NASDAQ Based solely on its review of the copies of such reports
received by it or written representations from certain reporting persons that no reports on Forms or were
required for those persons the Company believes that during 2008 its officers directors and more than five

percent stockholders filed the reports required by Section 16 on timely basis except through inadvertence one
Form for Mr Wilson relating to Restricted Stock Unit award of 5900 shares granted on February 2006
Deferred Stock Award of 1500 shares granted to Lori Burke on August 10 2007 missing from her Form filing

on February 2008 Deferred Stock Award of 1500 shares granted to Russell Campbell on August 10 2007
missing from his Form filing on February 2008 Deferred Stock Award of 1500 shares granted to John
Gvozdjak on August 10 2007 missing from his Form filing on February 2008 and Deferred Stock Award
of 1500 shares granted to Nancy Moore on August 10 2007 missing from her Form filing on February
2008 The errors for Mr Wilson Ms Burke Mr Campbell and Mr Gvozdjak were corrected with Form filings

on January 26 2009 The error for Ms Moore was corrected with Form filing on February 17 2009

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners

The following table lists the beneficial ownership of the Companys common stock with respect to all persons
owners other than those listed above known to the Company as of February 13 2009 to be the beneficial owner
of more than five

percent of such common stock

Amount and Nature of PercentName and Address of Beneficial Owner
Beneficial Ownership of Class

AMCORE Bank N.A 230006723 10.14%
501 Seventh Street Rockford IL 61104

Dimensional Fund Advisers LP 1288613 5.68%
Palisades West Building One

6300 Bee Cave Road

Austin Texas 78746

Second Curve Capital LLC 1143732 5.04%
237 Park Avenue 9th Floor

New York New York 10017

The information contained in this column is based upon information furnished to the Company by the

persons/owners named above or obtained from records of the Company

Includes 2300067 shares held by nominees acting on behalf of AMCORE Bank N.A Excludes 986031
shares held as trustee of various trusts over which AMCORE Bank N.A has neither voting nor investment

power and as to which beneficial ownership is disclaimed on these shares The nature of beneficial

ownership for the shares shown in this column is as follows sole voting power2083020 shares shared

voting powerno shares no voting power217047 shares sole investment power1760390 shares
shared investment power499926 shares and no investment power3975 shares

Although there is no affirmative duty or obligation to do so it is the general practice of AMCORE Bank
N.A to solicit the direction of trust beneficiaries or grantors with regard to the voting of shares held in trust

on all issues that are subject to vote by proxy The shares are then voted as directed by the trust beneficiary
or grantor If no direction is received the shares are not voted

32



AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

The Audit Committee is appointed by the Board of Directors to assist the Board in monitoring the integrity of

the financial reporting process
and systems of internal control of the Company the compliance by the

Company with legal and regulatory requirements and the independence and performance of the Companys

internal and external auditors The Board has written Audit Committee Charter and an Audit and Non-Audit

Services Policy For more information about the responsibilities of the Audit Committee please refer to the

Audit Committee Charter on our website at http//www.amcore.com/governance The requirements of the Audit

Committee Charter have been met

Each member of the Audit Committee is independent as defined in Rule 4200a15 of NASDAQs listing

standards The Audit Committee has designated Director John Gleeson as Audit Committee Financial Expert

The Audit Committee undertook process
in 2007 to review the selection of independent auditors for the 2007

audit as provided for in the Audit Committee Charter Following review of proposals submitted by variety of

independent registered public accounting firms on May 21 2007 the Audit Committee appointed Deloitte

Touche LLP as the new independent registered public accountants for the Company for the year ending

December 31 2007 and dismissed KPMG LLP KPMG who remained the Companys independent registered

public accountants until the appointment of Deloitte

The reports of KPMG on our consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31 2006

did not contain an adverse opinion or disclaimer of opinion and were not qualified or modified as to

uncertainty audit scope or accounting principles except the report of KPMG for the year ended December 31

2006 included paragraph indicating that the Company had adopted the fair value method of accounting for

stock-based compensation as required by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 123 Share-

Based Payment The audit reports of KPMG on managements assessment of the effectiveness of internal control

over financial reporting and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31

2006 did not contain any adverse opinion or disclaimer of opinion nor were they qualified or modified as to

uncertainty audit scope or accounting principles During the years ended December 31 2006 and the subsequent

period through May 21 2007 there were no reportable events described in Item 304a1v of Regulation S-K

and there were no disagreements with KPMG on any matter of accounting principles or practices financial

statement disclosure or auditing scope or procedures which disagreements if not resolved to KPMGs

satisfaction would have caused KPMG to make reference thereto in their reports on the financial statements for

such
years

The Audit Committee in its oversight role has reviewed and discussed the audited consolidated financial

statements with management and the Companys independent auditors Deloitte Touche LLP including

critical accounting policies and practices The Audit Committee has received and discussed report from

Deloitte Touche LLP containing the matters required to be discussed by the Statement on Auditing Standards

No 114 The Auditors Communication With Those Charged With Governance which replaced Statement on

Auditing Standards No 61 Communication with Audit Committees as amended by SAS No 90 Audit

Committee Communications The Audit Committee received the written disclosures and the letter from

Deloitte Touche LLP required by applicable requirements of the Public Accounting Oversight Board regarding

Deloitte Touch LLPs communications with the Audit Committee concerning independence

Management is responsible for the Companys financial reporting processes including its system
of internal

controls and for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States of America The Companys independent auditors are

responsible for auditing those consolidated financial statements Our responsibility is to monitor and review these

processes
It is not our duty or our responsibility to conduct auditing reviews or procedures We are not

employees of the Company and we are not professionally engaged in the practice of auditing Therefore we have

relied without independent verification on managements representation that the financial statements have been
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prepared with integrity and objectivity and in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States of America and on the representations of the independent auditors included in their report on the

Companys consolidated financial statements

Based upon the foregoing reviews and discussions with management and the independent auditors the Audit

Committee has recommended to the Board that the Companys audited consolidated financial statements and the

independent auditors report thereon dated March 16 2009 be included in the Companys Annual Report on

Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2008

Submitted by John Gleeson Chairman

Paula Bauer

Teresa Iglesias-Solomon

Steven Rogers

Members of the Audit Committee

Fees Paid to Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The following table presents fees for professional audit services rendered by Deloitte Touche LLP for the audit

of the Companys consolidated financial statements for the
years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 and fees

billed for other services rendered during those periods

2008 2007

Audit Fees $722200 $517975

Audit-related Fees 39000 78900
Tax Fees 21000 20000
All Other Fees 9800

Total $782200 $626675

Audit fees consisted of fees for professional services rendered for the audit of the Companys annual

consolidated financial statements and review of consolidated financial statements included in the

Companys 10-Q filings audit of internal control over financial reporting and services that are normally

provided in connection with statutory and regulatory filings or engagements

Audit-related fees consisted of fees for assurance and related services including employee benefit plan

audits audits in connection with internal control reviews and attest services that are not required by statute

or regulation and consulting on financial accounting and reporting standards

Tax fees consisted of fees for tax compliance tax advice and tax planning

All other fees include fees for services not included in the other three categories

The Audit committee pre-approved 100% of the services for both 2008 and 2007 For further information

see discussion of the Audit Committees pre-approval policies and procedures contained in Committees of

the Board of Directors

TRANSACTIONS WITH MANAGEMENT

Directors and principal officers of the Company and their associates were customers of and had transactions

with the Companys subsidiaries in the ordinary course of business during 2008 Comparable transactions may
be expected to take place in the future All outstanding loans commitments to loan transactions in repurchase

agreements and certificates of deposit and depository relationships with the Companys directors and principal

officers were made in the ordinary course of business were on substantially the same terms including interest

rates and collateral as those prevailing at the time for transactions with other persons and in the opinion of
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management of the Company did not involve more than the normal risk of collectability or present other

unfavorable features Transactions with directors and principal officers are processed following the terms and

conditions of the Federal Reserve System Regulation 12 C.F.R 215 Loans to Executive Officers Directors

and Principal Stockholders of Member Banks All transactions are processed following standard Company

approval processes
and reviewed approved or ratified as needed by the Chief Credit Officer Directors Loan

Committee or the AMCORE Bank Board of Directors

As of December 31 2008 various directors and officers of the Company were indebted to the Companys

subsidiaries in the amount of approximately $10.6 million This amount represents 0.28 percent of the

Companys subsidiaries outstanding loans and 4.06 percent of the Companys stockholders equity as of that

date The maximum aggregate amount of their indebtedness to the Companys subsidiaries during 2008 was

$13.1 million As of December 31 2008 associates of directors and officers of the Company were indebted in

the amount of $35868 to the Companys subsidiaries Further the Companys subsidiaries have additional

committed but unfunded lines of credit of $1.7 million to associates of directors and officers of the Company

The maximum aggregate amount of such associates indebtedness to the Companys subsidiaries during 2008

was $253474

ITEM 2APPROVAL OF AMENDMENTS TO THE COMPANYS AMENDED AND RESTATED

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

The Board of Directors is seeking approval of amendments to paragraphs and of Article FIFTH of the

Companys Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation the Articles to eliminate the classification of the

Companys Board of Directors the Declassification Amendments

nonbinding stockholder proposal to declassify the Board of Directors was approved by vote of stockholders

at the Companys 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders While the Board of Directors believes that the

classified board structure has provided the Company with certain benefits it recognizes the sentiment of the

Companys stockholders that the annual election of directors would enhance the Companys corporate

governance policies The Board is also aware that growing number of companies have been eliminating

classified board structure Therefore in light of such stockholder sentiment and corporate governance trends on

February 12 2009 the Board of Directors unanimously approved subject to stockholder approval at the meeting

the Declassification Amendments

The Board of Directors currently consists of nine directors divided into three classes with members of each class

serving staggered three-year terms There are currently three Class II directors whose terms expire at the

meeting three Class directors whose terms expire at the 2011 Annual Meeting of Stockholders and three Class

III directors whose terms expire at the 2010 Annual Meeting of Stockholders The Declassification Amendments

would not shorten the terms of directors elected before the Declassification Amendments are filed with the

Secretary of the State of Nevada Accordingly if the Declassification Amendments are approved by stockholders

at the meeting

the directors elected at the meeting will be elected for three-year term expiring at the 2012 Annual

Meeting of Stockholders

the Class III directors previously elected at the 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders will stand for

election at the 2010 Annual Meeting of Stockholders for one-year term

the Class directors previously elected at the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders together with the

directors elected at the 2010 Annual Meeting of Stockholders will stand for election at the 2011

Annual Meeting of Stockholders for one-year term and

all directors will stand for election at the 2012 Annual Meeting of Stockholders
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If the Declassification Amendments are not approved by stockholders at the meeting the Board of Directors will

remain classified

As set forth in the Articles approval of the Declassification Amendments requires the affirmative vote of the

holders of 70% of the voting power of the shares entitled to vote at the meeting The nonbinding stockholder

proposal to declassify the Board of Directors that was presented at the Companys 2008 Annual Meeting

received approximately 51% of the voting power of the shares entitled to vote at the Companys 2008 Annual

Meeting As of the record date for the meeting there were an aggregate of 22682317 votes eligible to be cast so

approval of the Declassification Amendments would require at least 15877622 affirmative votes Abstentions

broker non-votes and failures to vote have the same effect as vote against the Declassification Amendments

The proposed Declassification Amendments to the Articles are attached as Appendix to this proxy statement

In Appendix deletions are indicated by strikeouts and additions are indicated by underscores

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS VOTE FOR THE
DECLASSIFICATION AMENDMENTS

STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS FOR THE 2010 ANNUAL MEETING

Nominations for the Board of Directors

The Companys Bylaws provide that the notice of proposed stockholder nominations for the election of directors

must be timely and given to the Secretary of the Company prior to the meeting at which directors are to be

elected To be timely notice must be received by the Company not less than 50 days nor more than 75 days prior

to the meeting The date of an annual meeting of stockholders may be obtained from the Secretary of the

Company when determined by the Board of Directors

Notice to the Company from stockholder who proposes to nominate person at the annual meeting of

stockholders for election as director must contain certain information about that person as described in the

Director Nomination Process section earlier in this Proxy Statement The Company may also require any

proposed nominee to furnish other information reasonably required by the Company to determine the proposed

nominees eligibility to serve as director If the chairman of the meeting of stockholders determines that person

was not nominated in accordance with the foregoing procedures such
person

shall not be eligible for election as

director

Other Proposals

Stockholders may submit proposals appropriate for stockholder action at the Companys Annual Meeting

consistent with the regulations of the SEC For proposals to be considered for inclusion in the Proxy Statement

for the 2010 Annual Meeting the Company must receive them no later than November 16 2009 Such proposals

should be directed to AMCORE Financial Inc Attention Corporate Secretary 501 Seventh Street Rockford

Illinois 61104 Proposals to be considered from the floor of the 2010 Annual Meeting must be received no later

than April 29 2010

By order of the Board of Directors

Guy Francesconi

Secretary
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APPENDIX

AMCORE FINANCIAL INC

AMENDED AND RESTATED ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

Revised February 13 2009

FIFTHa The members of the governing board of the corporation shall be styled directors

The board of directors shall consist of not less than three nor more than fourteen directors the exact

number of directors to be determined from time to time by resolution adopted by affirmative vote of majority of

the entire board of directors The direetors shall be divided into three classes designated Class Class II and

Class III Eaeh class shall consist as nearly as may be possible of one third of the total number of directors

constituting the entire board of directors At the l986At the annual meeting of stockholders Class directors

shall be elected for one-year term Class II directors for two year term and Class III directors for three-year

term At each succeeding that is held in calendar year 2009 the successors of the directors whose terms expire at

that meeting shall be elected for term expiring at the annual meeting of stockholders beginning in 1957

successors to the class of directors whose term expires at that annual meeting shall be elected for three year

term If the number of directors is changed any increase or decrease shall be apportioned among the classes so as

to maintain the number of directors in each class as nearly equal as possible and any additional director of any

class elected to fill vacancy resulting from an increase in such class shall hold office for term that shall

coincide with the remaining term of that class but in no ease will decrease in the number of directors shorten

the-term of any incumbent director director shall held office until the annual meeting for the year
in which his

term expires and until his successor shall be elected and shall qualifythat is held in calendar year 2012 and until

such directors successors shall have been elected and qualified subject however to prior death resignation

retirement disqualification or removal from office Commencing at the annual meeting of stockholders that is

held in calendar year 2010 directors shall be elected annually for terms of one year except that any director in

office at the 2010 annual meeting whose term expires at the annual meeting of stockholders held in calendar year

2011 or 2012 shall continue to hold office until the end of the term for which such director was elected and until

such directors successor shall have been elected and qualified subject however to prior death resignation

retirement disqualification or removal from office At each annual meeting of stockholders thereafter all

directors shall be elected for terms expiring at the next annual meeting of stockholders and until such directors

successors shall have been elected and qualified subject however to prior death resignation retirement

disqualification or removal from office Any vacancy on the board of directors that results from an increase in the

number of directors may be filled by majority of the board of directors then in office provided that quorum is

present
and any other vacancy occurring in the board of directors may be filled by majority of the board of

directors then in office even if less than quorum or by sole remaining director Any director elected to fill

vacancy not resulting from an increase in the number of directors shall have the same remaining term as that of

his predecessor

Notwithstanding the foregoing whenever the holders of any one or more classes or series of preferred

stock issued by the corporation shall have the right voting separately by class or series to elect directors at an

annual or special meeting of stockholders the election term of office filling of vacancies and other features of

such directorships shall be governed by the terms of these Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation

applicable thereto and such directors so elected shall -rc be divided into classes pursuant to this Article Fifth

unless expressly provided by such terms

Advance notice of stockholder nominations for the election of directors shall be given in the manner

provided in Article III Section of the Bylaws

Notwithstanding any other provision of these Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation the

affirmative vote of holders of at least 70% of the voting power of the shares entitled to vote at an election of

directors shall be required to amend alter change or repeal or to adopt any provision as part of these Amended

and Restated Articles of Incorporation inconsistent with the purpose and intent of this Article Fifth and

Article III Section of the Bylaws

A-I
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PART

ITEM BUSINESS

General

AMCORE Financial Inc AMCORE or the Company is registered bank holding company incorporated

under the laws of the State of Nevada in 1982 The Companys corporate headquarters is located at 501 Seventh

Street in Rockford Illinois The operations are divided into four business segments Commercial Banking Retail

Banking Investment Management and Trust and Mortgage Banking For expanded discussion on the Companys

segments see Note 16 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements AMCORE owns directly or indirectly

all of the outstanding common stock of each of its subsidiaries and provides its subsidiaries with advice and

counsel on policies and operating matters among other things

AMCORE provides free of charge through the Companys Internet site at www.AMCORE.comISEC access to

annual reports on Form 10-K quarterly reports on Form 0-Q current reports on Form 8-K and amendments to

those reports as soon as reasonably practicable after electronically filing such material with the Securities and

Exchange Commission SEC However the information found on AMCOREs website is not part of this or any

other report The Company has adopted code of ethics applicable to all employees The AMCORE Financial

Inc Code of Ethics is posted on the Companys website at www.AMCORE.com/governance The Company

intends that this website posting and future postings of amendments waivers or modifications of the Code of

Ethics shall contain all required disclosures however Form 8-K will be filed for amendments and waivers in

order to meet the more stringent NASDAQ rules

Banking Segments

General AMCORE directly owns AMCORE Bank N.A Bank nationally chartered bank AMCORE also

indirectly owns Property Exchange Company qualified intermediary which is subsidiary of the Bank and

dissolved the consumer finance subsidiary AMCORE Consumer Finance Company Inc in June of 2007

Geographic and Economic Informalion The Bank conducts business at 74 branch locations throughout

northern Illinois and southern Wisconsin the Service Area The Banking segments Service Area is dispersed

among five basic economic areas the Rockford Illinois metropolitan area Rockford the Madison Wisconsin

metropolitan area Madison the Chicago Illinois metropolitan area Chicagoland the Milwaukee Wisconsin

suburbs Milwaukee and community banking branches which are not otherwise specified Community

Banking Locations in the Chicagoland Rockford Madison and Milwaukee economic areas are generally

bounded by Interstates 94 in the north 294 and 94 in the east 80 in the south and 90 and 39 in the west where

population growth homeownership and household income are high and where there is high concentration of

mid-sized businesses

Among the five economic areas Rockford has the highest concentration of manufacturing activities Community

banking has greater concentration of smaller-sized business and agricultural
activities All five economic

areas are experiencing higher unemployment compared to year ago with the Rockford Metropolitan Statistical

Areas or MSA showing the greatest increase in unemployment The Midwest economy continues to

experience deterioration in the real estate markets with tightened liquidity lengthening of the sales cycle

and declining collateral values

The Bank has locations throughout northern Illinois excluding the far northwestern counties including the

Illinois cities of Algonquin Antioch Aurora Belvidere Carol Stream Carpentersville Chicago Crystal Lake

Deerfield Dixon Elgin Freeport Joliet Lake Zurich Lombard Machesney Park McHenry Mendota Mt

Prospect Naperville Northbrook Oregon Orland Park Peru Princeton Rock Falls Rockford Roscoe St

Charles Schaumburg South Beloit Sterling Vernon Hills Wheaton Willowbrook Woodstock and the

surrounding communities The Bank conducts business at 20 locations throughout southern Wisconsin including



the Wisconsin cities of Argyle Baraboo Belleville Darlington Lodi Madison Monroe Mt Horeb New

Glarus Portage Sauk City Verona Wauwatosa and the surrounding communities

Through its banking locations AMCORE provides various consumer banking commercial banking and related

financial services AMCORE also conducts banking business through four supermarket branches which gives

the customer convenient access to banking services seven days week

Investment Portfolio and Policies As complement to its Commercial and Retail Banking segments the Bank

also carries securities investment portfolio The level of assets that the Company holds in securities is

dependent upon variety of factors Chief among these factors is the efficient utilization of the Companys

liquidity and capital After consideration of loan demand excess capital may be available to allocate to high-

quality investment activities that can generate additional income for the Company while still maintaining strong

capital ratios Conversely when capital ratios are on the decline securities may be decreased in order to preserve

capital In addition to producing additional interest spreads for the Bank the investment portfolio is used as

source of liquidity to manage interest rate risk and to meet pledging requirements of the Bank The investment

portfolio is governed by an investment policy designed to provide maximum flexibility in terms of liquidity and

to contain risk from changes in interest rates Individual holdings are diversified maximum terms and durations

are limited and minimum credit ratings are enforced and monitored The amount of securities that the Company

is permitted to invest in that have higher degree of risk of loss are defined and limited by Company policy The

investment portfolio is managed on day-to-day basis by third-party professional investment manager under

the direction of Company management within parameters established by the Company Portfolio performance

and changing risk profiles are regularly monitored by the Asset and Liability Committee ALCO and the

Investment Committee of AMCOREs Board of Directors

Sources of Funding Liquidity management is the process by which the Company through ALCO and its

capital markets and treasury function ensures that adequate liquid funds are available to meet its financial

commitments on timely basis at reasonable cost and within acceptable risk tolerances These commitments

include funding credit obligations to borrowers mortgage originations pending sale withdrawals by depositors

and repayment of debt when due or called maintaining adequate collateral for secured deposits and borrowings

payment of dividends by the Company payment of operating expenses funding capital expenditures and

maintaining deposit reserve requirements

Liquidity is derived primarily from bank-issued deposit growth and retention principal and interest payments on

loans principal and interest payments from investment securities sale maturity and prepayment of investment

securities net cash provided by operations and access to other funding sources Other funding sources include

brokered certificates of deposit CD federal funds purchased lines Fed Funds Federal Reserve Bank discount

window advances Federal Home Loan Bank FHLB advances repurchase agreements subordinated debentures

the sale or securitization of loans balances maintained at correspondent banks and access to other capital market

instruments Bank-issued deposits which exclude wholesale deposits are generally considered by management

to be the primary most stable and most cost-effective source of funding and liquidity The Bank also has

capacity over time to place additional brokered CDs as source of mid to long-term funds

Retail Banking Segment Retail banking provides services to individual customers through the Banks branch

locations The services provided by retail banking include direct and indirect lending checking savings money

market accounts CDs safe deposit rental ATMs and other traditional and electronic services

Historically home equity lending had the lowest risk profile due to the nature of the collateral Recent declines in

home values have increased the risk profile of home equity lending Installment loans have an intermediate risk

due to the lower principal amounts and the depreciating nature of the collateral Personal lines and overdraft

protection have the highest degree of risk since the loans are unsecured The bankcard programs are fee service



for originating the relationship and the Bank retains no credit risk The Bank manages its retail lending risk via

centralized credit process risk scoring loan-to-value and other underwriting standards and knowledge of its

customers and their credit history As general rule the Bank does not actively engage in retail lending activities

outside its geographic market areas For segment financial information see Note 16 of the Notes to Consolidated

Financial Statements

Commercial Banking Segment Commercial banking provides services to middle market and small business

customers through the Banks branch locations The services provided by commercial banking include lending

business checking and deposits treasury management and other traditional as well as electronic services

Commercial lending has higher risk profile than does retail lending due to the larger dollar amounts involved

the nature of the collateral and greater variety of economic risks that could potentially affect the loan customer

The Bank manages its commercial lending risks through centralized underwriting process
serial sign-off

requirements as dollar amounts increase lending limits monitoring concentrations regular loan review and

grading of credits and an active work-out management process
for troubled credits For segment financial

information see Note 16 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

The Bank is lender in the Small Business Administration SBA program with total loan portfolio of $34

million as of December 31 2008 and has earned National Preferred Lender Status from the SBA AMCORE has

also achieved National Express Lender status national designation which significantly shortens the turnaround

time from application to loan acceptance The Bank received rating of Acceptable from the most recent audit

by the SBA SBA loans are popular with small business customers offering them another source of financing

Mortgage Banking Segment The Mortgage Banking Segment provides variety of mortgage lending products

to meet its customers needs The Company sells most of the loans it originates to national mortgage services

company which provides private-label loan processing and servicing support on both sold and retained loans

relationship that the Company entered into during first quarter 2007 See Note 16 of the Notes to Consolidated

Financial Statements

As part of this arrangement the Company sold the majority of its Originated Mortgage Servicing Rights OMSR

portfolio The arrangement offers AMCORE greater breadth of products more competitive pricing and greater

processing efficiencies As result of this arrangement AMCORE better controls the risks associated with its

mortgage banking business Additionally the cost structure in the mortgage banking business has become more

variable in nature allowing the Company to better absorb fluctuations in mortgage volumes These include the

costs of originating loans that are netted against mortgage banking income or interest income as well as

processing and servicing costs of loans retained in the Banks portfolio and that are component of operating

expenses The transition to the new processing and servicing arrangement was completed during the second

quarter of 2007

Other Financial Services The Bank provides various services to consumers commercial customers and

correspondent banks Services available include safe deposit box rental securities safekeeping international

services remote deposit capture and lock box among other things

The Bank also offers several electronic banking services to commercial and retail customers AMCORE Online

provides retail customers with online capability to access deposit and loan account balances transfer funds

between accounts make loan payments view checks and pay bills AMCORE Online For Business facilitates

access to commercial customers accounts via personal computers It also permits the transfer of funds between

accounts and the initiation of wire transfers and ACH activity to accounts at other financial institutions The

AMCORE TeleBank service provides retail and commercial customers the opportunity to use their telephone 24

hours day to obtain balance and other information on their checking and savings accounts certificates of

deposit personal installment loans and retail mortgage loans all from completely automated system

Automated teller machines located throughout AMCORE market area make banking transactions available to

customers when the bank facilities or hours of operation are not convenient



Investment Management and Trust Segment Effective December 31 2008 AMCORE Investment Group
N.A the Investment Group nationally chartered non-depository bank was merged into AMCORE Bank
N.A Bank The Investment Group operates as separate business segment of the Bank and provides its clients

with wealth management services which include trust services estate administration and financial planning The

Investment Group also provides employee benefit plan administration and recordkeeping services

AMCORE Investment Services Inc AIS is now wholly owned subsidiary of the Bank which is wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company AIS was previously wholly owned subsidiary of the Investment Group until

its merger into the Bank on December 31 2008 AIS is incorporated under the laws of the State of Illinois and is

member of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority FINRA AIS is fullservice brokerage company that

offers full
range of investment alternatives including annuities mutual funds stocks bonds and other insurance

products AIS customers can get real time stock market quotes investment account information and place trades

during market hours execution 24 hours day days week through AMCORETrade.com

In 2005 the Company transitioned assets of its three Company-managed Vintage equity funds into two mutual

funds managed by Federated Investors Inc and sold its asset management subsidiary Investors Management

Group Ltd 1MG to West Bancorporation Inc With these transactions AMCORE transitioned from being

developer of proprietary investment products to being provider that offers its customers wider array of

investment product choices The results of 1MG for prior periods the related sale and subsequent adjustments are

reported as discontinued operations

Competition

Active competition exists for all services offered by AMCOREs bank and nonbank affiliates with other

national and state banks savings and loan associations credit unions finance companies personal loan

companies brokerage and mutual fund companies mortgage bankers insurance agencies financial advisory

services and other financial institutions serving the affiliates respective market areas The principal competitive
factors in the banking and financial services industry are quality of services to customers ease of access to

services and pricing of services including interest rates paid on deposits interest rates charged on loans and fees

charged for fiduciary and other professional services

Employment

AMCORE had 1272 fulltime equivalent employees as of February 13 2009 AMCORE provides variety of

benefit plans to its employees including health dental group term life and disability insurance childcare

reimbursement flexible spending accounts retirement profit sharing 401k stock option stock purchase and

dividend reinvestment plans

Supervision and Regulation

AMCORE is subject to regulations under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956 as amended the Act and

is registered with the Federal Reserve Board FRB under the Act AMCORE is required by the Act to file

quarterly and annual reports of its operations and such additional information as the FRB may require and is

subject along with its subsidiaries to examination by the FRB

The acquisition of five percent or more of the voting shares or all or substantially all of the assets of any bank by
bank holding company requires the prior approval of the FRB and is subject to certain other federal and state

law limitations The Act also prohibits with certain exceptions bank holding company from acquiring direct or

indirect ownership or control of more than five percent of the voting shares of any company which is not bank

and from engaging in any business other than banking managing and controlling banks or furnishing services to

banks and their subsidiaries except that holding companies may engage in and may own shares of companies

engaged in certain businesses found by the FRB to be so closely related to banking as to be proper incident

thereto



Under current regulations of the FRB bank holding company and its nonbank subsidiaries are permitted

among other activities to engage in such bankingrelated businesses as sales and consumer finance equipment

leasing computer service bureau and software operations mortgage banking brokerage and financial advisory

services The Act does not place territorial restrictions on the activities of nonbank subsidiaries of bank holding

companies In addition federal legislation prohibits acquisition of control of bank or bank holding company
without prior notice to certain federal bank regulators Control is defined in certain cases as acquisition of ten

percent or more of the outstanding shares of bank or bank holding company

There are number of obligations and restrictions imposed on bank holding companies and their depository

institution subsidiaries by federal law and regulatory policy that are designed to reduce potential loss
exposure to

the depositors of such depository institutions and to the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation FDIC insurance

fund in the event the depository institution becomes in danger of default or is in default For example under

policy of the Federal Reserve with respect to bank holding company operations bank holding company is

required to serve as source of financial strength to its subsidiary depository institutions and commit resources to

support such institutions in circumstances where it might not do so absent such policy In addition the cross-

guarantee provisions of federal law require insured depository institutions under common control to reimburse

the FDIC for
any

loss suffered or reasonably anticipated as result of the default of commonly controlled

insured depository institution or for any assistance provided by the FDIC to commonly controlled insured

depository institution in danger of default

The federal banking agencies have broad powers under current federal law to take prompt corrective action to

resolve problems of insured depository institutions In general the extent of these powers depends upon whether

the institutions in question are well-capitalized adequately capitalized undercapitalized significantly

undercapitalized or critically undercapitalized as such terms are defined under regulations issued by each of

the federal banking agencies In addition federal banking agencies have the authority to impose higher minimum

capital ratios beyond the well-capitalized level depending on the risk profile and performance of the insured

depository institution

In late 1992 Congress passed the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act of 1992 that included

many provisions that have had significant effects on the cost structure and operational and managerial standards

of commercial banks This Act contains provisions that revised bank supervision and regulation including

among many other things the monitoring of capital levels additional management reporting and external audit

requirements and the addition of consumer provisions that include Truth-in-Savings disclosures

The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act GLB Act was enacted November 1999 and among other things established

comprehensive framework to permit affiliations among commercial banks insurance companies and securities

firms To date the GLB Act has not materially affected the Companys operations However to the extent the

GLB Act permits banks securities firms and insurance companies to affiliate the financial services industry may
experience further consolidation This could result in growing number of larger financial institutions that offer

wider variety of financial services than the Company currently offers and that can aggressively compete in the

markets the Company currently serves

Effective in 2007 pursuant to the Federal Deposit Insurance Reform Act of 2005 and implementing regulations

FDIC-insured financial institutions are subject to new risk-based premium assessment system that significantly

increases the premiums that are paid on FDIC-insured deposits As part of the new rules the Bank like many
financial institutions was eligible for one-time assessment credit that offset the increase in premiums The

credit completely offset the Banks 2007 premium increase and offset portion of the 2008 increase This partial

offset notwithstanding the Bank realized significant increase in its FDIC premiums in 2008

In response to the financial crises affecting the banking system and financial markets and going concern threats

to investment banks and other financial institutions subsequent to the end of third quarter 2008 Congress

enacted and the President signed into law the Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008 ESA Shortly



thereafter the Federal banking agencies announced the Troubled Asset Relief Program TARP and Capital

Purchase Program CPP Collectively these actions provided variety of programs that financial institutions

could participate in including the potential sale of certain troubled loans to the United States Government sale

of preferred stock to the United States Treasury and temporary expansion of FDIC insured deposit levels some

voluntary and some automatic These programs continue to evolve as the administration strives to keep pace

with rapidly changing economic conditions AMCORE continues to review these programs for their potential to

add value to its customers and business and the potential impact of the ESA or related programs on its future

financial position results of operation cash flows or liquidity

It is not yet clear what impact the ESA TARP including the CPP the temporary FDIC guarantee expansion and

other liquidity and funding initiatives of the FRB and other agencies and any additional programs that may be

initiated in the future will ultimately have on the financial markets and the other difficulties described above

including the extreme levels of volatility and limited credit availability currently being experienced or on the

U.S banking and financial industries and the broader U.S and global economies

The foregoing references to applicable statutes and regulations are brief summaries thereof and are not intended

to be complete and are qualified in their entirety by reference to the full text of such statutes and regulations

AMCORE is supervised and examined by the FRB The Bank is supervised and regularly examined by the Office

of the Comptroller of the Currency 0CC and is subject to examination by the FRB In addition the Bank is

subject to periodic examination by the FDIC AIS is supervised and examined by FINRA and the SEC

Regulatory Agreements

On May 31 2005 the Bank entered into Formal Agreement with the 0CC the Banks primary regulator to

strengthen the Banks consumer compliance program On August 10 2006 the Bank entered into Consent

Order with the 0CC to strengthen its compliance monitoring policies procedures training and overall program

relating to the Bank Secrecy Act/Anti-Money Laundering BSA/AML regulations The commitments and

requirements imposed by these two items were completed and on April 14 2008 the Bank was notified that the

0CC had terminated the Formal Agreement and the Consent Order

On May 15 2008 the Bank entered into written agreement the Agreement with the 0CC The Agreement

describes commitments made by the Bank to address and strengthen banking practices relating to asset quality

and the overall administration of the credit function at the Bank The Bank has implemented enhancements to its

credit processes to address the matters identified by the 0CC and continues its efforts to comply with all the

requirements specified in the Agreement In the meantime the Agreement results in the Banks ineligibility for

certain actions and expedited approvals without the prior written consent and approval of the 0CC These actions

include among other things the appointment of directors and senior executives making or agreeing to make

certain payments to executives or directors business combinations and branching

Subsidiary Dividends and Capital

Legal limitations exist as to the extent to which the Bank can lend or pay dividends to AMCORE and/or its

affiliates The payment of dividends by national bank without prior regulatory approval is limited to the current

years net income plus the adjusted retained net income for the two preceding years The payment of dividends

by any bank or bank holding company is affected by the requirement to maintain adequate capital pursuant to the

capital adequacy guidelines issued by the FRB and regulations issued by the FDIC and the 0CC collectively the

Agencies Dividends paid by the Bank to AMCORE Financial Inc would be prohibited if the effect thereof

would cause the Banks capital to be reduced below applicable minimum capital requirements In 2009

dividends are not expected to be paid by the Bank There were no loans outstanding from the Bank to affiliates at

December 31 2008 See Note 17 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included under Item



The FRB issues riskbased capital guidelines for bank holding companies These capital rules require minimum

capital levels as percent of riskweighted assets In order to be adequately capitalized under these guidelines

banking organizations must have minimum capital ratios of 4% and 8% for Tier capital and total capital

respectively The FRB also established leverage capital requirements intended primarily to establish minimum

capital requirements for those banking organizations that have historically invested significant portion of their

funds in low risk assets Federally supervised banks are required to maintain minimum leverage ratio of not less

than 4% Refer to the Liquidity and Capital Management section of Item for summary of AMCOREs capital

ratios as of December 31 2008 and 2007 See also Note 18 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

included under Item

Governmental Monetary Policies and Economic Conditions

The earnings of all subsidiaries are affected not only by general economic conditions but also by the policies of

various regulatory authorities In particular the FRB influences general economic conditions and interest rates

through various monetary policies and tools It does so primarily through openmarket operations in U.S

Government securities varying the discount rate on member and non-member bank borrowings and setting

reserve requirements against bank deposits FRB monetary policies have had significant effect on the operating

results of banks in the past and are expected to do so in the future The general effect of such policies upon the

future business and earnings of each of the subsidiary companies cannot accurately be predicted

Interest rate sensitivity has major impact on the earnings of banks As market rates change yields earned on

assets may not necessarily move to the same degree as rates paid on liabilities For this reason AMCORE

attempts to minimize earnings volatility related to fluctuations in interest rates through the use of formal asset

liability management program and certain derivative activities See Item 7A and Note of the Notes to

Consolidated Financial Statements included under Item for additional discussion of interest rate sensitivity and

related derivative activities

Executive Officers of the Registrant

The following table contains certain information about the executive officers of AMCORE There are no family

relationships between any director or executive officer of AMCORE

Name Age Principal Occupation Within the Last Five Years

William McManaman 61 Chairman of the Board since May 2008 and Director of the Company since

1997 Chief Executive Officer of the Company and Chairman of the Board of

the Bank since February 2008 Previously Executive Vice President and Chief

Financial Officer Ubiquity Brands from April 2006 to September 2007 and

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of First Health Group

Corporation from March 2004 until January 2005 Prior to that Executive Vice

President and Chief Financial Officer of Aurora Foods Inc until March 2004

Donald Wilson 49 President and Chief Operating Officer of AMCORE since August 2007 and

Director of the Bank since February 2006 and was Executive Vice President

and Chief Financial Officer from February 2006 to August 2007 He was

previously Senior Vice President and Corporate Treasurer of Marshall

Ilsley Corporation

Judith Cane Sutfin 47 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of AMCORE since

December 2007 and Director of the Bank since January 2008 Previously

held various executive positions at LaSalle Bank Corporation Chicago

Illinois with the most recent position being that of Executive Vice President

and Head of Business Decision Support



Name Age Principal Occupation Within the Last Five Years

Lori Burke 56 Executive Vice President Administrative Services of the Company since May

2008 and Executive Vice President Administrative Services of the Bank since

October 2007 Executive Vice President and Chief Human Resources Officer

from October 2006 to October 2007 and previously Senior Vice President and

Human Resources Manager

Russell Campbell 52 Executive Vice President Investment Group since January 2009 Executive

Vice President and Director of AIGNA from March 2007 to December 2008

Previously President and Chief Executive Officer at ABN AMRO Asset

Management Holdings Inc

Guy Francesconi 49 Executive Vice President and General Counsel since February 2006

Corporate Secretary since May 2008 and Corporate Secretary of the Bank

since October 2007 Previously General Counsel to Merrill Lynch Capital and

Merrill Lynch Business Financial Services

John Gvozdjak 52 Senior Vice President and Director of Operations/Technology of the Bank

since March 2004

Kathy Roos 49 Senior Vice President Mortgage Group since February 2009 Senior Vice

President and Regional Sales Manager of the Bank since January 2008

Previously Mortgage Sales Manager since February 2006 Previous to that

Mortgage Loan Originator of the Bank until November 2005 and at Rockford

Bank and Trust from December 2005 to January 2006

Richard Stiles 53 Executive Vice President Commercial Banking Group and Director of the

Bank since April 2007 Previously Senior Vice President in the commercial

banking group for Popular Inc

Thomas Szmanda 49 Executive Vice President Retail Banking Group since September 2005 and

Director of the Bank since November 2005 Previously Senior Vice President

and Chief Retail Officer of the Bank



ITEM 1A Risk Factors

The Company faces variety of risks that are inherent in its business including interest rate credit liquidity

capital price/market transaction/operation compliance/legal strategic and reputation Following is discussion

of these risk factors While the Companys business financial condition and results of operations could be

harmed by any of the following risks or other factors discussed elsewhere in this report including Managements

Discussion and Analysis and Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements the mere existence of risk is not

necessarily reason for concern However the following risks could cause actual results to materially differ from

those discussed in any forward-looking statement

Interest Rate Risk

As part of its normal operations the Company like most financial institutions is subject to interest-rate risk on

the interest-earning assets in which it invests primarily loans and securities and the interest-bearing liabilities

with which it funds primarily customer deposits brokered deposits and borrowed funds This includes the risk

that interest-earning assets may be more responsive to changes in interest rates than interest-bearing liabilities or

vice versa repricing risk the risk that the individual interest rates or rate indices underlying various interest-

earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities may not change to the same degree over given time period basis

risk and the risk of changing interest rate relationships across the spectrum of interest-earning asset and interest-

bearing liability maturities yield curve risk

Interest rates are sensitive to many factors that are beyond the Companys control including general economic

conditions the policies of various governmental and regulatory agencies and competition These factors may

cause fluctuations in interest rates that adversely affect the fair market values of the Companys financial

instruments cash flows and net income

Credit Risk

The Company is exposed to the risk that third parties that owe it money securities or other assets will not

perform their obligations Credit risk arises anytime the Company extends commits invests or otherwise

exposes Company funds through contractual agreements whether reflected on or off the balance sheet These

parties may default on their obligations due to bankruptcy lack of liquidity operational failure or other reasons

Credit risk includes the risk that the Companys rights against third parties including guarantors may not be

enforceable or realizable in all circumstances

The Companys credit risk is concentrated in its loan portfolio including commitments and its investment

portfolio The Company also has credit risk through other financial instruments including derivative contracts

and Company owned life insurance policies Credit risk is affected by variety of factors including the credit

worthiness of the borrower or other party the sufficiency of underlying collateral the enforceability of third-

party guarantees errors in underwriting changing economic and industry conditions and concentrations of credit

by loan type terms or geographic area changes in the financial condition of the borrower or other party and by

credit and underwriting policies Due to declining economic conditions and the Banks concentration in

commercial real estate loans credit risk in the Banks portfolio is high with significant deterioration in asset

quality and collateral values

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the potential that the Company will be unable to meet its obligations as they come due capitalize

on growth opportunities as they arise or pay regular dividends because of an inability to liquidate assets or

obtain adequate funding in timely basis at reasonable cost and within acceptable risk tolerances

Liquidity is required to fund credit obligations to borrowers mortgage originations pending sale withdrawals by

depositors repayment of debt when due or called dividends to shareholders operating expenses and capital



expenditures among other things Liquidity is derived primarily from bank-issued deposit growth and retention

principal and interest payments on loans principal and interest payments from investment securities sale

maturity and prepayment of investment securities net cash provided from operations and access to other funding

sources

The Companys liquidity can be affected by variety of factors including general economic conditions market

disruption operational problems affecting third parties or the Company unfavorable pricing competition the

Companys credit rating and regulatory restrictions applicable to the Company and its subsidiaries

Capital Risk

Maintaining sufficient capital serves as buffer against potential credit and other losses that the Company may
encounter during difficult times There are five levels of capital defined by regulation well-capitalized

adequately capitalized undercapitalized significantly undercapitalized and critically undercapitalized

AMCORE like many financial institutions has historically maintained capital at or above the well-capitalized

minimum Also like many financial institutions this year AMCORE has experienced steady declines in its

capital levels as credit losses have risen Capital risk includes the potential effect on the Companys reputation as

well as certain other potential consequences should the capital level fall below well-capitalized These

consequences could include among other things changes in the Companys borrowing costs and terms from

regulatory authorities and other third parties the Banks FDIC deposit insurance premiums and AMCOREs
ability to access the brokered CD markets

Price/Market Risk

Price/market risk is the risk to earnings or capital arising from adverse changes in the value of financial

instruments While this includes credit and liquidity risk the Company considers interest-rate risk to be its most

significant market risk When interest rates increase the fair value of financial instrument on the asset side of

the balance sheet will decrease Conversely when rates decline the fair value of the same instrument will

increase

While this relationship applies to all fixed-rate financial instruments the primary instruments whose carrying

values are affected by price/market risk are traded instruments Since the Company currently has only an

available-for-sale portfolio and does not maintain investment securities in trading account market fluctuations

are recorded through equity and not the statements of operations On-going adverse fair values could cause some

security fair values to deteriorate to the extent that they are considered to be other than temporary At that time

the Company would be required to write-down security values to their fair value as charge to earnings

Transaction/Operation Risk

Transaction/operation risk is function of internal controls information systems employee integrity and

operating processes Significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in internal processes controls staff or

systems could lead to impairment of liquidity financial loss disruption of the business liability to clients

regulatory intervention or damage to the Companys reputation For example the Company is highly dependent

on its ability to process on daily basis large number of transactions Failure of financial accounting data

processing or other operating systems and controls to operate properly becoming disabled or to keep pace with

increasing volumes could adversely affect the Companys ability to capture process and accurately report these

transactions

Compliance/Legal Risk

The Company is subject to compliance with an expanding body of regulatory supervisory and examination

requirements including capital adequacy safety/soundness customer privacy anti-money laundering

truth-in-savings/lending and financial reporting to name few Failure or the inability to comply with these
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various requirements can lead to diminished reputation and investor confidence reduced franchise value loss of

business curtailment of expansion opportunities fines and penalties intervention or sanctions by regulators and

costly litigation or expensive additional controls and systems Refer to discussion included in Key Initiatives and

Other Significant Items and Events in Item for summary of recent regulatory developments

Strategic Risk

Strategic risk is the potential for adverse consequences to the Company of poor business decisions or improper

implementation of those decisions It includes identifying and defining goals for the continued growth and

success of the Company developing strategies to accomplish the goals and acquiring developing and retaining

the physical resources and human capital necessary to successfully execute the strategies

Presently the Company has four primary strategic initiatives credit quality cost efficiencies capital and

liquidity and broadening customer relationships The Companys ability to successfully execute these initiatives

depends upon variety of factors including its ability to attract and retain experienced personnel the continued

availability of desirable business opportunities and locations the competitive responses from other financial

institutions in its new market areas the stability of the Banks commercial real estate loan portfolio and the

ability to manage client relationships across all four of its business segments For an expanded discussion on

these initiatives see Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

Operations

Reputation Risk

Reputation risk arises from the possibility that negative publicity regarding the Companys business practices

whether true or not will cause decline in its customer base or result in costly litigation In service industry

such as the financial services industry where product choices between companies are not always clearly

distinguishable and which in many cases are interchangeable companys reputation for honesty fair-dealing

and good corporate governance may be one of its most important assets Loss of or damage to that reputation can

have severe consequences

Additional Risk Factors

There can be no assurance that the recently enacted legislation will help stabilize the U.S financial system

On October 2008 President Bush signed into law the Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008 the

ESA The legislation was the result of proposal by Treasury Secretary Henry Paulson to the U.S Congress

on September 20 2008 in
response to the financial crises affecting the banking system and financial markets and

going concern threats to investment banks and other financial institutions The U.S Treasury and banking

regulators are implementing number of programs under this legislation to address capital and liquidity issues in

the banking system There can be no assurance however as to the actual impact that the ESA will have on the

Company or on the financial markets including the extreme levels of volatility and limited credit availability

currently being experienced The failure of the ESA to help stabilize the financial markets and continuation or

worsening of current financial market conditions could materially and adversely affect the Companys business

financial condition results of operations access to credit or the trading price of its common stock Changes to the

plan are presently under consideration by the new administration that may add to or change these provisions

Current levels of market volatility are unprecedented

The capital and credit markets have been experiencing volatility and disruption for more than 12 months In

recent weeks the volatility and disruption has reached unprecedented levels In some cases the markets have

produced downward
pressure on stock prices and credit availability for certain issuers without regard to those

issuers underlying financial strength If current levels of market disruption and volatility continue or worsen
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there can be no assurance that AMCORE will not experience an adverse effect which may be material on the

Companys ability to access capital and on its business financial condition and results of operations

Current market developments may adversely affect AMCOREs industry business financial condition

and results of operations

Dramatic declines in the housing market during the prior year with falling home prices and increasing

foreclosures and unemployment have resulted in significant write-downs of asset values by financial institutions

including government-sponsored entities and major commercial and investment banks Reflecting concern about

the stability of the financial markets generally and the strength of counterparties many lenders and institutional

investors have reduced and in some cases ceased to provide funding to borrowers including other financial

institutions The resulting lack of available credit lack of confidence in the financial sector increased volatility

in the financial markets and reduced business activity could materially and adversely affect the Companys

business financial condition and results of operations For example

Market developments may affect borrower confidence levels behaviors and financial condition which

could impact their borrowing and payment activities and the Companys ability to assess

creditworthiness which could impact lending activities charge-offs and provision for loan losses

Estimates of inherent losses in the loan portfolio rely on complex judgments including forecasts of

economic conditions and may no longer be capable of accurate estimation

The ability to borrow from other financial institutions or other funding transactions could be adversely

affected

AMCORE may be required to pay significantly higher Federal Deposit Insurance Corp FDIC premiums

due to depletion of the insurance fund and reduction of the ratio of reserves to insured deposits

Increased regulation in the financial services industry including as result of the ESA could increase

compliance costs and challenges and limit the Companys ability to pursue
business opportunities

Industry competition could intensify as result of the increasing consolidation of financial services

companies in connection with current market conditions

The soundness of other financial institutions could adversely affect AMCORE

Financial services institutions are interrelated as result of trading clearing counterparty or other relationships

The Company has exposure to many different industries and counterparties and routinely executes transactions

with counterparties in the financial services industry including brokers and dealers commercial banks

investment banks mutual and hedge funds and other institutional clients Many of these transactions expose

AMCORE to credit risk in the event of default of the counterparty or client In addition AMCOREs credit risk

may be exacerbated when the collateral held by it cannot be realized or is liquidated at prices not sufficient to

recover the full amount of the loan investment or derivative exposure There is no assurance that any such losses

would not materially and adversely affect AMCOREs financial condition and results of operations

ITEM lB Unresolved Staff Comments

None

ITEM PROPERTIES

On December 31 2008 AMCORE occupied 82 locations of which 49 were owned and 33 were leased The

Commercial Retail and Mortgage Banking segments occupied 74 locations of which 45 were owned and 29

were leased The Investment Management and Trust segment leased one facility All of these locations are

considered by management to be well maintained and adequate for the purpose intended See Item and Note

of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included under Item of this document for further information

on properties
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During the second quarter 2008 the Bank joined the MoneyPass and Sum surcharge-free ATM networks As

result AMCORE cardholders now have access to surcharge-free transactions at more than 19000 ATMs across
the United States including large concentration of ATMs conveniently located in the same geographic regions
as AMCORE customers These new relationships expand AMCOREs channel of ATMs from 324 at the

beginning of 2008 some of which were owned and some co-branded to more than 1300 at the end of 2008

throughout Illinois and Wisconsin

ITEM LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Management believes that no litigation is threatened or pending in which the Company faces reasonable

possibility of loss or exposure which will materially affect the Companys consolidated financial position or
consolidated results of operations Since the Companys subsidiaries act as depositories of funds trustee and

escrow agents they occasionally are named as defendants in lawsuits involving claims to the ownership of funds

in particular accounts The Bank is also subject to counterclaims from defendants in connection with collection

actions brought by the Bank This and other litigation is incidental to the Companys business

During fourth quarter 2007 as member of the VISA Inc organization VISA the Company accrued

$653000 liability for its proportionate share of various claims against VISA This amount consisted of $217000
of claims settled by VISA but not yet paid $68000 estimate of claims considered probable by VISA pursuant
to Statement of Financial Accounting Standards SFAS No Accounting for Contingencies and $368000

representing the Companys estimate of certain indemnification obligations pursuant to Financial Interpretation

FIN No 45 Guarantors Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees Including Indirect

Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others

During first quarter 2008 the Company received partial redemption distribution in connection with the initial

public offering IPO of VISA for which $1.0 million net security gain was recorded The gain included

partial reversal of litigation and guaranty losses described above to the extent they related to the Companys
share of IPO proceeds retained in escrow by VISA to fund the losses The remaining contingent liability is

$338000

During fourth quarter 2008 VISA Inc reached settlement in certain litigation with Discover Financial Services

Discover The amount of the settlement with Discover exceeded the amount retained in escrow by VISA Inc
from the proceeds of its IPO VISA Inc issued sufficient escrowed stock to cover the additional reserve

requirement so no additional liability for this settlement was required to be accrued by the Company The

Company has determined that its share of the additional reserve requirements to settle the litigation with

Discover is not material with respect to its consolidated financial statements as December 31 2008

ITEM SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of 2008

13



PART II

ITEM MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED

STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

See Items and of this document for information on the Companys stock price ranges and dividends

AMCOREs common stock trades on the NASDAQ Stock Market under the symbol AMFI There were

approximately 9000 holders of record of AMCOREs common stock as of March 2009 See Item 12 of this

document for information on the Companys equity compensation plans

Historically the Companys policy had been to declare regular quarterly dividends based upon the Companys

earnings financial position capital requirements and such other factors deemed relevant by the Board of

Directors the Board This dividend policy was subject to change however and the payment of dividends was

suspended during fourth quarter 2008 The payment of dividends on the Common Stock is also subject to

regulatory capital requirements For further information on quarterly dividend payments see the Condensed

Quarterly Earnings and Stock Price Summary at the end of Item

The Companys principal source of funds for dividend payments to its stockholders is dividends received from

the Bank Under applicable banking laws the declaration of dividends by the Bank in any year in excess of its

net profits as defined for that year combined with its retained net profits of the preceding two years must be

approved by the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency For further discussion of restrictions on the payment

of dividends see Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of the Results of Operations and Financial

Condition and Note 17 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The following table presents information relating to all Company repurchases of common stock during the fourth

quarter of 2008

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Maximum or
Total of Shares Approx Dollar Value of

Total Purchased as Part of Shares that May Yet Be

of Shares Average Price Publicly Announced Purchased Under the

Period Purchased Paid per Share Plans or Programs Plans or Programs

October 1312008 3953 $18.44

November 30 2008

December 31 2008

Total during quarter
3953 $18.44

The Company does not have formally announced Repurchase Program in place at this time however the

Company may periodically repurchase shares in open-market transactions in accordance with Exchange Act Rule

lOb-I through limited group
of brokers These repurchases are used to replenish the Companys treasury stock

for re-issuances related to stock option exercises and other employee benefit plans The repurchased shares above

are direct repurchases of unvested shares from terminated participants at their original discounted price related

to the administration of the Amended and Restated AMCORE Stock Option Advantage Plan During the fourth

quarter the Company suspended its practice of repurchasing any unvested shares owned by terminated

participant There were no shares tendered in the fourth quarter to effect stock option exercise transactions in the

numbers above On February 13 2009 the Board passed resolution that the Company would not increase its

debt pay
dividends or repurchase treasury

stock without prior approval from the Board
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ITEM SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Five Year Comparison of Selected Financial Data

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

in thousands except per share data
FOR THE YEAR
Interest income 272756 344016 339176 280609 232441
Interest expense 140871 183432 174218 118975 80855

Net interest income 131885 160584 164958 161634 151586
Provision for Joan losses 202716 29087 10120 15194 15530
Non-interest income 74602 70997 75589 66413 65914
Operating expenses 172479 165339 165365 145365 137307

Loss Income from continuing operations before

income taxes 168708 37155 65062 67488 64663
Income tax benefit expense 70909 8914 18035 19501 18632

Loss Income from continuing operations 97799 28241 47027 47987 46031
Discontinued operations

Loss Income from discontinued operations 131 707 629
Income tax benefit expense 379 3753 294

Income loss from discontinued operations 248 3046 335
Net Loss Income 97799 28241 47275 44941 45696

Return on average assets -1.91% 0.54% 0.88% 0.94% 0.97%
Return on average equity -29.64 7.32 11.76 12.18 12.15

Net interest margin 2.84 3.35 3.38 3.51 3.56

AVERAGE BALANCE SHEET
Total assets $5113525 $5240498 $5369268 $5117654 $4749072
Gross loans 3860934 3977028 3858163 3480947 3128352
Earning assets 4778752 4870255 5008905 4738688 4380796
Deposits 3878819 4117440 4224826 3978225 3566237
Long-term borrowings 449886 396571 305078 166837 178584
Stockholders equity 329920 385570 399916 394117 378771

ENDING BALANCE SHEET
Total assets $5059824 $5192778 $5292383 $5344902 $4940488
Gross loans 3786029 3932684 3946551 3721864 3278800
Earning assets 4664956 4796993 4863678 4935124 4559580
Deposits 3919038 4003256 4346182 4213216 3734691
Long-term borrowings 379667 368858 342012 169730 165018
Stockholders equity 261998 368567 400046 398517 386.578

FINANCIAL CONDITION ANALYSIS
Allowance for loan losses to year-end loans 3.60% 1.35% 1.04% 1.10% 1.25%
Allowance to non-accrual loans 44.85 129.70 136.16 187.99 135.81

Net charge-offs to average loans 2.58 0.42 0.26 0.42 0.47

Non-accrual loans to gross loans 8.03 1.04 0.76 0.58 0.92

Average long-term borrowings to average equity 136.36 102.85 76.29 42.33 47.15

Average equity to average assets 6.45 7.36 7.45 7.70 7.98

STOCKHOLDERS DATA
Earnings Per Common Share

Basic Loss Income from continuing operations 4.32 1.20 1.87 1.88 1.80

Discontinued operations 0.01 0.12 0.02

Net Loss Income 4.32 1.20 1.88 1.76 1.78

Diluted Loss Income from continuing operations 4.32 1.20 1.86 1.86 1.78

Discontinuedoperations 0.01 0.11 0.02

Net Loss Income 4.32 1.20 1.87 1.75 1.76

Book value per share 11.55 16.31 16.36 15.65 15.17

Dividends per share 0.278 0.720 0.721 0.662 0.662

Dividendpayoutratio 6.43% 59.59% 38.23% 37.54% 37.11%

Average common shares outstanding 22629 23546 25125 25473 25614
Average diluted shares outstanding 22629 23556 25221 25746 25910

Ratios from continuing operations

All share data have been restated for effects of stock dividends in both June and September 2008
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ITEM MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion highlights the significant factors affecting AMCORE Financial Inc and Subsidiaries

AMCORE or the Company consolidated financial condition as of December 31 2008 compared to

December 31 2007 and the consolidated results of operations for the three years ended December 31 2008 The

discussion should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements accompanying Notes to the

Consolidated Financial Statements and selected financial data appearing elsewhere within this report

FACTORS INFLUENCING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report on Form 10-K contains and periodic filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission and

written or oral statements made by the Companys officers and directors to the press potential investors

securities analysts and others will contain forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the

Securities Act of 1933 and Section 2lE of the Securities Act of 1934 and the Company intends that such

forward-looking statements be subject to the safe harbors created thereby with respect to among other things the

financial condition results of operations plans objectives future performance and business of AMCORE
Statements that are not historical facts including statements about beliefs and expectations are forward-looking

statements These statements are based upon beliefs and assumptions of AMCOREs management and on

information currently available to such management The use of the words believe expect anticipate

plan estimate should may will or similar expressions identify forward-looking statements

Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date they are made and AMCORE undertakes no obligation to

update publicly any forward-looking statements in light of new information or future events

Contemplated projected forecasted or estimated results in such forward-looking statements involve certain

inherent risks and uncertainties number of factors many of which are beyond the ability of the Company to

control or predict could cause actual results to differ materially from those in its forward-looking statements

These factors include among others the following possibilities heightened competition including

specifically the intensification of price competition the entry of new competitors and the formation of new

products by new or existing competitors II adverse state local and federal legislation and regulation or adverse

findings or rulings made by local state or federal regulators or agencies regarding AMCORE and its operations

III failure to obtain new customers and retain existing customers IV inability to carry out marketing and/or

expansion plans ability to attract and retain key executives or personnel VI changes in interest rates

including the effect of prepayments VII general economic and business conditions which are less favorable

than expected VIII equity and fixed income market fluctuations IX unanticipated changes in industry trends

unanticipated changes in credit quality and risk factors XI success in gaining regulatory approvals when

required XII changes in Federal Reserve Board monetary policies XIII unexpected outcomes on existing or

new litigation in which AMCORE its subsidiaries officers directors or employees are named defendants XIV
technological changes XV changes in accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of

America XVI changes in assumptions or conditions affecting the application of critical accounting estimates

XVII inability of third-party vendors to perform critical services for the Company or its customers XVIII
disruption of operations caused by the conversion and installation of data processing systems XIX adverse

economic or business conditions affecting specific loan portfolio types in which the Company has

concentration such as construction land development and other land loans XX zoning restrictions or other

limitations at the local level which could prevent limited branch offices from transitioning to full-service

facilities XXI possible changes in the creditworthiness of customers and value of collateral and the possible

impairment of collectibility of loans XXII changes in lending terms to the Company and the Bank by the

Federal Reserve Federal Home Loan Bank or any other regulatory agency or third party and XXIII the

recently enacted Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008 and the various programs the U.S Treasury

and the banking regulators are implementing to address capital and liquidity issues in the banking system all of

which may have significant effects on the Company and the financial services industry the exact nature and

extent of which cannot be determined at this time
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ACCOUNTING CHANGES

Critical Accounting Estimates

The financial condition and results of operations for AMCORE presented in the Consolidated Financial

Statements accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements selected financial data appearing

elsewhere within this report and managements discussion and analysis are to large degree dependent upon

the Companys accounting policies The selection and application of these accounting policies involve

judgments estimates and uncertainties that are susceptible to change

Presented below are discussions of those accounting policies that management believes require its most difficult

subjective and complex judgments about matters that are inherently uncertain Critical Accounting Estimates

and are most important to the portrayal and understanding of the Companys financial condition and results of

operations In the event that different assumptions or conditions were to prevail and depending upon the severity

of such changes the possibility of materially different portrayal of financial condition or results of operations is

reasonable likelihood See also Note of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Allowance for loan losses Loans the Companys largest income earning asset category are periodically

evaluated by management in order to establish an adequate allowance for loan losses Allowance to absorb

estimated losses that are probable as of the respective reporting date This evaluation includes specific loss

estimates on certain individually reviewed loans where it is probable that the Company will be unable to collect

all of the amounts due principal or interest according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement impaired

loans and statistical loss estimates for loan
groups or poois that are based on historical loss experience Also

included are other loss estimates that reflect the current credit environment and that are not otherwise captured in

the historical loss rates These include the quality and concentration characteristics of the various loan portfolios

adverse situations that may affect borrowers ability to repay and economic and industry conditions among

other things The Allowance is also subject to periodic examination by regulators whose review may include

their own assessment as to its adequacy to absorb probable losses

Additions to the Allowance are charged against earnings for the period as provision for loan losses Provision

Conversely this evaluation could result in decrease in the Allowance and Provision Actual loan losses are

charged against and reduce the Allowance when management believes that the collection of principal will not

occur and the loss has been confirmed Unpaid interest attributable to prior years for loans that are placed on

non-accrual status is also charged against and reduces the Allowance Unpaid interest for the current year for

loans that are placed on non-accrual status is charged against and reduces the interest income previously

recognized Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged to the Allowance if any are credited to and

increase the Allowance

Those judgments and assumptions that are most critical to the application of this accounting policy are the initial

and on-going creditworthiness of the borrower the amount and timing of future cash flows of the borrower that

are available for repayment of the loan the value and sufficiency of underlying collateral the enforceability of

third-party guarantees the frequency and subjectivity of loan reviews and risk grade changes emerging or

changing trends that might not be fully captured in the historical loss experience and charges against the

Allowance for actual losses that are greater or less than previously estimated These judgments and assumptions

are dependent upon or can be influenced by variety of factors including the breadth and depth of experience of

lending officers credit administration and the corporate loan review staff that periodically review the status of

the loan changing economic and industry conditions changes in the financial condition of the borrower and

changes in the value and availability of the underlying collateral and guarantees

While the Company strives to timely reflect all known risk factors in its evaluations judgment errors may occur

If different assumptions or conditions were to prevail the amount and timing of interest income and loan losses

could be materially different These factors are most pronounced during economic downturns and may continue

into an economic recovery as specific credit performance may not be immediately affected by the stress of the
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downturn or the benefit of the recovery Since as described above so many factors can affect the amount and

timing of losses on loans it is difficult to predict with high degree of certainty the effect to income if different

conditions or assumptions were to prevail Nonetheless if any combination of the above judgments or

assumptions were to have adversely affected the adequacy of the Allowance by ten percent during 2008 an

additional Provision of $13.6 million may have been necessary See also Table and Note of the Notes to

Consolidated Financial Statements

Income Taxes The Company is subject to the income tax laws of the United States and the states in which is

conducts business These laws are complex and are subject to different interpretations by the Company and the

various taxing authorities that may result in certain uncertainties as to the final tax liability that is ultimately

owed or refund that is due In June 2006 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued Financial

Interpretation FIN No 48 Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes an Interpretation of FASB
Statement No 109 that clarified the accounting for uncertain tax positions recognized in an enterprises

financial statements in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards SFAS No 109

Accounting for Income Taxes This interpretation prescribes recognition threshold that the Company must

evaluate before it can record the benefit of tax positions taken or expected to be taken in tax return When

making these evaluations management must make judgments and estimates about the interpretation and

application of these inherently complex and constantly changing tax statutes related regulations and case law
These judgments and interpretations are subject to challenge by the taxing authorities upon audit or to

reinterpretation based on managements ongoing assessment of facts and evolving case law As result the tax

provision that is determined for given period may subsequently be adjusted by amounts that may be material

The Company has no uncertain tax positions requiring an increase in its tax provision

The provision for income taxes is based upon income before income taxes adjusted for the effect of certain

tax-exempt income and non-deductible expenses In addition certain items of income and expense are reported

in different periods for financial reporting and tax return purposes The tax effects of these temporary differences

are recognized currently in the deferred income tax provision or benefit Deferred tax assets or liabilities are

computed based upon the difference between the financial statement and income tax bases of assets and liabilities

using the applicable enacted marginal tax rate In addition to uncertainties that surround positions taken when

preparing its tax return the Company must also evaluate the probability that it will ultimately realize the full

value of its deferred tax asset The realization of the Companys deferred tax asset over time is dependent upon
the existence of taxable income in carryback periods or the generation of sufficient taxable income in future

periods When evaluating the realizability of its deferred tax asset the Company takes into account number of

factors including its taxable income during carryback periods its recent earnings history its expectations for

earnings in the future and the carryforward periods permitted by the various taxing jurisdiction To the extent

full realizability is not probable valuation allowance is required At December 31 the Company had valuation

allowance of $2.6 million due to the uncertain realization of certain state loss carryforwards See Note 14 of the

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Accounting Changes

Split-Dollar Life Insurance In September 2006 the FASB ratified Emerging Issues Task Force EITF Issue

No 06-4 Accounting for Deferred Compensation and Postretirement Benefit Aspects of Endorsement Split-

Dollar Life Insurance Arrangements The issue requires companies to recognize liability for future benefits on

split dollar insurance arrangements if the benefit to the employee extends to postretirement periods The issue is

required to be applied to fiscal years beginning after December 15 2007 with earlier application permitted This

standard was adopted in first quarter 2008 and did not have material affect on the Companys Consolidated

Balance Sheets or Statements of Operations

Fair Value Measurements In September 2006 the FASB issued SFAS No 157 Fair Value Measurements
which defines fair value establishes framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting

principles and expands disclosures about fair value measurements The standard applies to other accounting
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pronouncements that require or permit fair value measurements but does not require any new fair value

measurements For some entities the application of the standard may change how fair value is measured The

standard is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15 2007 and all

interim periods within those fiscal years In February 2008 the FASB issued Staff Position FSP 157-2

Effective Date of FASB Statement No 157 The FSP delays the effective date of SFAS No 157 for all

nonfinancial assets and liabilities except those that are recognized or disclosed at fair value on recurring basis

at least annually to fiscal years beginning after November 15 2008 and interim periods within those fiscal

years This standard was adopted in first quarter 2008 and did not have material affect on the Companys
Consolidated Balance Sheets or Statements of Operations

Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities In February 2007 the FASB issued SFAS

No 159 The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities The fair value option established

by this standard permits all entities to choose to measure eligible items at fair value at specified election dates

Under SFAS No 159 business entity is required to report unrealized gains and losses on items for which the

fair value option have been elected in earnings or another performance indicator if the business entity does not

report earnings at each subsequent reporting date The standard was effective as of January 2008 The

Company did not adopt fair value for any new items

Loan Commitments Recorded at Fair Value Through Earnings In November 2007 the Securities and

Exchange Commission the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin SAB No 109 which superseded SAB

No 105 which applied only to derivative loan commitments that are accounted for at fair value through

earnings The new guidance states that consistent with the guidance in SFAS No 156 Accounting for

Servicing of Financial Assets and SFAS No 159 The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial

Liabilities the expected net future cash flows related to the associated servicing of the loan should be included

in the measurement of all written loan commitments that are accounted for at fair value through earnings This

standard was adopted in first quarter 2008 and did not have material affect on the Companys Consolidated

Balance Sheets or Statements of Operations

Minority Interests In December 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No 160 Noncontrolling Interest in

Consolidated Financial Statements an amendment of Accounting Research Bulletin ARB No 51 Among
other things SFAS No 160 requires minority interests be recorded as separate component of equity and that

net income attributable to minority interests be clearly identified on the Statements of Operations SFAS No 160

is effective for fiscal years and interim periods beginning on or after December 15 2008 Earlier adoption is

prohibited Statement No 160 is required to be applied prospectively except for the presentation and disclosure

requirements Adoption of this standard in fiscal year 2009 is not expected to have material impact on the

Companys Consolidated Balance Sheets or Statements of Operations

Business Combinations In December 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No l4lR Business Combinations to

improve financial reporting on business combinations including recognition and measurement of assets acquired

liabilities assumed noncontrolling interests and goodwill This Statement applies prospectively to business

combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period

beginning on or after December 15 2008 An entity may not apply this Statement before that date

Simplified Method for Share Option Grants In December 2007 the SEC issued SAB No 110 which

expresses the views of he SEC regarding the use of simplified method as discussed in SAB No 107 in

developing an estimate of expected term of plain vanilla share options in accordance with SFAS No 123R
Share-Based Payment The SEC concluded that company could under certain circumstances continue to use

the simplified method for share option grants after December 31 2007 Due to the significant differences in

terms and types of option grants received by employees and recent significant structural changes historical

exercise data did not provide reasonable basis upon which to estimate expected term The Company therefore

continued its use of the simplified method for determining an estimate of expected term for its share options

granted during 2008
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Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities Disclosure In March 2008 the FASB issued SFAS No 161
Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities to provide enhanced disclosures and thereby

improve the transparency of financial reporting SFAS 161 is effective for fiscal
years and interim periods

beginning after November 15 2008 with early application encouraged Adoption of this standard is not expected
to have material impact on the Companys Consolidated Balance Sheets or Statements of Operations

KEY INITIATIVES AND OTHER SIGNIFICANT ITEMS AND EVENTS

Key Initiatives

Credit quality The Company continues to enhance the credit risk administration and measurement processes of

its banking subsidiary the Bank Actions already taken or underway include implemented new risk grading

system in 2007 to provide more detailed information as to the conditions underlying the portfolio engaged an

independent third party during third quarter 2008 to review representative sample of the commercial loan

portfolio to verify risk rating accuracy hired an experienced commercial lending leader in second quarter 2007
shifted the management of virtually all residential development loan relationships to an experienced specialty

unit continued increased focus on commercial and industrial relationship lending reorganized the commercial

credit approval process increased the allowance for loan losses and enhanced the processes related to the

allowance calculation implemented straight-through-processing system for commercial lending increased

staffing and resources in the Banks non-performing assets resolution specialty group which pursues resolution

of non-performing assets hired new chief credit officer with strong leadership and portfolio management skills

in second quarter 2008 added qualified and experienced senior staff to manage the credit administration loan

review and appraisal functions in second quarter 2008 and redeployed senior commercial manager to special

assignment to enhance portfolio management efforts and credit monitoring processes during fourth quarter 2008
Over the next few months the Bank plans to substantially lower its exposure to non-strategic non-relationship
based accounts especially loans concentrated in single-service accounts such as investment real estate loans

Cost efficiencies For 2008 the Company targeted three percent per year reduction pre-FDIC insurance

operating expenses for 2008 Excluding $6.2 million write-off for goodwill credit-related reserve for

unfunded loan commitments of $4.8 million and FDIC insurance premiums of $3.6 million the Company
realized four percent reduction This included more than an 11% reduction in full-time equivalent positions
since the beginning of 2008

In addition during 2008 the Company identified five under-utilized high-cost facilities that could be

consolidated with other nearby locations the Facilities Consolidation These were two office buildings one
small older branch in historical market one leased Chicago suburban location with minimal retail activity that

housed mainly commercial lenders and leased branch with excess capacity minimal access to customers and

high maintenance costs $1.7 million non-cash impairment charge was recorded in connection with the

Facilities Consolidation One property was sold during 2008 at an amount equal to its book value as recorded on
the Consolidated Balance Sheets

Going forward the Company will continue its efforts to right size its cost structure to its revenue stream For

example the Company will only hire for essential positions critical to operations

Capital and Liquidity The Company is actively pursuing opportunities to raise additional capital and otherwise

enhance its capital position through variety of means During fourth quarter 2008 the Company merged its

Investment Management and Trust Group into the main Bank charter This added more than $8 million of capital

to the Bank more efficient use of the capital of the organization See Capital Management section below for an

expanded discussion of the regulatory capital standards This also allows the Company to serve its customers
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with greater One-Bank operational clarity In fourth quarter 2008 the Company suspended its quarterly

dividend to preserve capital and parent company liquidity AMCORE also elected to participate in the FDIC
Transaction Account Guarantee Program providing unlimited insurance on non-interest bearing transaction

accounts through December 2009 During 2008 the Bank built its liquidity reserves ending the year with more

than $75 million of short-term investments to strengthen its funding stability as the economic environment

became less stable

Broadening Customer Relationships The Companys reputation for customer and community service has

always been an important driver of its business Reducing its non-relationship accounts while reaffirming and

building upon its core customer relationships is expected to build consistency across the Company footprint

Developing deep and enduring customer relationships across all our lines of the business is key objective The

One-Bank initiative for serving customers across all lines of business continues to be focus for 2009 It will

allow the Company to leverage the combined expertise of the organization and its people across the lines of

business to better meet the customers financial needs while enhancing the profitability of the Company

The Company also focused on measuring line of business performance and closely aligning profitability with

incentive compensation in order to drive strong core customer-based growth This focus on profitability rather

than volume only measures has led to improved product pricing that is more reflective of true costs and market

risks and is expected to help the Company continue to strengthen its earnings stream

During the second quarter 2008 the Bank joined the MoneyPass and Sum surcharge-free ATM networks As

result AMCORE cardholders now have access to surcharge-free transactions at more than 19000 ATMs across

the United States including large concentration of ATMs conveniently located in the same geographic regions

as AMCORE customers These new relationships expand AMCOREs channel of ATMs from 324 at the

beginning of 2008 to more than 1300 at the end of 2008 throughout Illinois and Wisconsin

Other Significant Items and Events

Key personnel changes On February 25 2008 the Company announced that Kenneth Edge had elected to

retire as Chief Executive Officer the Executive Retirement of the Company effective as of February 22
2008 and remained as Chairman of the Board of Directors the Board of the Company until May 2008

Also on February 22 2008 the Board elected William McManaman as Chief Executive Officer effective

February 25 2008 Prior to his appointment as Chief Executive Officer Mr McManaman age 60 had served as

Director of the Company since 1997 On May 2008 the Board elected Mr McManaman as Chairman of the

Board

Branch expansion During 2008 the Bank opened three new branches one in Mt Prospect Illinois one in

Wheaton Illinois and one in Vernon Hills Illinois The Bank has slowed the opening of new branches to only

those already in the construction pipeline or under contract In 2009 this included branches in Antioch Illinois

and Naperville Illinois which opened January 26 2009 and February 13 2009 respectively There are no more

branches in the construction pipeline

Significant transactions During 2007 the Company entered into strategic arrangement with national

mortgage services company to provide private-label loan processing and servicing support the Mortgage
Restructuring As part of this arrangement the Company sold the majority of its Other Mortgage Servicing

Rights OMSR portfolio the OMSR Sale in which it recorded $2.6 million gain the OMSR Gain The

arrangement offers AMCORE greater breadth of products more competitive pricing and greater processing

efficiencies and is expected to better position the Company for future loan origination growth As result of this

arrangement AMCORE expects to better control the risks associated with its mortgage banking business

21



Additionally the cost structure in the mortgage banking business has become almost entirely variable in nature

allowing the Company to better absorb fluctuations in mortgage volumes These include the costs of originating

loans that are netted against mortgage banking income or interest income as well as processing and servicing

costs of loans retained in the Banks portfolio and that are component of operating expenses

In 2007 AMCORE redeemed its $40 million 9.35 percent coupon outstanding trust preferred securities Trust

Preferred at cost of $2.3 million that included both call premium and unamortized issuance expenses the

Extinguishment Loss The redemption was funded with new lower cost Trust Preferred issuance of $50

million at rate of 6.45 percent

On May 2007 the Board authorized the repurchase the Repurchase Program of up to two million shares of

the Companys stock The authorization was for twelve-month period to be executed through open market or

privately negotiated purchases This authorization replaced previous Repurchase Program that expired May
2007 During 2007 the Company repurchased 2.12 million shares at an average price of $27.92 per share No
shares have been purchased during 2008 as increased risks in the economy and in the financial markets make the

retention of capital key consideration The Repurchase Program expired on May 2008

In second quarter 2008 $6.1 million non-cash charge was recorded that completely eliminated all goodwill

previously carried on the Companys balance sheet the Goodwill Charge The write-off was due to the

considerable and protracted discount of the Companys stock value compared to its book value which affected

all business segments as well as due to the decline in the operations of the Company

In third quarter 2008 the Bank sold $77 million of primarily non-performing and under-performing loans to

third party the Loan Sale The transaction removed further
exposure from these loans and added incremental

liquidity to the Bank

Regulatory developments On May 31 2005 the Bank entered into Formal Agreement with the 0CC the

Banks primary regulator to strengthen the Banks consumer compliance program On August 10 2006 the

Bank entered into Consent Order with the 0CC to strengthen its compliance monitoring policies procedures

training and overall program relating to the Bank Secrecy Act/Anti-Money Laundering BSA/AML regulations

The commitments and requirements imposed by these two items were completed and on April 14 2008 the

Bank was notified that the 0CC had terminated the Formal Agreement and the Consent Order

On May 15 2008 the Bank entered into written agreement the Agreement with the 0CC The Agreement
describes commitments made by the Bank to address and strengthen banking practices relating to asset quality

and the overall administration of the credit function at the Bank The Bank has implemented enhancements to its

credit processes to address the matters identified by the 0CC and expects to comply with all the requirements

specified in the Agreement In the meantime the Agreement results in the Banks ineligibility for certain actions

and expedited approvals without the prior written consent and approval of the 0CC These actions include

among other things the appointment of directors and senior executives making or agreeing to make certain

payments to executives or directors business combinations and branching

Recent market and legislative developments The global and U.S economies continue to experience

significantly reduced business activity as result of among other factors disruptions in the financial system

during the past year and half Dramatic declines in the housing market with falling home prices and increasing

foreclosures and unemployment have resulted in significant write-downs of asset values by financial institutions

including government sponsored entities and major commercial and investment banks

Reflecting concern about the stability of the financial markets generally and the strength of counterparties many
lenders and institutional investors have reduced and in some cases ceased to provide funding to borrowers

including other financial institutions The availability of credit confidence in the financial sector and level of

volatility in the financial markets have been significantly adversely affected as result Volatility and disruption
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in the capital and credit markets has reached unprecedented levels In many cases the markets have produced

downward pressure on stock prices and credit capacity for certain issuers without regard to those issuers

underlying financial strength

In response to the financial crises affecting the banking system and financial markets and going concern threats

to investment banks and other financial institutions subsequent to the end of third quarter 2008 Congress

enacted and the President signed into law the Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008 ESA Shortly

thereafter the Federal banking agencies announced the Troubled Asset Relief Program TARP and Capital

Purchase Program CPP Collectively these actions provided variety of programs that financial institutions

could participate in including the potential sale of certain troubled loans to the United States Government sale

of preferred stock to the United States Treasury and temporary expansion of FDIC insured deposit levels some

voluntary and some automatic These programs continue to evolve as the administration strives to keep pace

with rapidly changing economic conditions AMCORE continues to review these programs for their potential to

add value to its customers and business and the potential impact of the ESA or related programs on its future

financial position results of operation cash flows or liquidity

It is not yet clear what impact the ESA TARP including the CPP the temporary FDIC guarantee expansion and

other liquidity and funding initiatives of the Federal Reserve Board Fed and other agencies and any additional

programs that may be initiated in the future will ultimately have on the financial markets and the other

difficulties described above including the extreme levels of volatility and limited credit availability currently

being experienced or on the U.S banking and financial industries and the broader U.S and global economies

Impact of inflation Apart from operating expenses the financial services industry is not directly affected by

inflation however as the Fed monitors economic trends and developments it may change monetary policy in

response to economic changes which would have an influence on interest rates See discussion of Net Interest

Income changes due to rate below
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OVERVIEW OF OPERATIONS AND SIGNIFICANT CATEGORIES

Overview

AMCORE reported net loss from continuing operations of $97.8 million or $4.32 per
diluted share for the year

ended December 31 2008 This compares to net income of $28.2 million or $1.20 for the same period in 2007

and represents $126.0 million or $5.52 decrease year to year AMCORE had negative return on average

equity and on average assets from continuing operations for 2008 of 29.64% and 1.9 1% respectively compared

to positive 7.32% and 0.54% respectively in 2007

Significant Categories

Changes in the most significant categories of 2008 net income from continuing operations compared to 2007

were

Net interest income Declined $28.7 million primarily due to lower average
loan volume and spreads Net

interest margin was 2.84% in 2008 compared to 3.35% in 2007

Provision for loan losses Increased $173.6 million to $202.7 million in 2008 from $29.1 million in 2007

reflecting $99.6 million in net charge-offs and $242.3 million increase in non-performing loans for 2008

Non-interest income Increased $3.6 million to $74.6 million in 2008 compared to $71.0 million in 2007

Service charges on deposits increased of $3.6 million $7.9 million favorable change in net security gains

from $5.9 million of losses in 2007 to $2.0 million of gains in 2008 were offset by $6.3 million decline in other

income $1.2 million decline in mortgage banking income and $0.5 million decrease in investment

management and trust income Other income in 2007 included the $2.6 million OMSR Gain

Operating expenses
Increased $7.1 million to $172.5 million in 2008 from $165.3 million in 2007 The $6.1

million Goodwill Charge $5.0 million increase in provision for unfunded commitment losses $3.3 million

increase in loan collection costs $3.0 million increase in FDIC insurance costs $1.9 million increase in net

occupancy expense and the $1.7 million Facilities Consolidation impairment charge were partially offset by

$6.0 million decline in personnel costs $4.4 million in various other expenses the $2.3 million Extinguishment

Loss and $1.3 million decline in advertising and business development costs

Income taxes Decreased $79.8 million primarily due to $168.7 million loss before income taxes in 2008

compared to $37.2 million in earnings before income taxes in 2007 The effective tax rate was 42.0% in 2008

compared to 24.0% in 2007 Items that are exempt from taxes such as municipal bond income and COLI

income while generally resulting in an effective tax rate that is lower than the statutory tax rate have the

opposite effect in period where there is loss before income taxes Conversely items that are not deductible for

tax purposes such as goodwill while generally resulting in an effective tax rate that is higher than the statutory

tax rate have the opposite effect in period where there is loss before income taxes The combined effect of

these factors was an effective tax rate that was lower than the statutory tax rate in 2007 but higher than the

statutory tax rate in 2008

EARNINGS REVIEW OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

The following highlights comparative discussion of the major components of net income and their impact for

the last three years

Net Interest Income

Net interest income is the Companys largest source of revenue and represents the difference between income

earned on loans and investments interest-earning assets and the interest expense incurred on deposits and
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borrowed funds interest-bearing liabilities Fluctuations in interest rates as well as volume and mix changes in

interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities can materially affect the level of net interest income

Because the interest that is earned on certain loans and investment securities is not subject to federal income tax

and in order to facilitate comparisons among various taxable and tax-exempt interest-earning assets the

following discussion of net interest income is presented on fully taxable equivalent or FTE basis The FTE

adjustment was calculated using AMCOREs statutory federal income tax rate of 35%

Net interest spread is the difference between the average yields earned on interest-earning assets and the
average

rates incurred on interest-bearing liabilities Net interest margin represents net interest income divided by average

interest-earning assets Since portion of the Companys funding is derived from interest-free sources primarily

demand deposits other liabilities and stockholders equity the effective interest rate incurred for all funding

sources is lower than the interest rate incurred on interest-bearing liabilities alone

Overview Net interest income on an FTE basis declined $28.1 million or 17% in 2008 and declined $6.0

million or 4% in 2007 The decline in 2008 was primarily due to 37 basis point decline in net interest spread

and 3% decrease in
average loan volumes The decline in 2007 was primarily the result of 22% decrease in

average
investment security balances and seven basis point decline in net interest spread

Years Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

dollars in thousands

Interest Income Book Basis $272756 $344016 $339176

FTE Adjustment 3227 2584 4192

Interest Income FTE Basis 275983 346600 343368

Interest Expense 140871 183432 174218

Net Interest Income FTE Basis $135 12 $163168 $169150

Net Interest Spread 2.48% 2.85% 2.9 1%

Net Interest Margin 2.84% 3.35% 3.38%

Net interest spread and margin See Table Net interest spread declined 37 basis points to 2.48% in 2008

from 2.85% in 2007 and decreased six basis points in 2007 from the 2006 level of 2.91% The net interest

margin was 2.84% in 2008 decline of 51 basis points from 3.35% in 2007 The 2007 level was decrease of

three basis points from 3.38% in 2006

The declines in net interest spread and net interest margin were driven by increased levels of non-accrual loans

the reversal of accrued interest on loans placed on non-accrual status declines in average bank-issued deposit

funding replaced with higher-cost wholesale funding sources and continued divergence in recent financial

markets with higher declines in prime rates compared to LIBOR-based rates The decline in loan yields were not

matched by corresponding decline in funding rates as deposits and wholesale funding sources did not reprice

as rapidly as loans while some transactional deposit products have already reached rate floor where further

reductions in rates paid are not possible In addition continued offers by competitors to pay well above the

wholesale cost of funds and the Banks need to attract deposits in the current liquidity stressed environment

continue to place pressure on deposit rates Other factors contributing to the decline in margin and spread was

lower average yields on loans reflecting declining interest rates and the substitution of debt for capital in the

Repurchase Program Since the Company has higher proportion of prime-based loans and higher proportion

of LIBOR-based liabilities the aforementioned divergence in interest rates resulted in some reduction in net

interest spread and net interest margin While the Repurchase Program initially improved the efficiency of the

Companys capital structure it has also contributed to the compression in net interest spread and net interest

margin

Changes due to volume See Table continued In 2008 net interest income FTE declined due to average

volume by $4.8 million when compared to 2007 This decline was comprised of $6.4 million decline in interest
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income that was partially offset by $1.6 million decrease in interest expense The decline in interest income was

attributable to $116 million decrease in average loans which included the Loan Sale The decrease in average

loans came from combined decrease of $117 million in commercial real estate and commercial loans Average

residential real estate loans decreased $38 million while average consumer loan balances increased $39 million

Average interest-bearing liabilities declined $37 million This was comprised of $347 million decrease in

average interest-bearing bank-issued deposits and $310 million increase in average wholesale funding Average

interest-bearing liabilities did not decrease as much as average interest-earning assets due to 2008 losses and

declines in non-interest bearing liabilities of $22 million

In 2007 net interest income FTE declined due to average volume by $4.7 million when compared to 2006 This

decline was comprised of $9.7 million decline in interest income that was partially offset by $4.9 million

decrease in interest expense The decline in interest income was attributable to $139 million decrease in

interest-earning assets The decrease was primarily driven by $246 million or 22% reduction in average

investment securities that was partially offset by $119 million or 3% increase in average
loans The growth in

average loans came from combined increase of $116 million in commercial real estate and commercial loans

Average residential real estate loans increased $4 million while average consumer loan balances declined $1

million Average interest-bearing liabilities declined $123 million This was comprised of $43 million decrease

in average bank-issued deposits and $80 million decrease in average wholesale funding Average interest-bearing

liabilities did not decrease as much as average interest-earning assets due to the Repurchase Program which

substituted debt for capital

Changes due to rate See Table continued In 2008 net interest income FTE declined due to average rates

by $23.2 million when compared with 2007 This was comprised of $64.2 million decrease in interest income

that was partially offset by $41.0 million decrease in interest expense Both interest-earning asset yields and

interest-bearing liability costs were affected by seven separate decreases in the federal funds Fed Funds rate

totaling combined 400 basis points that occurred during 2008 In addition non-performing loans increased

from $71 million at December 31 2007 to $313 million as of December 31 2008 The Bank must continue to

fund these non-earning loans until they are resolved The yield on average earning assets decreased 134 basis

points to 5.78% during 2008 compared to 7.12% in 2007 During this same period of time the rate paid on

average interest bearing liabilities decreased 97 basis points to 3.30% from 4.27%

In 2007 net interest income FTE declined due to average rates by $1.3 million when compared with 2006 This

was comprised of $12.9 million increase in interest income that was more than offset by $14.2 million

increase in interest expense Both interest-earning asset yields and interest-bearing liability costs were affected

by four 25 basis point increases in the Fed Funds rate that occurred during the first two quarters of 2006 which

were followed by 50 basis point and two 25 basis point decreases in late 2007 The yield on average earning

assets increased 26 basis points to 7.12% during 2007 compared to 6.86% in 2006 During this same period of

time the rate paid on average interest bearing liabilities increased 32 basis points to 4.27% from 3.95%

Interest rate risk Like most financial institutions AMCORE has an exposure to changes in both short-term and

long-term interest rates Among those factors that could further affect net interest margin and net interest spread

include greater and more frequent changes in interest rates including the impact of basis risk between various

interest rate indices such as prime and LIBOR as is the case with significant divergence in current market

rates changes in the shape of the yield curve mismatch in the duration of interest-earning assets and the

interest-bearing liabilities that fund them the effect of prepayments or renegotiated rates increased price

competition on both deposits and loans promotional pricing on deposits short-term liquidity needs that could

drive up the cost of attracting new funding changes in the mix of earning assets and the mix of liabilities

including greater or less use of wholesale sources changes in the level of non-accrual loans and in an

environment where there are rapid and substantial declines in interest rates the limited ability to reduce certain

low-cost deposit product rates such as NOW accounts to the same extent that interest-earning assets reprice As

the increased level of non-accrual loans will take time to work out and there are no immediate signs of funding

pressures waning the Company does not expect recovery in the margin or spread statistics for several quarters
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Provision for Loan Losses

The 2008 Provision see Critical Accounting Estimates discussion was $202.7 million an increase of $173.6

million from $29.1 million in 2007 The increase was driven by $99.6 million in net charge-offs and by $242.3

million increase in non-performing loans during 2008 Net charge-offs were $99.6 million or 258 basis points of

average loans in 2008 compared to $16.9 million or 42 basis points of average loans in 2007 Non-performing

loans were $313.1 million at December 31 2008 compared to $70.8 million at December 31 2007

Non-performing loans is the sum of non-accrual loans and loans that are ninety days past due but are still

accruing interest Delinquencies loans that are thirty to ninety days past due have also increased from $81.2

million at December 31 2007 to $84.1 million as of December 31 2008

The level of net charge-offs non-performing loans and delinquent loans is largely due to the rapid deterioration

in real estate markets that has occurred across the country In the Midwest where the Company has its footprint

the result has been declines in real estate sales activity that negatively affects the liquidity and capital resources

of borrowers which in turn negatively affects the borrowers ability to make principal and interest payments

when due The decline in sales activity also leads to eroding property values which serve as collateral for the

repayment of loans These circumstances are particularly evident for developers of residential real estate

properties where the Company has large concentration in loans outstanding of $618 million Developers use

loan proceeds to fund the acquisition of land development of the raw land and construction of homes The

vacant land component of this concentration was $235 million These projects are heavily dependent upon the

successful sale of units completed early in the projects life to fund units scheduled later in the project and then

have the sales proceeds from those later units
repay

the loans These market conditions are expected to persist

into 2009

The 2007 Provision was $29.1 million an increase of $19.0 million or 187% from $10.1 million in 2006 The

increase was primarily due to 69% increase in net charge-offs and 119% increase in non-performing loans in

2007 compared to 2006 that were driven by general weakening of real estate conditions in the Companys

markets Net charge-offs were $16.9 million or 42 basis points of average loans in 2007 compared to $10.0

million or 26 basis points of average loans in 2006 Non-performing loans were $70.8 million at December 31

2007 compared to $32.4 million at December 31 2006

Non-Interest Income

Total non-interest income is comprised primarily of fee-based revenues from bank-related service charges on

deposits and Investment Management and Trust Income from bankcard fee income Bank and Company owned

life insurance CULl brokerage commission income mortgage banking income and security gains losses are

also included in this category

Overview For 2008 non-interest income totaled $74.6 million an increase of $3.6 million or five percent from

$71.0 million in 2007 Service charges on deposits increased $3.6 million $7.9 million favorable swing in net

security gains from $5.9 million of losses in 2007 to $2.0 million of gains in 2008 were offset by $6.3 million

decline in other income $1.2 million decline in mortgage banking income and $0.5 million decrease in

investment management and trust income Other income in 2007 included the $2.6 million OMSR Gain see

Significant Transactions discussed above

For 2007 non-interest income totaled $71.0 million decline of $4.6 million or six percent from $75.6 million

in 2006 The decline was primarily attributable to $5.9 million of net security losses in 2007 and $2.8 million

net insurance claim included in 2006 CULl that were partly offset by $4.0 million increase in service charges

on deposits in 2007 compared to 2006

Investment management and trust income Investment Management and Trust IMT income includes trust

services investment management estate administration financial planning and employee benefit plan
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recordkeeping and administration IMT income totaled $16.3 million in 2008 decline of $0.5 million or three

percent from $16.8 million in 2007 This followed an increase of $0.6 million or three percent in 2007 from

$16.2 million in 2006 The decline in 2008 was due to lower retirement plan service fees and wealth management

fees both of which were affected by declining administered asset values The increase for 2007 was primarily

attributable to higher personal trust services and employee benefit income At December 31 2008 and 2007 total

assets under administration were $2.0 billion and $2.7 billion respectively

Service charges on deposits Service charges on deposits the Companys largest source of non-interest income

totaled $33.2 million in 2008 $3.6 million or 12% increase over $29.6 million in 2007 This follows 2007

increase of $4.0 million or 16% from $25.6 million in 2006 Service charges on commercial deposit accounts

were the primary driver as declining interest rates reduced the deposit credit offset against commercial account

activity fees Service charges on consumer deposits also increased due to enhancements to the Companys fee

structure and waiver policies This pace of growth is not expected to continue however the current level of

revenue is expected to be sustainable

Mortgage Banking income Mortgage banking income includes fees generated from the underwriting

originating and servicing of mortgage loans along with gains and fees realized from the sale of these loans net of

origination costs OMSR amortization and impairment

For 2008 mortgage banking income was $0.6 million decline of $1.2 million from $1.8 million in 2007 and

was due to lower overall closed loan volumes and higher proportion or refinanced volumes relative to new

purchase volumes Total closings were $211 million in 2008 compared to $277 million in 2007 New purchase

mortgage closings were $82 million or 39% of total closings in 2008 compared to $171 million or 62% of total

closings in 2007

For 2007 mortgage banking income was $1.8 million decline of $2.1 million from $3.9 million in 2006 Total

closings were $277 million in 2007 compared to $395 million in 2006 New purchase mortgage closings were

$171 million or 62% of total closings in 2007 compared to $266 million or 67% of total closings in 2006 The

2007 decline in mortgage banking income was primarily due to lower servicing fee income and reduced sales

volume due to slowdown in the housing markets that affected new purchase closings and higher mortgage

interest rates that affected refinancing volumes The decline in servicing fee income for 2007 was attributable to

the OMSR Sale after which the Company no longer generates significant fee income in connection with the

servicing of mortgage loans sold to the secondary market The cost of servicing those loans component of

operating expense was also eliminated after the transition The Company recorded the $2.6 million OMSR Gain

during 2007 The OMSR Gain is included in other non-interest income See Significant Transactions discussed

above for additional information

COLI income COLI income totaled $4.6 million in 2008 $0.9 million or 16% decline from $5.4 million in

2007 The 2008 decline was due to the decline in market interest rates and negative mark-to-market adjustments

on underlying investments This compares with $2.5 million or 31% decline in 2007 from $7.9 million in 2006

The 2007 decline was due to $2.8 million in net insurance claims received in 2006 AMCORE uses COLI as

tax-advantaged means of financing its future obligations with respect to certain non-qualified retirement and

deferred compensation plans in addition to other employee benefit programs As of December 31 2008 the cash

surrender value of CULl was $145 million compared to $140 million at December 31 2007

Bankcard fee income Bankcard fee income totaled $8.6 million in 2008 $0.7 million or nine percent increase

over $7.9 million in 2007 and an increase of $1.7 million over bankcard fee income in 2006 of $6.2 million

larger cardholder base increased card utilization and an expanded ATM network contributed to the increase in

bankcard fee income for both 2008 and 2007
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Other non-interest income For 2008 brokerage commission income net security losses gains and other

non-interest income totaled $11.3 million $1.8 million or 18% increase from 2007 $7.9 million favorable

swing in net security gains from $5.9 million of losses in 2007 to $2.0 million of gains in 2008 were offset by
$6.3 million decline in other income Other income declined due to the 2007 $2.6 million OMSR Gain lower

customer service income and higher derivative mark-to-market losses The derivative losses relate to economic

hedges of various loan deposit and COLI products that do not qualify for hedge accounting

For 2007 these categories of other non-interest income totaled $9.5 million $6.2 million or 39% decline from

2006 The decline was primarily due to $5.9 million of net security losses in 2007 compared to net security gains

of $0.3 million in 2006 The 2007 loss was mainly due to the sale of approximately $200 million of bonds

purchased in 2003 and 2004 in order to reduce longer-term interest rate and liquidity risk The proceeds of the

sales were reinvested in shorter-term securities that enabled the Company to improve the repricing match of its

assets and liabilities The $2.6 million OMSR Gain and an increase in brokerage commission income were offset

by lower CRA related fund income and increased derivative mark-to-market losses year-over year

Operating Expenses

Overview In 2008 total operating expense was $172.5 million an increase of $7.1 million or four percent

increase from $165.3 million in 2007 $6.1 million Goodwill Charge $5.0 million increase in provision for

unfunded commitment losses $3.3 million increase in loan collection costs $3.0 million increase in FDIC
insurance costs $1.9 million increase in net occupancy expense and the $1.7 million Facilities Consolidation

impairment charge see Cost Efficiencies discussed above were partially offset by $6.0 million decline in

personnel costs $4.4 million in various other expenses $2.3 million Extinguishment Loss incurred in 2007 see

Significant Transactions discussed above and $1.3 million decline in advertising and business development

costs

In 2007 total operating expense was $165.3 million which was essentially flat with $165.4 million in 2006
Increased net occupancy expense higher foreclosure related costs and increased fraud losses were offset by
lower compensation expense advertising/business development costs and professional fees The $2.3 million

Extinguishment Loss incurred in 2007 offset $2.1 million loss on the extinguishment of Federal Home Loan

Bank FHLB debt that was incurred in 2006

The efficiency ratio was 84% in 2008 compared to 71% in 2007 and 69% in 2006 The efficiency ratio is

calculated by dividing total operating expenses by revenues Revenues are the sum of net interest income and

non-interest income

Personnel expense Personnel expense includes compensation expense
and employee benefits and is the largest

component of operating expenses totaling combined $88.9 million in 2008 $94.9 million in 2007 and $97.9

million in 2006 For 2008 personnel expenses declined $6.0 million or six percent compared to 2007 and

decreased $3.0 million or three percent in 2007 compared to 2006 The 2008 decrease was primarily due to lower

salary and benefits This included more than an 11% reduction in full-time equivalent positions since the

beginning of 2008 The 2007 decline was attributable to lower incentives and stock-based compensation costs

Facilities expense Facilities expense which includes net occupancy expense and equipment expense was

combined $26.5 million in 2008 $24.6 million in 2007 and $20.9 million in 2006 This was $1.8 million or

seven percent increase in 2008 compared to 2007 and an increase of $3.7 million or 18% in 2007 compared to

2006 The 2008 increase was due to higher rent expense leasehold amortization and property taxes associated

with branches that were not open at all or not open for the full period in 2007 The 2007 increase was primarily

due to higher rental expense real estate taxes utility costs and snow removal expenses The increase in rental

expense was associated with new branches that were opened in 2007 and that were open for only part of 2006

Professionalfees Professional fees include legal consulting auditing and external portfolio management fees and

totaled $8.6 million in 2008 $8.4 million in 2007 and $9.3 million in 2006 The decline in 2007 from 2006 relates

to lower external assistance on regulatory compliance matters see Regulatory Developments discussion above
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Loan related costs Loan related costs include loan processing and collection expense and provision for

unfunded commitment losses and totaled combined $11.8 million in 2008 $3.6 million in 2007 and $4.0

million in 2006 While expenses in 2006 and 2007 were relatively stable 2008 expenses increased $8.2 million

This was due to increased collection costs on higher non-performing loan balances and estimated losses on letter

of credit commitments on defaulted residential development loans

Goodwill impairment In second quarter 2008 $6.1 million non-cash charge was recorded that completely

eliminated all goodwill previously carried on the Companys balance sheet the Goodwill Charge The

write-off was due to the considerable and protracted discount of the Companys stock value compared to its book

value which affected all business segments as well as due to the decline in the operations of the Company

Other operating expenses Other operating expenses includes data processing expense communication

expense advertising and business development expenses insurance expense and other costs and were

combined $30.6 million in 2008 $33.8 million in 2007 and $33.2 million in 2006 For 2008 reductions in

bankcard fees fraud losses and various discretionary expenses such as travel training and consumable stationary

and supplies declined $4.4 million communication and advertising/business development costs declined $1.5

million and data processing costs declined $0.4 million Many of these reductions were related to the Cost

Efficiencies key initiative These were partially offset by $3.1 million increase in insurance expense
due to

higher FDIC insurance rates The FDIC recently proposed special assessment for all financial institutions

whose deposits are federally-insured that if finalized would be imposed in 2009 and could be material in

amount For 2007 $1.1 million increase in fraud losses $1.0 million increase in foreclosure related costs and

$0.7 million charge for the Companys proportionate membership interest share of various litigation claims

against VISA Inc were offset by $3.2 million reduction in advertising/business development costs

Income Taxes

Income tax benefit totaled $70.9 million in 2008 compared to income tax expense of $8.9 million and $18.0

million in 2007 and 2006 respectively Declines in 2008 and 2007 were mainly due to losses and lower income

before taxes respectively The 2007 income tax expense was net of $588000 tax benefit associated with an

increase in effective state income tax rates that were enacted during the year and which increased the value of

the Companys recorded deferred income tax asset deferred tax asset primarily represents expenses reflected

on the Companys Consolidated Statement of Operations whose tax deduction has been delayed or deferred to

later years tax return due to differences in the timing of their recognition under generally accepted accounting

principles versus income tax regulations Since these deductions will be claimed in future period after the

increase in the income tax rates becomes effective they will result in larger reduction in taxes paid than was

previously recorded

The effective tax rate was 42.0% in 2008 compared to 24.0% in 2007 and 27.7% in 2006 Items that are exempt

from taxes such as municipal bond income and COLI income while generally resulting in an effective tax rate

that is lower than the statutory tax rate have the opposite effect in period where there is loss before income

taxes Conversely items that are not deductible for tax purposes such as goodwill while generally resulting in

an effective tax rate that is higher than the statutory tax rate have the opposite effect in period where there is

loss before income taxes The combined effect of these factors was an effective tax rate that was lower than the

statutory tax rate in 2007 but higher than the statutory tax rate in 2008 See Note 14 of the Notes to Consolidated

Financial Statements

Discontinued Operations

In 2005 the Company sold its asset management subsidiary Investors Management Group Ltd 1MG to West

Bancorporation Inc West Banc For 2006 net income from this discontinued operation was $248000 and

resulted from the finalization of tax payments from the sale of 1MG in the previous year
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BUSINESS SEGMENT REVIEW

AMCOREs internal reporting and planning process focuses on four primary lines of business Segments
Commercial Banking Retail Banking Investment Management and Trust and Mortgage Banking Note 16 of

the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements presents condensed income statement and total assets for each

Segment

The financial information presented was derived from the Companys internal profitability reporting system that

is used by management to monitor and manage the financial performance of the Company This information is

based on internal management accounting policies which have been developed to reflect the underlying

economics of the Segments and to the extent practicable to portray each Segment as if it operated on stand

alone basis Thus each Segment in addition to its direct revenues expenses assets and liabilities includes an

allocation of shared support function expenses The Commercial Retail and Mortgage Banking Segments also

include funds transfer adjustments to appropriately reflect the cost of funds on loans made and funding credits on

deposits generated Apart from these adjustments the accounting policies used are similar to those described in

Note of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Since there are no comprehensive standards for management accounting that are equivalent to accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States of America the information presented is not necessarily

comparable with similar information from other financial institutions In addition methodologies used to

measure assign and allocate certain items may change from time-to-time to reflect among other things

accounting estimate refinements changes in risk profiles changes in customers or product lines and changes in

management structure For example during 2007 the Company refined its method for measuring fund transfer

adjustments to include non-earning assets liabilities and equity in addition to funds transfer adjustments for

loans made and deposits generated The effect of this change for 2007 was to increase net interest income of the

Commercial Banking and Retail Banking Segments by $5.1 million and $1.9 million respectively

Total Segment results differ from consolidated results primarily due to inter-segment eliminations certain

corporate administration costs items not otherwise allocated in the management accounting process and treasury

and investment activities such as the offset to the funds transfer adjustments made to the Segments interest

income on the securities investment portfolio gains and losses on the sale of securities COLI CRA related fund

income and derivative gains and losses The impact of these items is aggregated to reconcile the amounts

presented for the Segments to the consolidated results and is included in the Other column of Note 16 of the

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements As result of the Federated and West Banc transactions the results

of 1MG for the current and prior periods are reported as discontinued operations Goodwill write-off totaling $6.1

million is included in the other non-interest expense line of the segment financials and is further discussed in

Note of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Commercial Banking

The Commercial Banking Segment Commercial provides commercial banking services to middle market and

small business customers through the Banks branch locations The services provided by Commercial include

lending business checking and deposits treasury management and other traditional as well as electronic services

Overview Commercial net loss for 2008 was $85.8 million compared to net income of $24.0 million and $34.7

million in 2007 and 2006 respectively Commercial total assets were $3.0 billion at December 31 2008 and

represented 60% of total consolidated assets This compares to $3.1 billion and 60% at December 31 2007

Comparison of 2008 to 2007 Commercial net loss for 2008 was $85.8 million decline of $109.8 million from

2007 net income of $24.0 million The decline was due to $155.6 million increase in Provision and $22.9

million decrease in net-interest income that were partially offset by $68.7 million decrease in income taxes
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The decrease in net interest income was driven by increased levels of non-accrual loans decreased loan and

deposit volumes and the reversal of accrued interest on loans placed on non-accrual status The increase in

Provision was primarily due to deterioration of credit quality and increased volumes of non-performing loans

particularly in the residential construction and development loans which were affected by declining real estate

sales activity softening collateral values and large concentrations Income taxes were lower due to change from

income before tax to loss before tax

Comparison of 2007 to 2006 Commercial net income for 2007 was $24.0 million decline of $10.7 million or

31% from 2006 net income of $34.7 million The decline was due to $20.6 million increase in Provision and

$4.6 million increase in non-interest expense that were partially offset by an $8.1 million increase in net interest

income and $6.8 million decrease in income taxes

In addition to the $5.1 million effect of the change in funds transfer pricing noted above the increase in net

interest income was due to higher average loan volumes net of lower spreads The increase in Provision was

primarily due to increased net charge-offs delinquencies and non-performing loans The increase in non-interest

expense was primarily due to higher facilities expense and allocated corporate support costs Income taxes were

lower due to decline in income before tax

Retail Banking

The Retail Banking Segment Retail provides banking services to individual customers through the Banks

branch locations The services provided by Retail include direct and indirect lending checking savings money

market and certificate of deposit CD accounts safe deposit rental ATMs and other traditional and electronic

services

Overview Retail net income for 2008 was $1.9 million compared to $18.3 million and $11.5 million in 2007

and 2006 respectively Retail total assets were $824 million at December 31 2008 and represented 16% of total

consolidated assets This compares to $692 million and 13% at December 31 2007

Comparison of 2008 to 2007 Retail net income for 2008 was $1.9 million decrease of $16.4 million from

2007 The decrease was due to $17.2 million increase in Provision and $10.3 million increase in operating

expenses These were partly offset by $3.6 million increase in non-interest income and an $8.2 million decrease

in income taxes

The increase in Provision was mainly due to higher net charge-offs including $2.5 million in charge-offs on two

large home equity credits that were managed by Retail The increase in operating expenses was largely due to

$3.6 million goodwill write-off higher rental expense associated with new branches that were not yet open or not

open for the entire period in 2007 the effects of the Facilities Consolidation and higher allocated expenses The

increase in non-interest income was mainly due to higher service charges on deposits brokerage commission

referral income and bankcard fee income Income taxes decreased due to lower income before taxes

Comparison of 2007 to 2006 Retail net income for 2007 was $18.3 million an increase of $6.8 million or 62%

from 2006 The increase was due to $5.2 million increase in net interest income $6.2 million increase in

non-interest income and $1.8 million decrease in Provision These were partly offset by $1.9 million increase

in non-interest expense and $4.4 million increase in income taxes

In addition to the $1.9 million affect of the change in funds transfer pricing noted above the increase in net

interest income was primarily due to increased funding credits on deposit balances These were partially offset by

higher interest expense due to rising short-term interest rates The increase in non-interest income was due to

higher service charges on deposits bankcard fees and customer service fees The decrease in Provision was due

to one large credit loss that occurred in 2006 The increase in non-interest expense was due to higher facilities

expense Income taxes increased due to higher income before taxes
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Investment Management and Trust

The Investment Management and Trust Segment IMT provides wealth management services which includes

trust services investment management estate administration financial planning employee benefit plan

recordkeeping and administration and brokerage services

Overview IMT net income for 2008 was $2.2 million compared to $2.6 million and $1.4 million in 2007 and

2006 respectively IMT total assets were $11 million at December 31 2008 and represented less than 1% of total

consolidated assets At December 31 2007 IMT total assets were $13 million also less than 1% of total

consolidated assets

Comparison of 2008 to 2007 IMT net income for 2008 was $2.2 million decrease of $0.4 million from 2007

decline in non-interest income was more than offset by decreases in non-interest expense and income taxes

The decline in non-interest income was due to lower retirement plan service fees and wealth management fees

both of which were affected by declining administered asset values

Comparison of 2007 to 2006 IMT net income for 2007 was $2.6 million an increase of $1.1 million or 81%

from 2006 An increase of $1.5 million in non-interest income and decline of $0.3 million in non-interest

expense were partially offset by $0.7 million increase in income taxes

The increase in non-interest income was attributable to higher personal trust services income employee benefit

income and brokerage commission income Income taxes increased due to higher income before taxes

Mortgage Banking

The Mortgage Banking Segment Mortgage provides variety of mortgage lending products to meet its

customers needs It sells most of the loans it originates to third-party mortgage services company which

provides private-label loan processing and servicing support on both sold and retained loans

Overview Mortgage net loss for 2008 was $0.5 million compared to $1.5 million net income in 2007 and $0.5

million net loss in 2006 Mortgage total assets were $201 million at December 31 2008 and represented 4% of

total consolidated assets This compares to $264 million and 5% at December 31 2007

Comparison of 2008 to 2007 Mortgage net loss for 2008 was $0.5 million decrease of $2.0 million from

2007 The decrease was primarily due to $3.8 million decline in non-interest income net of $2.2 million

decrease in operating expenses and $1.3 million decrease in income tax expense

The decrease in non-interest income was primarily due to the $2.6 million OMSR Gain recorded in 2007 lower

servicing fee income attributable to the OMSR Sale and lower closing volumes year-over-year The decrease in

operating expenses was attributable to lower personnel costs and allocated expenses the benefit of an improved

cost structure associated with the Mortgage Restructuring Income taxes decreased due to lower income before

taxes

Comparison of 2007 to 2006 Mortgage net income for 2007 was $1.5 million an increase of $2.0 million from

2006 The increase was primarily due to $3.2 million decline in non-interest expense net of $1.3 million

increase in income tax expense

The decline in non-interest
expense was primarily due to lower personnel and allocated corporate support costs

as the cost of servicing mortgage loans has been substantially eliminated after the transition to the third party

processor and servicer The decrease in personnel costs was net of severance costs associated with job

eliminations in connection with the transition Income taxes increased due to higher income before taxes The

$2.6 million OMSR Gain was largely offset by lower mortgage banking income and net interest income
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BALANCE SHEET REVIEW

Total assets were $5.1 billion at December 31 2008 decrease of $133 million or three percent from

December 31 2007 Total liabilities decreased $26 million over the same period and stockholders equity

decreased $107 million The following discusses changes in the major components of the Consolidated Balance

Sheet since December 31 2007

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents increased $6 million from December 31 2007 to December 31 2008 as the cash

provided by operating activities of $56 million exceeded the cash used in investing activities of $9 million plus

the cash used in financing activities of $41 million This compares to decrease of $14 million from

December 31 2006 to December 31 2007 as the cash used in financing activities of $126 million exceeded the

cash provided by operating activities of $62 million plus the cash provided by investing activities of $50 million

The $56 million of cash provided by operating activities during 2008 compares with $62 million provided in

2007 representing $6 million decrease in cash provided between the two years The $9 million of cash used in

investing activities during 2008 compares with $50 million cash provided in 2007 for decrease of $59 million

in cash provided between the two years
The decrease was primarily due to decline in cash proceeds from

security sales and maturities of $41 million combined with an increase in cash used to purchase securities and

other short-term investments of $22 million The $41 million of cash used in financing activities during 2008

compares with $125 million cash used in 2007 or decrease of $84 million in cash used between the two years

This was primarily due to $59 million decline in treasury share purchases as the Stock Repurchase

authorization expired during 2008 and $41 million decline in long-term borrowing payments $424 million

decline in bank-issued deposits was essentially offset by increases in wholesale funding sources

Securities Available for Sale

Total securities available for sale as of December 31 2008 were $858 million an increase of $15 million or two

percent from the prior year-end At December 31 2008 the total securities available for sale portfolio comprised

18% of total earning assets including COLT compared to 17% for 2007 Among the factors affecting the

decision to purchase or sell securities are the current assessment of economic and financial conditions including

the interest rate environment regulatory capital levels the liquidity needs of the Company and its pledging

obligations

As of December 2008 mortgage-backed MBS collateralized mortgage obligations CMO and other asset-

backed ABS securities totaled $606 million and represented 71% of total available for sale securities The

distribution included $107 million of MBS and $439 million of CMOs issued by U.S Government sponsored

enterprises GSEs and U.S Government Agencies and $44 million of CMOs and $16 million of ABS that were

privately issued nearly all of which are rated Aaa

The $858 million of total securities available for sale includes gross unrealized gains of $13 million and gross

unrealized losses of $26 million Unrealized gains and unrealized losses is the difference between securitys

fair value and carrying value The fair value of security is generally influenced by two factors market risk and

credit risk Market risk is the exposure of the security to changes in interest rate There is an inverse relationship

to changes in the fair value of the security with changes in interest rates meaning that when rates increase the

value of the security will decrease Conversely when rates decline the value of the security will increase Credit

risk arises from the extension of credit to counter-party for example purchase of corporate debt in security

form and the possibility that the counter-party may not meet its contractual obligations The Companys policy is

to invest in securities with low credit risk such as U.S Treasuries U.S government agencies such as the

Government National Mortgage Association or GNMA GSEs such as FHLMC and the Federal National
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Mortgage Association or FNMA state and political obligations and highly-rated private issue mortgage and

asset-backed securities Unlike agency debt GSE debt is not secured by the full faith and credit of the United

States

The combined effect of the Companys gross unrealized gains and
gross unrealized losses net of tax is included

as other comprehensive income OCI in stockholders equity as none of the securities with gross unrealized

losses are considered other than temporarily impaired Of the $26 million of gross unrealized losses $23 million

relate to securities that have had fair value less than book value for over twelve months Included in the $23

million of unrealized losses is $4 million related to three Aaa rated private issue mortgage related collateral

mortgage obligations and $19 million related to seven investment grade private issue asset backed obligations

These bonds have sufficient credit enhancement and the Company expects full recovery of principal As of

December 31 2008 the Company has the ability to hold and has no intent to dispose of the related securities

until maturity or upon fair value exceeding cost

For comparative purposes at December 31 2007 gross unrealized gains of $2 million and gross unrealized

losses of $7 million were included in the securities available for sale portfolio For further analysis of the

securities available for sale portfolio see Table and Note of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Loans Held for Sale

At December 31 2008 mortgage origination fundings awaiting sale were $7 million compared to $4 million at

December 31 2007 All loans held for sale are recorded at the lower of cost or market value Residential

mortgage loans are originated by the Companys Mortgage Banking Segment Prior to the Mortgage

Restructuring in 2007 the majority of non-conforming adjustable rate fixed-rate and balloon residential

mortgages were retained by the Bank while conforming adjustable rate fixed-rate and balloon residential

mortgage loans were sold in the secondary market in order to minimize interest rate risk as well as to generate

gains on the sale of these loans and servicing income Since the Mortgage Restructuring majority of all

mortgage loans are sold for fee net of origination costs See Significant Transactions discussed above

Loans

Loans represent the largest component of AMCOREs earning asset base At year-end 2008 total loans were

$3.8 billion decrease of $147 million from 2007 and represented 79% of total earning assets including COLI
See Table and Note of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Total commercial real estate loans including real estate construction loans decreased $162 million or seven

percent Residential real estate loans decreased $31 million or seven percent Commercial financial and

agricultural loans increased $4 million or one percent Installment and consumer loans increased $42 million or

12% The decrease in loans included the Loan Sale

Goodwill

The Companys goodwill balance of $6.1 million was written off during 2008

Deposits

Total deposits at December 31 2008 were $3.9 billion decrease of $84 million or two percent when compared

to 2007 The decrease was due to $568 million decrease in bank-issued deposits net of $484 million increase

in wholesale deposits The decline in bank-issued deposits included $43 million decline in non-interest bearing

deposits and $643 million decline in non-time interest bearing deposits These declines were partly offset by

$118 million increase in time deposits The declines in non-time deposits were largely attributable to institutional

and other high balance deposits that exceeded historical FDIC insurance limits that elected to diversify their
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coverage by moving deposits to other financial institutions In some instances the deposit balances were

collateralized and the decline freed up the collateral for other uses Some large corporate deposits are now

included in short-term borrowings as the customers have elected to participate in repo-sweep product

Balances in this product increased $69 million since December 31 2007 The increase in time deposits is

attributable to deposit attraction strategies employed by the Bank in recent months as well as growth in product

offered by the Bank that enables customers to increase their FDIC-insured balances Bank-issued deposits

represented 72% of total deposits at December 31 2008 compared to 85% at December 31 2007 Table shows

the maturity distribution of time deposits $100000 and over

Borrowings

Borrowings totaled $815 million at year-end 2008 and were comprised of $436 million of short-term and $380

million of long-term borrowings Comparable amounts at the end of 2007 were $397 million and $369 million

respectively for combined increase in borrowings of $50 million or six percent The net increase in borrowings

included $135 million in repurchase agreements of which $69 million were the customer-sourced repo-sweep

product which is secured form of borrowing $50 million in Federal Reserve Bank Term Auction Facility

TAF borrowings and $10 million in draws against senior debt The increase was partially offset by $109

million decline in Fed Funds purchased $26 million decrease in FHLB advances and $9 million in U.S

Treasury tax and loan note TT accounts Subsequent to the end of 2008 the maturity of its senior debt

was extended to April 15 2010 See Notes and of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

The Company has $50 million of Trust Preferred securities that qualify as Tier Capital for regulatory capital

purposes for the Company In first quarter of 2009 the Company elected to defer regularly scheduled quarterly

interest payments on the Trust Preferred securities The deferral of interest does not constitute an event of

default per the terms of the indentures While the Company defers the payment of interest it will continue to

accrue expense for interest owed at compounded rate The Bank has two fixed/floating rate junior subordinated

debentures totaling combined $50 million that qualify as Tier Capital for regulatory capital purposes for both

the Bank and the Company See also Note 18 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

On January 28 2009 Fitch downgraded the Companys and the Banks long-term Issuer Default ratings to CCC

and B- respectively Short-term issuer default ratings for both the Company and the Bank were downgraded to

In addition Fitch revised the Rating Outlook to Rating Watch Off

Stockholders Equity

See discussion below under Liquidity and Capital Management

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

During the ordinary course of its business the Company engages in financial transactions that are not recorded

on its Consolidated Balance Sheets are recorded in amounts that are different than their full principal or notional

amount or are recorded on an equity or cost basis rather than being consolidated Such transactions serve

variety of purposes including management of the Companys interest rate risk liquidity and credit concentration

risks optimization of capital utilization assistance in meeting the financial needs of its customers and

satisfaction of CRA obligations in the markets that the Company serves

Auto loan sales Historically the Company has periodically transferred indirect automobile loans in

securitization transactions in exchange for cash and certain retained residual interests The transfers were

structured as sales pursuant to SFAS No 140 Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and

Extinguishment of Liabilities
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During 2007 the outstanding balances of the underlying loans fell to level where the cost of servicing the loans

became burdensome in relation to the benefits of servicing As result the Company exercised its Clean-up Call

option and repurchased the loans The carrying value of the retained residual interests was written off As of

December 31 2007 the balance of the repurchased loans included on the Companys Consolidated Balance

Sheet was $22 million

Mortgage loan sales Historically the Company sold most of the mortgage loans that it originated to the

secondary market retaining the right to service the loans that were sold As result the loans were removed

from the Companys Consolidated Balance Sheets an OMSR asset was recorded and gains on the sale of the

loans were recognized pursuant to SFAS No 140 During 2007 the Company sold the majority of its OMSR
portfolio The Company now sells nearly all of the mortgage loans that it originates including the rights to

service the loans sold to national mortgage services company in private-label loan processing and servicing

support arrangement See above discussion of Significant Transactions At December 31 2008 and December 31
2007 the unpaid principal balance of mortgage loans serviced for others was $16 million and $17 million

respectively These loans are not recorded on the Companys Consolidated Balance Sheets As of December 31
2008 and December 31 2007 the Company had recorded $0.1 million of OMSRs There were no impairment
valuation allowances for either period

Derivatives The Company periodically uses derivative contracts to help manage its
exposure to changes in

interest rates and in conjunction with its mortgage banking operations The derivatives used most often are

interest rate swaps and on occasion caps collars and floors collectively the Interest Rate Derivatives

mortgage loan commitments and forward contracts As of December 31 2008 and 2007 there were no caps
collars or floors outstanding Interest Rate Derivatives are contracts with third-party the Counter-party to

exchange interest payment streams based upon an assumed principal amount the Notional Principal Amount
The Notional Principal Amount is not advanced to/from the Counter-party It is used only as reference point to

calculate the exchange of interest payment streams and is not recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheets

AMCORE does not have any derivatives that are held or issued for trading purposes but it does have some

derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting AMCORE monitors credit risk exposure to the Counter-

parties All Counter-parties or their
parent company have investment grade credit ratings and are expected to

meet any outstanding interest payment obligations

The total notional amount of Interest Rate Derivatives outstanding was $43 million and $141 million as of

December 31 2008 and December 31 2007 respectively As of December 31 2008 Interest Rate Derivatives

had net negative carrying and fair value of $1.0 million compared to net negative carrying and fair value of

$1.7 million at December 31 2007 The total notional amount of forward contracts outstanding for mortgage
loans to be sold was $61 million and $23 million as of December 31 2008 and December 31 2007 respectively

As of December 31 2008 the forward contracts had net negative carrying and fair value of $0.6 million

compared to net negative carrying and fair value of $0.1 million at December 31 2007 For further discussion

of derivatives see Notes and 10 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Loan commitments and letters of credit The Company as provider of financial services routinely enters into

commitments to extend credit to its Bank customers including variety of letters of credit Letters of credit are

conditional but generally irrevocable form of guarantee on the part of the Bank to make payments to third party

obligee upon the default of payment or performance by the Bank customer or upon consummation of the

underlying transaction as intended While these represent potential outlay by the Company significant

amount of the commitments and letters of credit may expire without being drawn upon Commitments and letters

of credit are subject to the same credit policies underwriting standards and approval process as loans made by
the Company

At both December 31 2008 and December 31 2007 liabilities in the amount of $0.1 million representing the

value of the guarantee obligations associated with certain of the letters of credit had been recorded in accordance
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with FIN No 45 These amounts are expected to be amortized into income over the lives of the commitments
The contractual amount of all letters of credit including those exempted from the scope of FIN No 45 was $74
million and $192 million at December 31 2008 and the end of 2007 respectively See Notes 10 and 13 of the

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

The net carrying value of mortgage loan commitments recorded as an asset totaled $0.4 million and less than

$0.1 million at December 31 2008 and December 31 2007 respectively These amounts represent the fair value
of those commitments marked-to-market in accordance with SFAS No 138 Accounting for Derivative

Instruments and Hedging Activities and in accordance with SAB No 105 The total notional amount of

mortgage loan commitments was $55 million at December 31 2008 and $18 million at December 31 2007 See

Note of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

At December 31 2008 and December 31 2007 the Company had extended $596 million and $867 million

respectively in loan commitments other than the mortgage loan commitments and letters of credit described

above This amount represented the notional amount of the commitment contingent liability of $5.8 million

and $1.0 million has been recorded for the Companys estimate of probable losses on unfunded commitments

including letters of credit outstanding at December 31 2008 and December 31 2007 respectively

Equity investments The Company has some non-marketable equity investments that have not been

consolidated in its financial statements but rather are recorded in accordance with either the cost or equity
method of accounting depending on the percentage of ownership At December 31 2008 and December 31
2007 these investments included $5 million and $4 million respectively in CRA related investments Not
included in the carrying amount were commitments to fund an additional $1.5 million at some future date The

Company also has recorded investments of $5 million $20 million and less than $0.1 million respectively in

stock of the Federal Reserve Bank the FHLB and preferred stock of Federal Agricultural Mortgage Corporation
at December 31 2008 At December 31 2007 these amounts were $4 million $20 million and less than $0.1

million respectively These investments are recorded at amortized historical cost or fair value as applicable
with income recorded when dividends are declared

Other investments comprised of various affordable housing tax credit projects AHTCP and other CRA related

investments totaled approximately $0.6 million and $0.7 million at December 31 2008 and December 31 2007
respectively Losses are limited to the remaining investment and there are no additional funding commitments on
the AHTCPs by the Company Those investments without guaranteed yields were reported on the equity method
while those with guaranteed yields were reported using the effective yield method The maximum exposure to

loss for all non-marketable equity investments is the sum of the carrying amounts plus additional commitments
if any and the potential for the recapture of tax credits on AHTCP should it fail to qualify for the entire period

required by tax regulations

Other investments The Company also holds $2 million in common security investment in AMCORE Capital
Trust the Capital Trust to which the Company has $52 million in long-term debt outstanding The Capital
Trust in addition to the $2 million in common securities issued to the Company has $50 million in Trust
Preferred securities outstanding The $50 million in Trust Preferred securities were issued to non-affiliated

investors during 2007 and are redeemable beginning in 2012 In its Consolidated Balance Sheets the Company
reflects its $2 million common security investment on the equity method and reports the entire $52 million as

outstanding long-term debt For regulatory purposes however the $50 million in Trust Preferred securities

qualifies as Tier capital for the Company

Fiduciary and agency The Companys subsidiaries also hold assets in fiduciary or agency capacity that are

not included in the Consolidated Financial Statements because they are not assets of the Company Total assets

administered by the Company were $2.0 billion at December 31 2008 and $2.7 billion at December 31 2007
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Contractual Obligations

In the ordinary course of its business the Company enters into certain contractual arrangements These

obligations include issuance of debt to fund operations property leases and derivative transactions With the

predominant portion of its business being banking the Company routinely enters into and exits various funding

relationships including the issuance and extinguishment of long-term debt See the discussion of Borrowings

above and Notes and of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements During 2008 the Company did not

enter into any new lease agreements but gave notice of its intent to exit two of its limited branch offices and one

of its full service branch offices recording lease termination obligation of $1.2 million Other than these

transactions there were no material changes in the Companys contractual obligations since the end of 2007

Amounts as of December 31 2008 are listed in the following table

Payments due by period

Less More

than 1-3 3-5 than

Contractual Obligations Total Year Years Years Years

in thousands

Time Deposits $2229139 $1201473 852265 $174944 457

Long-Term Debt 457432 20667 156934 219937 59894

Capital Lease Obligations 2479 225 456 409 1389

Operating Leases 99976 4212 8104 6908 80752

Service Contracts 1160 456 621 83

Interest Rate Swaps 3898 1984 1785 129

Planned Pension Obligation Funding 6248 382 750 736 4380

Total $2800332 $1229399 $1020915 $403146 $146872

Includes related interest Interest calculations on debt with call features were calculated through the first call

date Any debt with floating rates was calculated using the rate in effect at December 31 2008 See Note

of Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Includes related interest See Note of Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Swap contract payments relate only to the pay side of the transaction Any contracts with floating rates

were calculated using the rate in effect at December 31 2008

ASSET QUALITY REVIEW AND CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT

AMCOREs credit risk is centered in its loan portfolio which totaled $3.8 billion or 79% of earning assets

including COLI on December 31 2008 The objective in managing loan portfolio risk is to quantify and manage

credit risk on portfolio basis as well as reduce the risk of loss resulting from customers failure to perform

according to the terms of transaction To achieve this objective AMCORE strives to maintain loan portfolio

that is diverse in terms of loan type industry concentration and borrower concentration

The Company is also exposed to carrier credit risk with respect to its $145 million investment in COLI

AMCORE has managed this risk by utilizing separate accounts in which its credit exposure
is to specific

investment portfolio rather than the carrier The underlying investment portfolios which are managed by parties

other than AMCORE consist of investment grade securities and the investment guidelines typically have

requirement to sell if the securities are downgraded Separate accounts constitute the majority of AMCOREs
COLT portfolio In terms of COLT accounts where AMCORE is directly exposed to carrier risk this risk has been

managed by diversifying its holdings among multiple carriers and by periodic internal credit reviews All carriers

have investment grade ratings from the major rating agencies

Allowance for Loan Losses The Allowance is significant estimate that is regularly reviewed by management

to determine whether or not the amount is considered adequate to absorb inherent losses that are probable as of

the reporting date If not an additional Provision is made to increase the Allowance Conversely this review
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could result in decrease in the Allowance This evaluation includes specific loss estimates on certain

individually reviewed impaired loans and statistical loss estimates for loan
groups or pools that are based on

historical loss experience Also included are other loss estimates which reflect the current credit environment

that are not otherwise captured in the historical loss rates

The determination by management of the appropriate level of the Allowance amounted to $136 million at

December 31 2008 compared to $53 million at December 31 2007 an increase of $83 million or 157%

Specific loss estimates on individually reviewed impaired loans and loss estimates on loan poois increased $14

million and $69 million respectively at December 31 2008 compared to December 31 2007 The increase in

the Allowance was taken in light of sustained increases in non-performing loans increased delinquencies higher

net charge-offs and the rapid deterioration in real estate sales activity in the Midwest that negatively affects the

liquidity and capital resources of borrowers and the borrowers ability to make principal and interest payment

when due The decline in sales activity also leads to eroding property values which serve as collateral for the

repayment of loans

At December 31 2008 the Allowance as percent of total loans and of non-performing loans was 3.60% and

44% respectively These compare to the same ratios at December 31 2007 of 1.35% arid 75% Net charge-offs

were $100 million in 2008 an increase of $83 million from $17 million in 2007 This was 2.58% and 0.42% of

average loans respectively Increases included commercial real estate net charge-offs of $68 million commercial

and industrial net charge-offs of $10 million and $5 million in consumer/installment net charge-offs

Non-performing Assets Non-performing assets consist of non-accrual loans loans ninety days past due and

still accruing interest foreclosed real estate and other repossessed assets Non-performing assets totaled $330

million as of December 31 2008 an increase of $255 million from $75 million at December 31 2007 The

increase since December 31 2007 consisted of $242 million increase in non-performing loans driven by rapid

weakening of real estate conditions in the Companys markets These market conditions are expected to persist

into 2009 Foreclosed assets increased by $13 million as newly foreclosed loans exceeded liquidations of

existing foreclosed assets Total non-performing assets represented 6.53% and .45% of total assets at

December 31 2008 and December 31 2007 respectively

While the Company strives to reflect all known risk factors in its evaluation the ultimate loss could differ

materially from the current estimate See Critical Accounting Estimates for discussion of the judgments and

assumptions that are most critical in determining the adequacy of the Allowance

In addition to the amount of non-accruing and delinquent loans over ninety days past due management is aware

that other possible credit problems of borrowers may exist These include loans that are migrating from grades

with lower risk of loss probabilities into grades with higher risk of loss probabilities as performance and

potential repayment issues surface The Company monitors these loans and adjusts its historical loss rates in its

Allowance evaluation accordingly The most severe of these are credits that are classified as substandard assets

due to either less than satisfactory performance history lack of borrowers sound worth or paying capacity or

inadequate collateral As of December 31 2008 and December 31 2007 there were $11 million and $6 million

respectively in this risk category that were 60 to 89 days delinquent and $20 million and $13 million

respectively that were 30 to 59 days past due At December 31 2008 90% of these loans were current or less

than thirty days past due

Concentration of Credit Risks As previously discussed AMCORE strives to maintain diverse loan portfolio

in an effort to minimize the effect of credit risk Summarized below are the characteristics of classifications that

exceed 10% of total loans

Commercial financial and agricultural loans were $772 million at December 31 2008 and comprised 20% of

gross loans of which 6.57% were non-performing Net charge-offs of commercial loans in 2008 and 2007 were

1.91% and 0.64% respectively of the
average balance of the category
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Commercial real estate and construction loans were $2.2 billion at December 31 2008 comprising 58% of gross

loans of which 11.53% were classified as non-performing Net charge-offs of construction and commercial real

estate loans during 2008 and 2007 were 3.30% and 0.29% respectively of the average balance of the category

The above commercial loan categories included $618 million in construction land development loans and other

land loans and $616 million of loans to lessors of non-residential building each of which were 16% of total

loans There were no other loan concentrations within these categories that exceeded 10% of total loans

Residential real estate loans which include home equity and permanent residential financing totaled $438

million at December 31 2008 and represented 12% of gross loans of which 1.75% were non-performing Net

charge-offs of residential real estate during 2008 and 2007 were 0.88% and 0.11% respectively of the average

balance in this category The increases in net charge offs reflect credit conditions in general and the chargedown

of two larger credits The Bank does not engage in sub-prime lending

Installment and consumer loans were $377 million at December 31 2008 and comprised 10% of gross loans of

which 0.31% were non-performing Net charge-offs of consumer loans during 2008 and 2007 were 1.61% and

1.36% respectively of the average balance of the category Consumer loans are comprised primarily of in-market

indirect auto loans and direct installment loans Indirect auto loans totaled $315 million at December 31 2008 Both

direct loans and indirect auto loans are approved and funded through centralized department utilizing the same

credit scoring system to provide standard methodology for the extension of consumer credit

Contained within the concentrations described above the Company has $1.4 billion of interest-only loans of

which $781 million are included in the construction and commercial real estate loan category $443 million are

included in the commercial financial and agricultural loan category and $173 million are in home equity loans

and lines of credit The Company does not have any negative amortization loans and does not have material

concentrations in relation to its total portfolio of high loan-to-value loans option adjustable-rate mortgage loans

or loans that initially have below market rates that significantly increase after the initial period

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

Liquidity Management

Overview Liquidity management is the process by which the Company through its Asset and Liability

Committee ALCO and capital markets and treasury function ensures that adequate liquid funds are available to

meet its financial commitments on timely basis at reasonable cost and within acceptable risk tolerances

Liquidity is derived primarily from bank-issued deposit growth and retention principal and interest payments on

loans principal and interest payments sale maturity and prepayment of investment securities net cash provided

from operations and access to other funding sources Other funding sources include brokered CDs Fed Funds

purchased lines Federal Reserve Bank discount window advances TTL TAF borrowings FHLB advances

repurchase agreements the sale or securitization of loans subordinated debentures balances maintained at

correspondent banks and access to other capital market instruments Bank-issued deposits which exclude

wholesale deposits are considered by management to be the primary most stable and most cost-effective source

of funding and liquidity The Bank also has capacity over time to place additional brokered CDs as source of

mid- to long-term funds The ESA and related government programs may also be source of potential liquidity

AMCORE continues to review these programs for their potential to add value to its customers and business and

has not determined their potential impact on its future financial position results of operation cash flows or

liquidity

Uses of liquidity include funding credit obligations to borrowers funding of mortgage originations pending sale

withdrawals by depositors repayment of debt when due or called maintaining adequate collateral for public

deposits paying dividends to shareholders payment of operating expenses funding capital expenditures and

maintaining deposit reserve requirements
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During 2008 wholesale funding which includes borrowings and brokered deposits increased $533 million Of
this increase $69 million were the Banks customer-sourced repo-sweep product which is secured form of

borrowing Wholesale funding represented 37% of total assets at December 31 2008 compared to 26% as of the

end of 2007 The Companys liquidity was considered adequate to meet its foreseeable needs as of December 31
2008

Investment securities portfolio Scheduled maturities of the Companys investment securities portfolio and the

prepayment of mortgage and asset backed securities represent significant source of liquidity Approximately
$82 million or nine percent of the securities portfolio will contractually mature in 2009 See Table This does

not include mortgage and asset backed securities since their payment streams may differ from contractual

maturities because borrowers may have the right to prepay obligations typically without penalty For example
scheduled maturities for 2008 excluding mortgage and asset backed securities were $26 million whereas actual

proceeds from the portfolio which included scheduled payments and prepayments of mortgage and asset backed

securities were $304 million This compares to proceeds of $196 million and $209 million in 2007 and 2006
respectively

At December 31 2008 securities available for sale were $858 million or 17% of total assets compared to $843

million or 16% at December 31 2007

Loans Funding of loans is the most significant liquidity need representing 75% of total assets as of

December 31 2008 Since December 31 2007 loans decreased $147 million Loans held for sale which

represents mortgage origination funding awaiting sale declined $3 million The scheduled repayments and

maturities of loans represent substantial source of liquidity Table shows for selected loan categories that

$745 million in maturities are scheduled for 2009

Bank-issued deposits Bank-issued deposits are the most cost-effective and reliable source of liquidity for the

Company During 2008 bank-issued deposits declined $568 million Scheduled maturities of time deposits of

$100000 or more as reflected in Table are $697 million in 2009 of which $197 million are bank-issued

Branch expansion The Bank is slowing the opening of new branches to only those already in the construction

pipeline or under contract Except for loan growth branch expansion is not expected to require significant

amount of liquidity

Parent company In addition to the overall liquidity needs of the Company the parent company requires

adequate liquidity to pay its expenses repay debt when due and pay stockholder dividends Liquidity is primarily

provided to the parent company through the Bank in the form of dividends The Bank is limited by regulation in

the amount of dividends that it can pay without prior regulatory approval In recent years the Company took

steps to transfer excess liquidity to the parent company from the Bank with dividend payments of $60 million

and $55 million in 2007 and 2006 respectively For 2009 current Bank earnings are not expected to be paid as

dividends without prior regulatory approval See Note 17 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Other sources of liquidity As of December 31 2008 other sources of potentially available liquidity included

borrowings from the Federal Reserve Bank The Company also has capacity over time to place sufficient

amounts of brokered CDs as source of mid- to long-term liquidity Unfunded Fed Funds lines also provide

source of overnight liquidity The Banks indirect auto portfolio which at December 31 2008 was $315 million

is potential source of liquidity through future loans sales or securitizations The sale of preferred stock to the

United States Treasury and temporary expansion of FDIC insured deposit levels
pursuant to the CPP is also

potential source of liquidity that is being evaluated These potential sources are not committed lines in that the

availability and terms including advance rates on collateral can vary The recent trends have been for lower

advance or lending rates on assets
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Other uses of liquidity At December 31 2008 other potential uses of liquidity totaled $731 million and

included $596 million in commitments to extend credit $61 million in residential mortgage commitments

primarily held for sale and $74 million in letters of credit At December 31 2007 these amounts totaled $1.1

billion

The Company entered into stock redemption agreement Redemption Agreement on October 16 1989 as

amended June 30 1993 pursuant to Section 303 of the Internal Revenue Code to pay death taxes and other

related expenses of certain stockholders Such redemptions may be subject to bank regulatory agency approvals

or limited by debt covenant restrictions

The Companys $20 million credit facility is due April 15 2010

Capital Management

Total stockholders equity at December 31 2008 was $262 million decrease of $107 million from

December 31 2007 The decrease in stockholders equity was due to $104 million decrease in retained earnings

and $5 million decrease in accumulated other comprehensive income net of other increases in capital of $2

million The $104 million decrease in retained earnings was due to the $98 million 2008 net loss and cash

dividends paid of $6 million In addition to the cash dividends the Company paid stock dividends in June and

September 2008 equivalent to $0.135 per share each Beginning equity account balances were restated for the

effects of the stock dividends and all share amounts were restated for all periods presented The book value
per

share decreased $4.76 per share to $11.55 at December 31 2008 down from $16.31 at December 31 2007

AMCORE has outstanding $52 million of capital securities through the Capital Trust Of the $52 million $50

million qualifies as Tier capital for the Companys regulatory capital purposes which is the $52 million

reduced by the $2 million of common equity securities owned by the Company During 2006 the Company

issued fixed/floating rate junior subordinated debentures in the amount of $50 million The debt qualifies as Tier

Capital for Bank and Company regulatory capital purposes The Bank has the capacity to issue under

regulatory guidelines additional subordinated debt that would qualify as Tier Capital
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As the following table indicates AMCOREs total risk-based capital Tier capital and leverage ratio all exceeded

the regulatory minimums of capital adequacy as of December 31 2008 There are five levels of capital defined by

the regulations well-capitalized adequately capitalized undercapitalized significantly undercapitalized and

critically undercapitalized As of December 31 2008 the Bank is considered well-capitalized under this regulatory

framework the highest designation AMCORE like many financial institutions have historically maintained capital

at or above the well-capitalized minimum Also like many financial institutions this year AMCORE has

experienced steady declines in its capital levels as credit losses have risen As noted previously the Company

expects the credit crisis that is affecting the economy in general to persist into 2009 and will likely bring with it

additional credit losses If these expectations are realized AMCORE may temporarily or otherwise fall below the

well-capitalized level during first quarter 2009 Falling below well-capitalized may potentially affect among other

things changes in the Companys borrowing costs and terms from regulatory authorities and other third parties the

Banks FDIC deposit insurance premiums and AMCOREs ability to access the brokered CD markets Even so the

Company expects to have sufficient liquidity to operate with these limitations AMCORE has simulated its capital

levels under various stress scenarios and does not expect its capital level to fall below adequately capitalized as

defined by the regulations As noted previously under Key Initiatives AMCORE is actively pursuing opportunities

to raise additional capital and otherwise enhance its capital position through variety of means The Company is

also discussing with its regulators the regulatory standards notwithstanding what an appropriate level of capital

should be given the current credit environment and the Banks level of non-performing loans Such minimum levels

may be at level greater than the level required to be considered well-capitalized under applicable regulations

Dollars in thousands December 31 2008 December 31 2007

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

Total Capital to Risk Weighted Assets 408205 10.04% 519487 11.68%

Total Capital Adequacy Minimum 325333 8.00% 355697 8.00%

Amount in Excess of Capital Adequacy Minimum 82872 2.04% 163790 3.68%

Tier Capital to Risk Weighted Assets 306245 7.53% 415371 9.34%

Tier Capital Adequacy Minimum 162666 4.00% 177849 4.00%

Amount in Excess of Capital Adequacy Minimum 143579 3.53% 237522 5.34%

Tier Capital to Average Assets 306245 6.06% 415371 8.00%

Tier Capital Adequacy Minimum 202006 4.00% 207725 4.00%

Amount in Excess of Capital Adequacy Minimum 104239 2.06% 207646 4.00%

Risk Weighted Assets $4066661 $4446219

Average Assets $5050150 $5193119
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ITEM 7A QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

As part of its normal operations AMCORE is subject to interest-rate risk on the assets it invests in primarily

loans and securities and the liabilities it funds with primarily customer deposits brokered deposits and

borrowed funds as well as its ability to manage such risk Fluctuations in interest rates may result in changes in

the fair market values of AMCORE financial instruments cash flows and net interest income Like most

financial institutions AMCORE has an exposure to changes in both short-term and long-term interest rates

While AMCORE manages other risks in its normal course of operations such as credit and liquidity risk it

considers interest-rate risk to be its most significant market risk Other types of market risk such as foreign

currency exchange risk and commodity price risk do not arise in the normal course of AMCORE business

activities and operations In addition since as of December 31 2008 AMCORE did not hold trading portfolio

it was not exposed to significant market risk from trading activities During 2007 there were no material changes

in AMCORE primary market risk exposures Based upon current expectations no material changes are

anticipated in the future in the types of market risks facing AMCORE

Like most financial institutions AMCORE net income can be significantly influenced by variety of external

factors including overall economic conditions policies and actions of regulatory authorities the amounts of and

rates at which assets and liabilities reprice variances in prepayment of loans and securities other than those that

are assumed early withdrawal of deposits exercise of call options on borrowings or securities competition

general rise or decline in interest rates changes in the slope of the yield-curve changes in historical relationships

between indices such as LIBOR and prime and balance sheet growth or contraction AMCOREs asset and

liability committee ALCO seeks to manage interest rate risk under variety of rate environments by structuring

the Companys balance sheet and off-balance sheet positions The risk is monitored and managed within

approved policy limits

The Company utilizes simulation analysis to quantify the impact on income before income taxes under various

rate scenarios Specific cash flows repricing characteristics and embedded options of the assets and liabilities

held by the Company are incorporated into the simulation model Earnings at risk is calculated by comparing the

income before income taxes of stable interest rate environment to the income before income taxes of different

interest rate environment in order to determine the percentage change

The following table summarizes the affect on annual income before income taxes based upon an immediate

increase or decrease in interest rates of 100 basis points and no change in the slope of the yield curve

Asof Asof

December 31 December 31

Change In Interest Rates 2008 2007

100 4.6% 1.8%

-100 -8.3% -5.5%

The amounts and assumptions used in the simulation model should not be viewed as indicative of expected actual

results Actual results will differ from simulated results due to timing magnitude and frequency of interest rate

changes as well as changes in market conditions and management strategies The above results do not take into

account any management action to mitigate potential risk
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TABLE

ANALYSIS OF NET INTEREST INCOME AND AVERAGE BALANCE SHEET

Years Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Average Average Average Average Average Average
Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate

dollars in thousands

Assets

Investment securities 875336 41225 4.71% 874459 39391 4.50% $1120828 50926 4.54%

Short-term investments 36554 752 2.06% 8551 494 5.77% 7071 380 5.38%

Loans held for sale 5928 388 6.55% 10217 606 5.94% 22843 1220 5.34%

Loans

Commercial 774948 45206 5.83% 798290 64949 8.14% 817882 64747 7.92%

Commercial real estate 2278095 133619 5.87% 2.371388 182143 7.68% 2236353 170389 7.62%

Residential real estate 455119 26915 5.91% 493466 34728 7.04% 489110 33420 6.83%

Consumer 352772 27878 7.90% 313884 24289 7.74% 314818 22286 7.08%

Total loans $3860934 $233618 6.05% $3977028 $306109 7.70% $3858163 $290842 7.54%

Total interest-earning assets $4778752 $275983 5.78% $4870255 $346600 7.12% $5008905 $343368 6.86%

Allowance for loan losses 102853 44917 41912
Non-interest-earning assets 437626 415160 402275

Total assets $5113525 $5240498 $5369268

Liabilities and Stockholders

Equity

Interest bearing deposits savings

deposits $1571500 26607 1.69% $1813939 59984 3.31% $1771301 51721 2.92%

Time deposits 1035212 40807 3.94% 1139694 53053 4.66% 1225364 50542 4.12%

Total bank issued interest-

bearing deposits $2606712 67414 2.59% $2953633 $113037 3.83% $2996665 $102263 3.41%

Wholesale deposits 796528 37327 4.69% 665.935 34150 5.13% 740897 35746 4.82%

Short-termborrowings 402187 13608 3.38% 276439 13728 4.97% 372743 17687 4.75%

Long-term borrowings 449886 22522 4.92% 396571 22517 5.68% 305078 18522 6.07%

Total interest-bearing

liabilities $4255313 $140871 3.30% $4292578 $183432 4.27% $4415383 $174218 3.95%

Non-interest bearing deposits 475579 497872 487264

Other liabilities 52713 64478 66705

Realized Stockholders Equity 334189 394228 416246

Other Comprehensive Loss 4269 8658 16330

Total Liabilities Stockholders

Equity $5113525 $5240498 $5369268

Net Interest Income FTE $135112 $163168 $169150

Net Interest Spread FTE 2.48% 2.85% 91%

Interest Rate Margin VFE 2.84% 3.35% 3.38%

The interest on tax-exempt securities and tax-exempt loans is calculated on tax equivalent basis ETE assuming federal tax rate of

35% FTE adjustments totaled $3.2 million in 2008 $2.6 million in 2007 and $4.2 million in 2006

The average balances of the securities are based on amortized historical cost

The balances of nonaccrual loans are included in average loans outstanding Interest on loans includes yield related loan fees of $3.1

million $3.2 million and $3.1 million for 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively
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TABLE

ANALYSIS OF NET INTEREST INCOME AND AVERAGE BALANCE SHEETContinued

Years Ended December 31

2008/2007 2007/2006

tncreaselDecrease Increase/Decrease
Due to Change in

Total Net
Due to Change in

Total Net

Average Average Increase Average Average Increase

Volume Rate Decrease Volume Rate Decrease

in thousands

Interest Income

Investment securities 40 1794 1834 $11102 433 $1l535

Short-term investments 747 489 258 84 30 114

Loans held for sale 276 58 218 738 124 614
Loans

Commercial 1918 17825 19743 1571 1773 202

Commercial real estate 6834 41690 48524 10362 1392 11754

Residential real estate 2558 5255 7813 300 1008 1308

Consumer 3035 554 3589 66 2069 2003

Total loans 8705 63786 72491 9072 6195 15267

Total Interest-Earning Assets 6401 $64216 $706l7 9657 $12889 3232

Interest Expense

Interest bearing deposits 7176 $26201 $33377 1270 6993 8263

Timedeposits 4585 7661 12246 3694 6205 2511

Total bank issued interest-bearing

deposits 12132 33491 45623 1487 12261 10774

Wholesale deposits 6296 3119 3177 3758 2162 1596
Short-term borrowings 5074 5194 120 4749 790 3959
Long-term borrowings 2875 2870 5259 1264 3995

Total Interest-Bearing Liabilities 1574 $40987 $42561 4946 $14160 9214

Net Interest Income FTE 4827 $23229 $28056 4711 $l27l 5982

The above analysis shows the changes in interest income tax equivalent FTE and interest expense
attributable

to volume and rate variances The change in interest income tax equivalent due to both volume and rate have

been allocated to volume and rate changes in proportion to the relationship of the absolute dollar amounts of the

change in each Because of changes in the mix of the components of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing

liabilities the computations for each of the components do not equal the calculation for interest-earning assets as

total or interest-bearing liabilities as total
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TABLE

ANALYSIS OF LOAN PORTFOLIO AND LOSS EXPERIENCE

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

dollars in thousands

LOAN PORTFOLIO AT YEAR END
Commercial financial and agricultural 771679 767312 798168 818657 764339

Real estate-commercial 1931962 1901453 1926813 1821868 1533917

Real estate-construction 267061 459727 420379 310006 250855

Real estate-residential 437877 468420 493500 459823 412753

Installment and consumer 377450 335772 307691 311497 316838

Direct lease financing 13 98

Gross loans $3786029 $3932684 $3946551 $3721864 $3278800

Allowance for loan losses 136412 53140 40913 40756 40945

Net Loans $3649617 $3879544 $3905638 $3681108 $3237855

SUMMARY OF LOSS EXPERIENCE
Allowance for loan losses beginning of year 53140 40913 40756 40945 42115

Amounts charged-off

Commercial financial and agricultural 16938 6967 4792 11064 8263

Real estate-commercial 76423 7195 2965 240 2902

Real estate-residential 4082 674 664 1012 614

Installment and consumer 7978 6318 6.096 5354 6527

Direct lease financing 91 12

Total Charge-offs 105421 21154 14524 17761 18318

Recoveries on amounts previously charged off

Commercial financial and agricultural 2114 1825 1300 969 1435

Real estate-commercial 1304 267 356 231 176

Real estate-residential 63 149 436 192 176

Installment and consumer 2299 2053 2469 700 1907

Direct lease financing

Total Recoveries 5780 4294 4561 3092 3696

Net Charge-offs 99641 16860 9963 14669 14622

Provision charged to expense 202716 29087 10.120 15194 15530

Reductions due to sale of loans and otherl 19803 714 2078

Allowance for Loan Losses end of

year 136412 53140 40913 40756 40945

RISK ELEMENTS
Non-accrual loans 304176 40972 30048 21680 30148

Past due 90 days or more not included above 8889 29826 2315 8533 1848

Troubled debt restructuring 11 12 13 14

RATIOS

Allowance for loan losses to year-end loans 3.60% 1.35% 1.04% 1.10% 1.25%

Allowance to non-accrual loans 44.85% 129.70% 136.16% 187.99% 135.81%

Net charge-offs to average loans 2.58% 0.42% 0.26% 0.42% 0.47%

Recoveries to charge-offs 5.48% 20.30% 1.40% 17.41% 20.18%

Non-accrual loans to loans 8.03% 1.04% 0.76% 0.58% 0.92%

During 2008 the Bank sold $77 million of primarily non-performing and under-performing loans to third party

See Note of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further information 2005 includes estimated

loss on unfunded commitments See Note 13 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further

information
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TABLE

ANALYSIS OF LOAN PORTFOLIO AND LOSS EXPERIENCEContinued

The allocation of the allowance for loan and lease losses at December 31 was as follows

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Percent of Percent of Percent of Percent of Percent of

Loans in Loans in Loans in Loans in Loans in

Amount Category Amount Category Amount Category Amount Category Amount Category

dollars in thousands

Commercial financial and

agricultural 23700 20.1% $37550 20.1% $20730 21.2% $20602 22.2% $18264 23.5%

Commercial RE 95455 59.0% 8702 59.6% 8106 58.0% 8760 56.0% 11969 48.5%

Residential RE 3622 11.8% 683 12.4% 973 12.7% 959 12.7% 1217 12.7%

Installmentandconsumer 13635 9.1% 6205 7.9% 6410 8.1% 6436 9.1% 5796 15.3%

Unallocated 4694 3999 3699

Total $136412 100.0% $53140 100.0% $40913 100.0% $40756 100.0% $40945 100.0%

Not applicable

TABLE

MATURITY AND INTEREST SENSITIVITY OF LOANS

December 31 2008

Loans Due After

Time Remaining to Maturity One Year

Due

Within One To After Fixed Floating

One Five Five Interest Interest

Year Years Years Total Rate Rate

in thousands

Commercial financial and agricultural $503959 $222864 $44856 771679 $204411 $63309

Real estate-construction 241106 25955 267.061 17001 8.954

Total $745065 $248819 $44856 $1038740 $221412 $72263
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TABLE

MATURITY OF SECURITIES

December 312008

Government States and Corporate

Sponsored Political Obligations

U.S Treasury Enterprises Subdivisions and Other Total

Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield

dollars in thousands

Securities Available for Sale

One year or less $75750 -0.05%$ 1004 1.79% 3947 6.71% 1467 1.65% 82168 0.33%

After one through five years 81892 5.61% 81892 5.61%

After five through ten years 30981 5.84% 30981 5.84%

After ten years 21759 6.2 1% 25341 1.09% 47100 3.45%

Mortgage-backed and asset-backed

securities 556020 4.77% 60057 4.92% 616077 4.78%

Total Securities Available for Sale $75750 -0.05% $557024 4.76% $138579 5.79% $86865 3.74% $858218 4.40%

Includes U.S Government agencies

Yields were calculated on tax equivalent basis assuming federal tax rate of 35%
Includes fair value of $25 million in equity investments which are included in the corporate obligations and other and the due

after ten years classifications

Amounts are reported at fair value Yields were calculated based on amortized cost

Includes $9 million of general obligations of FHLB and FNMA that are structured to have payment characteristics of

collateralized mortgage obligation security Mortgage-backed and asset-backed security maturities may differ from contractual

maturities because borrowers may have the right to prepay obligations with or without penalties Therefore these securities are

not included within the maturity categories above

TABLE

MATURITY OF TIME DEPOSITS $100000 OR MORE

As of December 31 2008

Time Remaining to Maturity

Due Within Three to Six to After

Three Months Six Months Twelve Months Twelve Months Total

in thousands

Certificates of deposit $175594 $149162 $372857 $724694 $1422307

Other time deposits 838 838

Total $175594 $149162 $372857 $725532 $1423145
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ITEM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

AMCORE FINANCIAL INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31

2008 2007

in thousands except share data

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 138017 132156

Interest earning deposits in banks and fed funds sold 1665 12882

Loans held for sale 6749 3636
Securities available for sale at fair value 858218 842796

Gross loans 3786029 3932684
Allowance for loan losses 136412 53140

Net loans $3649617 $3879544

Company owned life insurance 144599 140022

Premises and equipment net 91955 94121

Goodwill 6148
Foreclosed real estate net 16899 4108
Other assets 152105 77365

Total Assets $5059824 $5192778

LIABILITIES

Deposits

Non-interest bearing deposits 465382 508389
Interest bearing deposits 1224166 1867633
Time deposits 1147856 1029418

Total bank issued deposits $2837404 $3405440
Wholesale deposits 1081634 597816

Total deposits $3919038 $4003256
Short-term borrowings 435783 397088

Long-term borrowings 379667 368858

Other liabilities 63338 55009

Total Liabilities $4797826 $4824211

STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
Preferred stock $1 par value authorized 10000000 shares none issued ...
Common stock $0.22 par value authorized 45000000 shares

December 31 December 31
2008 2007

Issued 30078990 30001115

Outstanding 22682317 22599741 6684 6666

Treasury stock 7396673 7401374 172293 172390
Additional paid-in capital 69838 67832
Retained earnings 365684 469775

Accumulated other comprehensive loss 7915 3316

Total Stockholders Equity 261998 368567

Total Liabilities and Stockholders Equity $5059824 $5192778

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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AMCORE FINANCIAL INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
Years ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

in thousands except per share data

INTEREST INCOME
Interest and fees on loans 233056 $305580 $290149

Interest on securities

Taxable 33.610 33.520 40929

Tax-exempt 4950 3.816 6498

Total Income on Securities 38560 37336 47427

Interest on federal funds sold and other short-term investments 561 295 241

Interest and fees on loans held for sale
388 606 1220

Interest on deposits in banks 191 199 139

Total Interest Income 272756 $344016 $339176

INTEREST EXPENSE
Interest on deposits

10474 $147187 $138009

Interest on short-term borrowings 13608 13728 17687

Interest on long-term borrowings
22522 22517 18.522

Total Interest Expense 140871 $183432 $174218

Net Interest Income 131885 60584 164958

Provision for loan losses 202716 29.087 10.120

Net Interest Loss Income After Provision for Loan Losses 70831 $131497 $154838

NON-INTEREST INCOME
Investment management and trust income 16269 16765 16200

Service charges on deposits
33241 29618 25622

Mortgage banking income 641 1.793 3917

Company owned life insurance income 4566 5429 7.89

Brokerage commission income 4273 4174 3146

Bankcard fee income 8594 7862 6225

Net security gains losses 2018 5920 267

Other 5000 11276 12321

Total Non-Interest Income 74.602 70997 75589

OPERATING EXPENSES

Compensation expense
72081 75.822 78651

Employee benefits
16831 19102 19239

Net occupancy expense
16514 14.652 11443

Equipment expense
9943 9.963 9448

Data processing expense
2962 3369 2998

Professional fees 8624 8397 9317

Communication expense 5054 5.258 5088

Advertising and business development
2.838 4166 7409

Goodwill impairment
6148

Loan processing and collection expense
6.977 3718 3654

Insurance expense
4687 1603 1671

Provision for unfunded commitment losses 4804 16 387

Other 15016 19450 16060

Total Operating Expenses
172479 $165339 $165365

Loss Income from continuing operations before income taxes $168708 37155 65062

Income tax benefit expense
70909 8914 18035

Loss Income from continuing operations 97799 28241 47027

Discontinued operations

Loss from discontinued operations 13
Income tax benefit 379

Income from discontinued operations
248

Net Loss Income 97799 2824 47275

EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE
Basic Loss Income from continuing operations 4.32 1.20 1.87

Income from discontinued operations
0.01

Net Loss Income 4.32 1.20 1.88

Diluted Loss Income from continuing operations 4.32 1.20 1.86

Income from discontinued operations
0.01

Net Loss Income 4.32 1.20 1.87

DIVIDENDSPERCOMMONSHARE 0.278 0.720 0.721

AVERAGE COMMON SHARES OUTSTANDING

Basic 22629 23546 25125

Diluted 22629 23556 2522

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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AMCORE FINANCIAL INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

Accumulated
Additional Other Total

Common Treasury Paid-in Retained Deferred Comprehensive Stockholders
Stock Stock Capital Earnings Compensation Income Loss Equity

in thousands except share data
Balance at December 31 2005 as previously reported $6652 $104240 $74110 $435113 $294 $12824 $398517
Adjustment for stock dividend Note 15554 9601 5953
Balance at December 312005 restated $6652 88686 $64509 $429160 $294 $12824 $398517

Comprehensive Income Loss
Net Income 47275 47275
Net unrealized holding gains on securities available for sale

arising during the period 3403 3403
Less reclassification adjustment for net security gains

included in net income 267 267
Income tax effect related to items of other comprehensive

income 1205 1205
Comprehensive Income 47275 1931 49206

Cash dividends on common stock-$0.72l per share 18072 18072
Purchase of 1316124 shares for the

treasury 40244 40244
Deferred compensation and other 144 144

Pension obligation adjustment 76 76
Stock-based compensation 2967 2967
Reclassification upon adoption of SFAS No 23R 342 294 636
Reissuance of 264451 treasury shares for incentive plans 8071 1939 6132
Issuance of 33290 common shares for Employee Stock

Plan 828 836

Balance at December 31 2006 restated $6660 $120859 $66851 $458363 $10969 $400046

Comprehensive Income Loss
Net Loss

28241 28241
Net unrealized holding gains on securities available for sale

arising during the period 6363 6363
Less reclassification adjustment for net security losses

included in net income 5920 5920
Pension transition obligation amortization 42 42
Income tax effect related to items of other comprehensive

income 4672 4672
Comprehensive Income 28241 7653 35894

Cash dividends on common stock-$0.720 per share 16829 16829
Purchase of 2135617 shares for the treasury 59609 59609
Deferred compensation and other 245 245
Stock-based compensation 1685 1685
Reissuance of 254717 treasury shares for incentive plans 8078 1608 6470
Issuance of 28883 common shares for Employee Stock

Plan 659 665

Balance at December 31 2007 restated $6666 172390 $67832 $469775 3316 $368567

Comprehensive Income Loss
Net Loss 97799 97799
Net unrealized holding losses on securities available for sale

arising during the period 5.639 5639
Less reclassification adjustment for net security gains

included in net income 2018 2018
Pension transition obligation amortization 42 42
Income tax effect related to items of other comprehensive

income 3016 3016

Comprehensive Income 97799 4599 102398
Cash dividends on common stock-$0.278 per share 6292 6292
Purchase of 15315 shares for the treasury 348 348
Deferred compensation and other 53 53
Stock-based compensation 2122 2122
Reissuance of 20015 treasury shares for incentive plans net

of cancellations 445 585 140
Issuance of 77875 common shares for Employee Stock

Plan
18 416 434

Balance at December 31 2008 $6684 $172293 $69838 $365684 7915 $261998

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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AMCORE FINANCIAL INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

in thousands

Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Net loss income 97799 28241 47275

Adjustments to reconcile net income from operations to net cash provided by operating activities

Depreciation and amortization of premises and equipment 8775 8105 7371

Goodwill impairment
6148

Amortization and accretion of securities net 375 588 1523

Stock-based compensation expense
2223 1889 2977

Tax benefit on exercise of stock options
764 845

Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation 733 792
Provision for loan losses 202716 29087 10120

Company owned life insurance income net of claims 4567 5439 5072
Net securities gains losses 2018 5920 267

Net gain on sale of loans 243 576
Net gain on sale of Other Mortgage Servicing Rights OMSR5 2556
Net gain on sale of mortgage loans held for sale 581 1002 1582

Originations of mortgage loans held for sale 197657 238924 309270

Proceeds from sales of mortgage loans held for sale 195125 250108 321172

Deferred income tax benefit
44274 9848 625

Increase decrease in other assets 20504 7615 3712
Increase decrease in other liabilities 8880 11735 4605

Net cash provided by operating activities 56092 61837 64782

Cash Flows From Investing Activities

Proceeds from maturities of securities available for sale 304447 196074 208649

Proceeds from sales of securities available for sale 50829 200159 157284

Purchase of securities available for sale 376277 333.421 80501

Net decrease increase in federal funds sold and other short-term investments 10500 10500 5.200

Net decrease increase in interest earning deposits in banks 717 1094 2963
Net increase in loans 55064 12770 253022

Proceeds from the sale of loans 57558 11963

Net proceeds from sale of OMSRs 17529

Proceeds from company owned life insurance 2961

Premises and equipment expenditures net 8034 10654 14088

Proceeds from the sale of foreclosed real estate 6294 2.199 1595

Net cash used in provided by investing activities 9.030 49710 37078

Cash Flows From Financing Activities

Net decrease increase in non-interest-bearing demand deposits 43.007 34681 18195

Net decrease increase in interest-bearing demand deposits 643467 66298 71939
Net increase decrease in time deposits 118438 175490 16571

Net increase decrease in wholesale deposits
483818 199053 170139

Net decrease increase in short-term borrowings 150624 116316 360115

Proceeds from long-term borrowings 200000 211738 294400

Payment of long-term borrowings 13 41245 116000

Dividends paid
6.292 16829 18072

Issuance of common shares for employee stock plan 434 665 836

Cancellation reissuance of treasury shares for incentive plans 140 5706 5287

Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation
733 792

Purchase of shares for treasury
348 59609 40244

Net cash used in financing activities 41201 125451 $100l50

Net change in cash and cash equivalents
5861 13904 1710

Cash and cash equivalents

Beginning of year
132156 146060 144350

End of year
138017 132.156 $146060

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information

Cash payments for

Interest paid to depositors
101669 152308 131817

Interest paid on borrowings 34686 35193 35621

Income tax payments
294 18715 20266

Non-Cash Investing and Financing

Foreclosed real estateacquired in settlement of loans 18997 5903 2201

Transfer current portion of long-term borrowings to short-term borrowings 189319 144025 7528

Capitalized interest
116 139 257

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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AMCORE FINANCIAL INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting and reporting policies of AMCORE Financial Inc the Company and its subsidiaries conform

to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America in all material respects The

preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that

affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities as of the balance sheet date and revenues and expenses for the

period Actual results could differ from these estimates

Description of the Business

The Company is registered bank holding company headquartered in Rockford Illinois and conducts its

principal business activities at locations within northern Illinois and southern Wisconsin The primary business of

the Company is the extension of credit and the collection of deposits with commercial and industrial agricultural

real estate and consumer loan customers conducted through its banking subsidiary the Bank The Bank also

offers products and services through its mortgage-banking and investment management and trust segments and

its brokerage subsidiary Although the Company strives to maintain diversified loan portfolio adverse changes

in the local economies or in the commercial real estate markets could have direct impact on the credit risk in

the portfolio

Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation The financial statements include the consolidated accounts of the Company All

intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation

Basis of Presentation The operating results for Investors Management Group Ltd 1MG have been reclassified

and shown as discontinued operations on the Statements of Operations and in the Notes to the Consolidated

Financial Statements for all periods presented This includes the effect of the sale of 1MG See Note for

additional information

Cash and Cash Equivalents For purposes of reporting cash flows the Company considers cash on hand

amounts due from banks and cash items in process of clearing to be cash and cash equivalents Cash flows for

federal funds sold and interest-earning deposits in banks are not included in cash and cash equivalents

Loans Held for Sale Loans originated and intended for sale are recorded at the lower of cost or fair value

Historically the Bank routinely engaged in forward sales contracts on mortgage loans originated and held for

sale in order to minimize its risk of loss between the time the loan is originated and the time it is sold Mortgage

loans subject to forward contract were marked-to-market pursuant to Statement of Financial Accounting

Standards SFAS No 133 In 2007 the Bank completed an arrangement with third party mortgage loan

processor and servicer to which the majority of mortgage loans are now being sold for fixed fee net of

origination costs Gains and losses on the sale of loans are included in mortgage banking income

Securities and Other Investments Debt securities can be classified into three categories held to maturity

trading and available for sale There were no held to maturity or trading securities outstanding during 2008 and

2007 Securities available for sale are reported at fair value with unrealized gains and losses excluded from

earnings and reported in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income OCI until realized The interest method is

used for the amortization and accretion of premiums and discounts The objective of the interest method is to

measure periodic interest income at constant effective yield The cost of securities sold is determined on

specific identification method
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Non-marketable equity securities which include community reinvestment act CRA related fund investments

are reported under the cost or equity method depending on percentage of ownership Also included in

non-marketable equity securities are investments in stock of the Federal Reserve Bank and the Federal Home

Loan Bank Investments in affordable housing tax credit projects without guaranteed yields are reported on the

equity method Those with guaranteed yields are reported using the effective yield method CRA related fund and

affordable housing tax credit investments are reported as other assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheets

When it is determined that securities or other investments are impaired and the impairment is other than

temporary an impairment loss is recorded in earnings and new basis is established See Note for additional

information

Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses Loans that management has the ability and intent to hold for the

foreseeable future are recorded at the amount advanced to the borrower plus certain costs incurred by the

Company to originate the loan less certain origination fees that are collected from the borrower The carrying

amount of loans is reduced as principal payments are made Payments made by the borrower are allocated

between interest income and principal payment based upon the outstanding principal amount and the contractual

rate of interest The carrying amount is further adjusted to reflect amortization of the origination costs net of

origination fees These items are amortized over the expected life of the loan using methods that approximate

constant effective yield

Management periodically evaluates the loan portfolio in order to establish an adequate allowance for loan losses

the Allowance to absorb estimated losses that are probable as of the respective reporting date This evaluation

includes specific loss estimates on certain individually reviewed loans where it is probable that the Company will

be unable to collect all of the amounts due principal or interest according to the contractual terms of the loan

agreement impaired loans and statistical loss estimates for loan groups or pools that are based on historical loss

experience Also included are loss estimates that reflect the current credit environment and that are not otherwise

captured in the historical loss rates These include the quality and concentration characteristics of the various

loan portfolios adverse situations that may affect borrowers ability to repay and current economic and

industry conditions among other things

Additions to the Allowance are charged against earnings for the period as provision for loan losses the

Provision Actual loan losses are charged against the Allowance when management believes that the

collection of principal will not occur and the loss has been confirmed The accrual of interest income is generally

discontinued the Non-Accrual Status when management believes that collection of principal and/or interest is

doubtful Generally loans that are not well secured and in the process of collection are placed in Non-Accrual

Status when payment becomes past due for more than 90 days except for residential real estate loans which are

placed on Non-Accrual Status at 120 days past due Unpaid interest attributable to prior years for loans that are

placed on Non-Accrual Status are also charged against the Allowance Unpaid interest for the current year for

loans that are placed on Non-Accrual Status are reversed against the interest income previously recognized

Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged to the Allowance if any are credited to the Allowance

Payments received from the borrower after loan is placed on Non-Accrual Status are applied to reduce the

principal balance of the loan until such time that collectability of remaining principal and interest is no longer

doubtful See Note for additional information

Concentration of Credit Risk The Company has significant concentration in commercial real estate loans to

builders and developers Therefore the Companys exposure to credit risk is significantly affected by changes in

the real estate market

Bank and Company Owned Life Insurance COLI The Company has purchased life insurance coverage for

certain officers Premiums paid for the policies net of any charges that would not be recoverable upon surrender

of the policies are recorded as assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheets Increases or decreases in cash

56



surrender value other than proceeds from death benefits are recorded as other income Proceeds from the death

of an insured first reduce the cash surrender value attributable to the individual policy with any additional

proceeds recorded as other income in the period of death

Premises and Equipment Premises and equipment including leasehold improvements are stated at cost less

accumulated depreciation and amortization Land is carried at cost Capitalized leases are recorded at the present

value of minimum lease payments over the life of the lease limited to the fair value of the property at the

inception of the lease less accumulated amortization Buildings and related components are depreciated using

the straight-line method with useful lives ranging from 15 to 30 years Furniture fixtures equipment and

software are depreciated using the straight-line method with useful lives ranging from to 10 years Leasehold

improvements and capitalized leases are amortized straight-line over the lesser of their respective lease terms or

useful lives Rent expense for operating leases that include scheduled rent increases or rent holidays are

recognized straight-line over the lease term including the rent holiday period Rent expense for operating leases

that do not include scheduled rent increases or rent holidays are recognized in accordance with their contractual

terms See Note for additional information

Intangible Assets Certain intangible assets such as goodwill have arisen from the purchase of subsidiaries

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired

Goodwill is not amortized but must be tested at least annually for impairment See discussion under Impairment

of Long-Lived Assets later in this note During 2008 the Company wrote-off all goodwill previously carried on

the Companys balance sheet See Note for additional information

Foreclosed Real Estate Foreclosed real estate comprises real properties acquired in partial or full satisfaction of

loans These properties are carried as other assets at the lower of cost or fair value less estimated costs to sell the

properties When the property is acquired through foreclosure any excess of the related loan balance over the fair

value less expected selling expenses is charged against the Allowance Subsequent declines in value or losses

and gains upon sale if any are recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Operations

Mortgage Servicing Rights The Company sells most of the one-to-four family residential real estate loans that it

originates Historically these were primarily sold to the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation FHLMC
U.S government-sponsored enterprise GSE Gains recorded on the sale of the loans included the right to

service the loans on behalf of FHLMC right that was retained by the Company and that resulted in an

originated mortgage servicing rights OMSR asset The resulting OMSR asset was amortized as charge against

mortgage banking income in proportion to the principal amortization of the underlying serviced loans and as the

actual servicing fee was collected

During 2007 the Company sold the majority of its OMSR portfolio The Company now sells most of the mortgage

loans that it originates to third-party mortgage loan processor
and servicer and does not retain the OMSR

Loan Securitization and Sales of Receivables The Company has periodically sold certain indirect automobile

loans in securitization transactions in exchange for cash and certain retained residual interests

During 2007 the outstanding balances of the underlying loans fell to level where the cost of servicing the loans

became burdensome in relation to the benefits of servicing As result the Company exercised its option to

repurchase the loans from the securitization trust the Clean-up Call The repurchased loans were recorded at

fair value and the related retained residual interests were written off As of December 31 2008 the balance of

repurchased loans included on the Companys Consolidated Balance Sheet was $7 million

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets Long-lived assets including goodwill are reviewed for impairment whenever

events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable An

impairment loss would be recognized by reduction to the carrying amount of the asset thus establishing new

cost basis with an offsetting charge to expense Goodwill for each reporting unit of the Company is also tested

for impairment annually See Note for additional information
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Trust and Managed Assets Assets that are held by subsidiaries in fiduciary or agency capacity are not included

in the consolidated financial statements as they are not assets of the Company The total assets either

administered or managed by the Company at December 31 2008 and 2007 were $2.0 billion and $2.7 billion

respectively

Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedging Activities The Company periodically uses certain financial

instruments called derivatives to help manage the Hedge its risk or exposure to changes in interest rates and

in conjunction with its mortgage banking operations The types of derivatives currently used are interest rate

swaps the Interest Rate Derivatives mortgage loan commitments and forward contracts Interest Rate

Derivatives are contracts with third party the Counter-party to exchange interest payment streams based

upon an assumed principal amount the Notional Principal Amount The Notional Principal Amount is not

advanced to/from the Counter-party It is used only as reference point to calculate the exchange of interest

payment streams

The Company has used Interest Rate Derivatives to convert fixed-rate assets and liabilities the Hedged ltems to

floating-rate assets or liabilities This is typically done when fixed-rate liability has been incurred to fund

variable-rate loan or investment or when commercial customer requires long-term fixed-rate loan The Interest

Rate Derivative has the effect of matching the interest rate risk on the funding with the interest rate risk on the loans

or investment or of eliminating the long-term interest rate risk respectively These types of Hedges are considered

fair value Hedges Interest rate swaps have also been used by the Company to convert assets and liabilities with

variable-rate cash flows the Hedged Items to assets and liabilities with fixed-rate cash flows Under this

arrangement the Company receives payments from or makes payments to the Counter-party at specified floating-

rate index that is applied to the Notional Principal Amount This periodic receipt or payment essentially offsets

floating-rate interest payments that the Company makes to its depositors or lenders or receives from its loan

customers In exchange for the receipts from or payments to the Counter-party the Company makes payments to or

receives payment from the Counter-party at specified fixed-rate that is applied to the Notional Principal Amount
Thus what was floating rate obligation or floating rate asset before entering into the derivative arrangement is

transformed into fixed rate obligation or asset These types of Hedges are considered cash flow Hedges

All derivatives are recognized at fair value in the Consolidated Balance Sheets Changes in fair value for

derivatives that are not Hedges as defined by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of

America are recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Operations as they arise If the derivative qualifies for

hedge accounting depending on the nature of the Hedge changes in the fair value of the derivative are either

offset in the Statements of Operations or recorded as component of other comprehensive income OCI in the

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders Equity If the derivative is designated as fair value Hedge the

changes in the fair value of the derivative net of the changes in fair value of the Hedged item attributable to the

Hedged risk are recognized in the Statements of Operations To the extent that fair value Hedges are highly

effective changes in the fair value of the derivatives will largely be offset by changes in the fair values of the

Hedged items If the derivative is designated as cash flow Hedge changes in the fair value due to the passage of

time the Time Value are excluded from the assessment of Hedge effectiveness and therefore flow through the

Statements of Operations for each period The effective portion of the remaining changes in the fair value of the

derivative the Intrinsic Value are recorded in OCI and are subsequently recognized in the Statements of

Operations when the Hedged item affects earnings Ineffective portions of changes in the fair value of cash flow

Hedges are recognized in the Statements of Operations Hedge ineffectiveness is caused when the change in

expected future cash flows or fair value of Hedged item does not exactly offset the change in the future

expected cash flows or fair value of the derivative instrument and is generally due to differences in the interest

rate indices or interest rate reset dates

Also considered derivatives are one-to-four family residential mortgage loan commitments the Commitments
and forward mortgage loan sales the Forward Contracts collectively the Mortgage Loan Derivatives that

are reported at fair value on the Consolidated Balance Sheets Changes in the fair value of the Mortgage Loan

Derivatives are recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Operations
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The method that the Company uses to assess whether or not Hedge is expected to be highly effective in

achieving offsetting changes in cash flows or fair values of the risk that is being hedged the Prospective

Considerations and the method that it uses to determine that the Hedge has been highly effective in achieving

those offsets the Retrospective Evaluations are defined and documented at the inception of each Hedge and

are consistently applied on quarterly basis throughout the Hedge term in order to measure and record Hedge

ineffectiveness Hedges that are similar in nature are assessed in similar manner Hedge ineffectiveness is

recognized in earnings for the period

Fees paid or received on derivative financial contracts and gains or losses on sales or terminations of derivative

contracts are amortized over their contractual life as component of the interest reported on the asset or liability

Hedged See Note for additional information

Stock-Based Employee Compensation Plans The Company has stock-based employee compensation plans

which are described more fully in Note 11

On January 2006 the Company adopted the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No 123R Share-

Based Payment Under this accounting standard companies are no longer permitted to account for share-based

compensation transactions using the intrinsic value method in accordance with APB Opinion No 25 Instead

companies are required to account for such transactions using fair-value method and recognize the expense
in

the Consolidated Statements of Operations

Legal and Other Contingencies The Company recognizes as an expense legal and other contingencies when

based upon available information it is probable that liability has been incurred and the amount or range
of

amounts can be reasonably estimated See Note 13 for additional information

Income Taxes Deferred taxes are provided on the asset/liability method whereby net operating losses tax credit

carryforwards and deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible temporary differences and deferred tax

liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences Temporary differences are the differences between

the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax bases Deferred tax assets are reduced by valuation

allowance when in the opinion of management it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred

tax assets will not be realized Deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted for the effects of changes in tax

laws and rates on the date of enactment See Note 14 for additional information

Equity Stock dividends were issued during 2008 and are recorded by transferring the fair value as of the

dividend payable date of the stock issued from retained earnings to treasury stock and additional paid in capital

Shares issued for payment of the dividend are issued from the Companys treasury stock Fractional share

amounts are paid in cash with reduction in retained earnings Treasury stock is carried at cost

Dividend Restrictions Banking regulations require maintaining certain capital levels and may limit the dividends

paid by the Bank to the holding company or by the holding company to shareholders

Earnings Per Share Basic earnings per share is based on dividing net income by the weighted average number

of shares of common stock outstanding during the periods Diluted earnings per share reflects the potential

dilution that could occur if stock options granted pursuant to incentive stock option plans were exercised or

converted into common stock based on the treasury stock method and any shares contingently issuable that then

shared in the earnings of the Company All share information presented in the Companys Consolidated Balance

Sheets and Consolidated Statements of Operations which includes ending shares outstanding dividends per

share and earnings per share have been restated to include the effect of the stock dividends paid to stockholders

in 2008 See Note 15 for additional information

Fair Value of Financial Instruments Fair values of financial instruments are estimated using relevant market

information and other assumptions Fair value estimates involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment
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regarding interest rates credit risk prepayments and other factors especially in the absence of broad markets for

particular items Changes in assumptions or in market conditions could significantly affect the estimates See

Note 10 for additional information

Segment Information The Company discloses operating segments based on the management approach The

management approach designates the internal organization that is used by management for making operating

decisions and assessing performance as the source of the Companys reportable segments See Note 16 for

additional information

Reclassifications Certain prior year amounts may be reclassified to conform to the current year presentation

New Accounting Standards

Split-Dollar Life Insurance In September 2006 the FASB ratified Emerging Issues Task Force EITF Issue

No 06-4 Accounting for Deferred Compensation and Postretirement Benefit Aspects of Endorsement Split-

Dollar Life Insurance Arrangements The issue requires companies to recognize liability for future benefits on

split dollar insurance
arrangements if the benefit to the employee extends to postretirement periods The issue is

required to be applied to fiscal year beginning after December 15 2007 with earlier application permitted This

standard was adopted in first
quarter 2008 and did not have material affect on the Companys Consolidated

Balance Sheets or Statements of Operations

Fair Value Measurements In September 2006 the Financial Accounting Standards Board the FASB issued

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards SFAS No 157 Fair Value Measurements which defines fair

value establishes framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles and expands
disclosures about fair value measurements The standard applies to other accounting pronouncements that require

or permit fair value measurements but does not require any new fair value measurements For some entities the

application of the standard may change how fair value is measured The standard is effective in financial

statements issued for fiscal
years beginning after November 15 2007 and all interim periods within those fiscal

years In February 2008 the FASB issued Staff Position FSP 157-2 Effective Date of FASB Statement

No 157 The FSP delays the effective date of SFAS No 157 for all nonfinancial assets and liabilities except

those that are recognized or disclosed at fair value on recurring basis at least annually to fiscal years

beginning after November 15 2008 and interim periods within those fiscal years This standard was adopted in

first quarter 2008 and did not have material affect on the Companys Consolidated Balance Sheets or

Statements of Operations

Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities In February 2007 the FASB issued SFAS
No 159 The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities The fair value option established

by this standard permits all entities to choose to measure eligible items at fair value at specified election dates

Under SFAS No 159 business entity is required to report unrealized gains and losses on items for which the

fair value option have been elected in earnings or another performance indicator if the business entity does not

report earnings at each subsequent reporting date The standard was effective as of January 2008 The

Company did not adopt fair value for any new items

Loan Commitments Recorded at Fair Value Through Earnings In November 2007 the Securities and

Exchange Commission the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin SAB No 109 which superseded SAB
No 105 which applied only to derivative loan commitments that are accounted for at fair value through

earnings The new guidance states that consistent with the guidance in SFAS No 156 Accounting for

Servicing of Financial Assets and SFAS No 159 The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial

Liabilities the expected net future cash flows related to the associated servicing of the loan should be included

in the measurement of all written loan commitments that are accounted for at fair value through earnings This

standard was adopted in first quarter 2008 and did not have material affect on the Companys Consolidated

Balance Sheets or Statements of Operations
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Minority Interests In December 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No 160 Noncontrolling Interest in

Consolidated Financial Statements an amendment of Accounting Research Bulletin ARB No 51 Among

other things SFAS No 160 requires minority interests be recorded as separate component of equity and that

net income attributable to minority interests be clearly identified on the Statements of Operations SFAS No 160

is effective for fiscal years and interim periods beginning on or after December 15 2008 Earlier adoption is

prohibited Statement No 160 is required to be applied prospectively except for the presentation and disclosure

requirements Adoption of this standard in fiscal year
2009 is not expected to have material impact on the

Companys Consolidated Balance Sheets or Statements of Operations

Business Combinations In December 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No 141R Business Combinations to

improve financial reporting on business combinations including recognition and measurement of assets acquired

liabilities assumed noncontrolling interests and goodwill This Statement applies prospectively to business

combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period

beginning on or after December 15 2008 An entity may not apply this Statement before that date

Simplified Method for Share Option Grants In December 2007 the SEC issued SAB No 110 which expresses

the views of the SEC regarding the use of simplified method as discussed in SAB No 107 in developing an

estimate of expected term of plain vanilla share options in accordance with SFAS No 123R Share-Based

Payment The SEC concluded that company could under certain circumstances continue to use the simplified

method for share option grants after December 31 2007 Due to the significant differences in terms and types of

option grants received by employees and recent significant structural changes historical exercise data did not

provide reasonable basis upon which to estimate expected term The Company therefore continued its use of

the simplified method for determining an estimate of expected term for its share options granted during 2008

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities Disclosure In March 2008 the FASB issued SFAS No 161

Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities to provide enhanced disclosures and thereby

improve the transparency of financial reporting SFAS 161 is effective for fiscal years and interim periods

beginning after November 15 2008 with early application encouraged Adoption of this standard is not expected

to have material impact on the Companys Consolidated Balance Sheets or Statements of Operations

NOTE 2- MERGERS ACQUISITIONS AND DIVESTITURES

During 2006 finalization of tax calculations on the 2005 divestiture of 1MG resulted in $328000 income tax

benefit The operating results for 1MG have been reclassified and shown as discontinued operations on the

Consolidated Statements of Operations and in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for all periods

presented

Effective December 31 2008 AMCORE Investment Group N.A the Investment Group nationally

chartered non-depository bank was merged into AMCORE Bank N.A Bank The Investment group operates

as separate business segment of the Bank and provides its clients with wealth management services which

include trust services estate administration and financial planning The Investment Group also provides

employee benefit plan administration and recordkeeping services Also effective December 31 2008 AMCORE

Investment Services Inc formerly subsidiary of the Investment Group until its merger into the Bank on

December 31 2008 became wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank
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NOTE 3- SECURITIES

summary of information for investment securities categorized by security type at December 31 2008 2007

and 2006 follows Fair values are based on quoted market prices or are based on quoted prices for similar

financial instruments See Note 10 for additional information

Gross Gross

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized

Cost Gains Losses Fair Value

in thousands

December 31 2008

Securities Available for Sale

U.S Treasury 75000 750 75750
U.S Government sponsored enterprises GSEs 52527 1518 17 54028

Mortgage-backed securities 495936 7407 347 502996

State and political subdivisions 136032 3097 550 138579

Corporate obligations and other 111653 24788 86865

Total Securities Available for Sale $871148 $12772 $25702 $858218

December 31 2007

Securities Available for Sale

U.S Government sponsored enterprises GSEs 67055 86 374 66767

Mortgage-backed securities 538330 1028 5015 534343

State and political subdivisions 118903 869 452 119320

Corporate obligations and other 123781 155 1570 122366

Total Securities Available for Sale $848069 2138 7411 $842796

December 31 2006

Securities Available for Sale

U.S Treasury 5002 38 4964
U.S Government sponsored enterprises GSEs 51635 11 727 50919

Mortgage-backed securities 727839 471 17692 710618

State and political subdivisions 93441 548 629 93360

Corporate obligations and other 39472 536 36 39972

Total Securities Available for Sale $917389 1566 $19122 $899833
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summary of unrealized loss information for investment securities categorized by security type was as follows

Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or Longer Total

Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized

Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses

in thousands

December 31 2008

Securities Available for Sale

U.S Government sponsored

enterprises GSEs 4614 17 4614 17
Mortgage-backed securities 27767 55 46204 292 73971 347
State and political subdivisions 17985 474 2347 76 20332 550
Corporate obligations and other 29072 1679 30916 23109 59988 24788

Total Unrealized Losses on

Securities Available for

Sale 74824 $2208 84081 $23494 $158905 $25702

December 31 2007

Securities Available for Sale

U.S Government sponsored

enterprises GSEs 21448 40 29966 333 51414 373
Mortgage-backed securities 107229 656 241996 4359 349225 5015
State and political subdivisions 19342 255 21861 198 41203 453
Corporate obligations and other 71208 1570 1178 72386 1570

Total Unrealized Losses on

Securities Available for

Sale $219227 $2521 $295001 4890 $514228 7411

December 31 2006

Securities Available for Sale

U.S Treasury 4964 38 4964 38
U.S Government sponsored

enterprises GSEs 37826 727 37826 727
Mortgage-backed securities 29449 92 648375 17600 677824 17692

State and political subdivisions 19244 77 33010 552 52254 629
Corporate obligations and other 101 1475 36 1576 36

Total Unrealized Losses on

Securities Available for

Sale 48794 169 $725650 $18953 $774444 $19122

Includes the following U.S Government agency obligations $44 million of Small Business Administration

at December 31 2008 and none at December 31 2007 and December 31 2006

Includes the following U.S Government agency obligations $43 million of Government National Mortgage

Association and $3 million of United States Department of Veterans Affairs at December 31 2008 These

amounts were $17 million and $4 million respectively at December 31 2007 and $6 million and $4

million respectively at December 31 2006

Includes the following investments $5 million in stock of the Federal Reserve Bank FRB and $20 million

in stock of the Federal Home Loan Bank FHLB These amounts were $4 million and $20 million

respectively at December 31 2007 and 2006 These investments are recorded at historical cost with income

recorded when dividends are declared portion of the FRB and FHLB investments are restricted as to sale

because they are held to satisfy membership requirements
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The Company has the ability to hold and has no intent to dispose of the related securities until maturity or

upon fair value exceeding cost as of December 31 2008 The total $2 million of unrealized losses less than

12 months is related to 56 securities Included in the $2 million of unrealized losses is $1 million related to

one Aaa rated private issue mortgage related collateral mortgage obligation This bond has sufficient

credit enhancement and the Company expects full recovery of principal

None of the remaining unrealized losses were individually significant to the total the largest being

$114000 and the unrealized losses were caused by market interest rate increases since the security was

originally acquired rather than due to credit or other causes Of the remaining total $55000 related to 14

Aaa rated mortgage-backed securities issued by GSEs $474000 related to 29 municipal obligation bonds

with quality ratings from A3 to Aaa $348000 related to six Aaa rated private issue mortgage related

collateral mortgage obligations $59000 related to four Aaa rated private issue asset backed obligations

and $43000 related to two small equity method investments

The Company has the ability to hold and has no intent to dispose of the related securities until maturity or

upon fair value exceeding cost as of December 31 2008 The total $23 million of unrealized losses 12

months or longer is related to 33 securities Included in the $23 million of unrealized losses is $4 million

relating to three Aaa rated private issue mortgage related collateral mortgage obligations and $19 million

relating to seven investment grade rated private issue asset backed obligations These bonds have sufficient

credit enhancement and the Company expects full recovery of principal None of the remaining unrealized

losses were individually significant to the total the largest being $59000 and the unrealized losses were

caused by market interest rate increases since the security was originally acquired rather than due to credit

or other causes Of the remaining total $17000 related to one Aaa rated GSE $292000 related to 17

Aaa rated mortgage-backed securities issued by GSEs and $76000 related to five municipal obligation

bonds with quality ratings from A3 to Aa2

summary of realized gain and loss information follows for the years ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

in thousands

Realized Gains $2018 1886

Realized Losses
______

5920 1619

$2018 $5920 267

Of the $2 million net security gains for 2008 $1 million related to partial redemption distribution received as

member company in connection with the initial public offering IPO of VISA Inc The remaining $1 million

related to the sale of $50 million of bonds in order to reduce liquidity risk The proceeds of the sales were

reinvested in short-term investments and were ultimately used to pay
down borrowings in early January 2009

The amortized cost and fair value of securities available for sale as of December 31 2008 by contractual

maturity are shown below Mortgage-backed and asset-backed security maturities may differ from contractual

maturities because borrowers may have the right to prepay obligations with or without penalties Therefore these

securities are not included within the maturity categories

Available for Sale

Amortized

Cost Fair Value

in thousands

Due in one year or less 81393 82168

Due after one year through five years 79805 81892

Due after five years through ten years 30168 30981

Due after ten years 47521 47100

Mortgage-backed securities GSEs and corporate 632261 616077

Total Securities $871148 $858218
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At December 31 2008 and 2007 securities with fair value of $637 million and $621 million respectively

were pledged to secure public deposits FRB and FHLB borrowings securities under agreements to repurchase

derivative credit exposure certain settlement and trade credit obligations and for other purposes required by law

The above schedules include amortized cost and fair value of $25 million in equity investments at December 31

2008 and 2007 The amortized cost and fair value were $29 million and $30 million respectively at

December 31 2006 These are included in the corporate obligations and other and the due after ten years

classifications above

NOTE 4- LOANS AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

The composition of the loan portfolio at December 31 2008 and 2007 was as follows

2008 2007

in thousands

Commercial financial and agricultural 771679 767312

Real estate-commercial 1931962 1901453

Real estate-construction 267061 459727

Real estate-residential 437877 468420

Installment and consumer 377450 335772

Gross loans $3786029 $3932684

Allowance for loan losses 136412 53140

Net Loans $3649617 $3879544

An analysis of the allowance for loan losses for the periods ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 is

presented below

2008 2007 2006

in thousands

Balance at beginning of year 53140 40913 40756

Provision charged to expense 202716 29087 10120

Loans charged off 105421 21154 14524

Recoveries on loans previously charged off 5780 4294 4561

Reduction due to sale of loans 19803

Balance at end of period $136412 53140 40913

In third quarter 2008 the Bank sold $77 million of primarily non-performing and under-performing loans to

third party the Loan Sale The transaction removed further exposure from these loans and added incremental

liquidity to the Bank

Commercial financial and agricultural loans were $772 million at December 31 2008 and comprised 20% of

gross loans of which 6.57% were non-performing Net charge-offs of commercial loans in 2008 and 2007 were

1.9 1% and 0.64% respectively of the average
balance of the category

Commercial real estate and construction loans combined were $2.2 billion at December 31 2008 comprising

58% of gross loans of which 11.53% were classified as non-performing Net charge-offs of construction and

commercial real estate loans during 2008 and 2007 were 3.30% and 0.29% respectively of the average balance

of the category

The above commercial loan categories included $618 million in construction land development loans and other

land loans and $616 million of loans to non-residential building operators each of which were 16% of total

loans There were no other loan concentrations within these categories that exceeded 10% of total loans
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Residential real estate loans which include home equity and permanent residential financing totaled $438

million at December 31 2008 and represented 12% of gross loans of which 1.75% were non-performing Net

charge-offs of residential real estate during 2008 and 2007 were 0.88% and 0.11% respectively of the average

balance in this category The increases in net charge offs reflect credit conditions in general and the chargedown

of two larger credits The Bank does not engage in sub-prime lending

Installment and consumer loans were $377 million at December 31 2008 and comprised 10% of gross loans of

which 0.31% were non-performing Net charge-offs of consumer loans during 2008 and 2007 were 1.61% and

1.36% respectively of the average balance of the category Consumer loans are comprised primarily of

in-market indirect auto loans and direct installment loans Indirect auto loans totaled $315 million at

December 31 2008 Both direct loans and indirect auto loans are approved and funded through centralized

department utilizing the same credit scoring system to provide standard methodology for the extension of

consumer credit

Contained within the concentrations described above the Company has $1.4 billion of interest-only loans of

which $78 million are included in the construction and commercial real estate loan category $443 million are

included in the commercial financial and agricultural loan category and $173 million are in home equity loans

and lines of credit The Company does not have any negative amortization loans and does not have significant

concentrations of high loan-to-value loans option adjustable-rate mortgage loans or loans that initially have

below market rates that significantly increase after the initial period

Non-performing and past due loan and asset information as of and for the years ended December 31 was as

follows

2008 2007

in thousands

Impaired Loans

Non-accrual

Commercial 47392 347

Real estate 240827 35446

Total Impaired Loans $288219 $35793

Other Non-performing

Non-accrual loans 15957 5179

Total Non-performing Loans $304176 $40972

Loans 90 days or more past due and still accruing 8889 $29826

Total Non-performing Loans $313065 $70798

Foreclosed Assets

Real estate 16899 4108

Other 224 201

Total Foreclosed Assets 17123 4309

Total Non-performing Assets $330188 $75107

Troubled debt restructurings 11

These loans are not considered impaired since they are part of small balance homogeneous portfolio
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Impaired loan information as of and for the years ended December 31 was as follows

2008 2007 2006

in thousands

Impaired loans without an allowance allocation $211427 $12748

Impaired loans with an allowance allocation 76792 23045 17948

Allowance provided for impaired loans 19107 4999 6094

Average recorded investment in impaired loans 323978 36238 19368

Interest income recognized from impaired loans 10891 698 482

Interest income that would have been recorded under normal contract terms 12602 2590 2084

The Bank has had and is expected to have in the future banking transactions with directors executive officers

their immediate families and affiliated companies in which they are principal stockholder commonly referred

to as related parties These transactions were made in the ordinary course of of business on substantially the

same terms as comparable transactions with other borrowers

Related
party loan transactions during 2008 2007 and 2006 were as follows

2008 2007 2006

in thousands

Balance at beginning of year 11544 $13200 10950

New loans 13963 6278 16892

Repayments 14870 7934 14642

Balance at end of year 10637 $11544 13200

NOTE 5- PREMISES EQUIPMENT AND LEASE COMMITMENTS

summary of premises and equipment at December 31 2008 and 2007 follows

2008 2007

in thousands

Land 26253 26757

Buildings and improvements 75256 78877

Furniture and equipment 57369 58436

Leasehold improvements 13931 10971

Construction in progress 4939 5046

Total premises and equipment $177748 $180087

Accumulated depreciation and amortization 85793 85966

Premises and Equipment net 91955 94121

For financial reporting purposes the Company utilizes the straight-line depreciation method with salvage values

employed when applicable The depreciation term assigned to specific asset will approximate the estimated

useful life of the asset or in the case of capital leases and leasehold improvements the lesser of the

non-cancellable lease term or the estimated useful life

Certain branch locations ATM equipment and office equipment are leased under non-cancellable leases There

were 34 branch or office location leases one of which is classified as capital lease and 14 equipment leases of

which one is classified as capital lease The leases expire at various dates through the year 2038 however most

of the Companys leases contain renewal options for multi-year periods at fixed or calculable rents Some lease

rents periodically adjust for changes in the consumer or other price indices Most leases are periodically adjusted

for changes in common area maintenance/operating expenses CAM or real estate taxes or require the Company

to pay real estate taxes directly to the taxing authority

During 2008 the Company identified five under-utilized high-cost facilities that could be consolidated with other

nearby locations the Facilities Consolidation These were two office buildings one small older branch in
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historical market one leased Chicago suburban location with minimal retail activity that housed mainly

commercial lenders and leased branch with excess capacity minimal access to customers and high

maintenance costs $1.7 million non-cash impairment charge was recorded in connection with the Facilities

Consolidation One property was sold during 2008 at an amount equal to its book value as recorded on the

Consolidated Balance Sheets

The following summary reflects the future minimum lease rental payments required under operating and capital

leases that as of December 31 2008 have remaining non-cancellable lease terms in excess of one year

Operating Capital

Years ending December 31 Leases Leases

in thousands

2009 4212 225

2010 4188 225

2011 3916 231

2012 3490 226

2013 3418 183

Thereafter 80752 1389

Total minimum lease payments $99976 2479

Less Amount representing interest 1282

Present value of net minimum lease payments 1197

2008 2007 2006

in thousands

Rental expense charged to net occupancy expense $4549 $3489 $1807

The following is an analysis of the leased property and equipment recorded under capital leases

Asset balances at

December 31

2008 2007

in thousands

Branch facilities buildings and improvements $1070 $1070

Sorters 234 234

Less Accumulated amortization 460 361

Net capitalized leases 844 943

NOTE 6- GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

During 2008 the Company wrote-off its $6.1 million goodwill balance following considerable and protracted

period when the Companys stock traded at significant discount compared to its book value as well as due to

the decline in the operations of the Company The Companys goodwill by segment as of December 31 2007 is

shown in the following table

December 31
2007

in thousands

Retail Banking $3572

Commercial Banking 2381

Investment Management and Trust 195

Total Goodwill $6148

There were no other intangible assets for years ended December 31 2008 or 2007
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NOTE 7- SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

Short-term borrowings consisted of the following at December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

2008 2007 2006

in thousands

Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings $197573 $144086 7512

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase Customer 125046 55578 59929

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase Wholesale 40000 74437 24437

Federal funds purchased 200 108775 39580

U.S Treasury tax and loan note accounts 2898 12000 5273

Commercial paper and other short-term borrowings 66 2212 16

Federal Reserve Bank Term Auction Facility 50000

Senior Debt 20000

Total Short-Term Borrowings $435783 $397088 $136747

Additional details are as follows

Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings

Average balance during the year $148649 82778 $34679

Maximum month-end balance during the year $197573 $144086 $62889

Weighted average rate during the year 5.04% 5.04% 4.70%

Weighted average rate at December31 3.8 1% 4.79% 3.86%

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase Customer

Average balance during the year 80785 $56734 $56330

Maximum month-end balance during the year $128982 $72106 $69903

Weighted average rate during the year 1.86% 4.41% 4.28%

Weighted average rate at December31 0.99% 3.95% 4.40%

Subsequent to the end of 2008 the maturity of the $20 million senior debt was extended to April 15 2010

NOTE 8- LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

Long-term borrowings consisted of the following at December 31 2008 and 2007

2008 2007

in thousands

Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings $176989 $256110

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase Wholesale 100000

Trust Preferred borrowings 51547 51547

Subordinated Debentures 50000 50000

Senior Debt 10000

Capitalized lease obligations 1131 1201

Total Long-Term Borrowings $379667 $368858

The Company periodically borrows from the Federal Home Loan Bank FHLB collateralized by mortgage

backed securities and eligible one-to-four family and multi-family real estate loans The
average

stated maturity

of these borrowings at December 31 2008 is 3.08
years

with weighted average borrowing rate of 5.07%

Certain FHLB borrowings have prepayment penalties with none having call or conversion feature associated

with them Mortgage-related assets with carrying value of $403 million were held as collateral for FHLB

borrowings at December 31 2008
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During 2007 the Company entered into $20 million senior debt facility agreement The Company has drawn

$20 million against this facility Interest is charged based on one month LIBOR plus spread that varies based on

certain performance factors the sum of which was 2.84% at December 31 2008 The credit facility originally

matured on July 31 2010 and during the fourth quarter 2008 the Company shortened the maturity to July 31

2009 and therefore moved the balance to short term borrowings Subsequent to year-end an amendment to this

debt facility was signed lengthening the maturity to April 15 2010 and changing the interest margin above

LIBOR

During 2007 the Company redeemed its $40 million of 9.35% coupon AMCORE Capital Trust preferred

securities for premium of $1.9 million and wrote off the remaining unamortized issuance costs of $386000

which were included in other operating expense on the Consolidated Statements of Operations The redemption

was funded by $50 million of new trust preferred securities Capital Trust II and $2 million of common

securities which
pay

cumulative cash distributions quarterly at an annual rate of 6.45% After June 2012 the

securities are redeemable at par until June 2037 when redemption is mandatory Prior redemption at

premium is permitted under certain circumstances such as changes in tax or regulatory capital rules The

proceeds of the capital securities were invested in junior subordinated debentures that represent all of the assets

of Capital Trust 11 The Company fully and unconditionally guarantees the capital securities through the

combined operation of the debentures and other related documents The Companys obligations under the

guarantee are unsecured and subordinate to senior and subordinated indebtedness of the Company The $52

million of debentures the Company has bears interest at rate of 6.45% with put features that mirror the capital

security call features Of the $52 million $50 million qualifies as Tier Capital for consolidated regulatory

capital purposes Subsequent to the end of the year the Company elected to defer regularly scheduled quarterly

interest payments on the debentures The terms of the debentures and trust indentures the indentures allow for

the Company to defer payment of interest on the securities at any time or from time to time up to 20 consecutive

quarters provided no event of default as defined in the indentures has occurred and is continuing The Company

is not in default with respect to the indentures and the deferral of interest does not constitute an event of default

under the indentures While the Company defers the payment of interest it will continue to accrue expense for

interest owed at compounded rate Upon the expiration of the deferral all accrued and unpaid interest is due

and payable During the deferral period the Company may not declare or pay any dividends or distributions on

or redeem purchase acquire or make liquidation payment with respect to any of its capital stock The total

estimated annual interest that would be payable on the debentures and the underlying debt securities if not

deferred is approximately $3.3 million

The Bank has two fixed/floating rate junior subordinate debentures of $35 million and $15 million for total of

$50 million The average stated maturity of these debentures at December 31 2008 is 12.9 years with weighted

average
interest rate of 6.93% The initial interest rate is fixed and the earliest call date is September 15 2016

After the first call date successive payments if any due thereafter bear weighted average interest rate equal to

three-month LIBOR plus 1.66% The debt qualifies as Tier Capital for regulatory capital purposes

Other long-term borrowings include capital lease with net carrying value of $1.0 million on branch facility

leased by the Company The Company is amortizing the capitalized lease obligation and depreciating the facility

over the remaining non-cancellable term of the original lease which expires or renews in 2021 In December

2007 the Company entered into capital lease agreement for data operations sorter with current net carrying

value of $138000 The Company is amortizing the capitalized lease obligation over the term of the original

lease which expires in 2012
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The Company reclassifies long-term borrowings to short-term borrowings when the remaining maturity becomes

less than one year Scheduled reductions of long-term borrowings are as follows

Total at

December 31
2008

in thousands

2010 $100491

2011 25085

2012 88

2013 151623

2014 61

Thereafter 102319

Total Long-Term Borrowings $379667

In 2006 the Company extinguished $74 million of high-cost FHLB debt An
expense of $2.1 million related to

the debt extinguishment was incurred and was primarily non-cash cost and included the recognition of

unamortized market adjustments associated with previously terminated hedges The
expense

is recorded in other

operating expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Operations for the year ended December 31 2006

NOTE 9- DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

The Company uses derivatives to manage Hedge its risk or exposure to changes in interest rates and in

conjunction with its mortgage banking operations The derivatives currently used include interest rate swaps

mortgage loan commitments and forward contracts Interest rate swaps are used by the Company to convert

fixed-rate assets or liabilities to floating-rate assets or liabilities fair value Hedges and derivatives not qualifying

for Hedge accounting These are further described in Note

The following derivative related activity is included in other non-interest income in the Consolidated Statements

of Operations for the
years

ended

2008 2007 2006

in thousands

Changes in Value

Derivatives not qualifying for Hedge accounting $1427 $838 $181

Ineffective portion of fair value Hedges 51 41 17

Mortgage loan derivatives 167 72 29

Total $1645 $869 $227

Fair value Hedges on $74 million of FHLB borrowings were terminated in 2006 and 2004 resulting in loss of

$2.9 million and gain of $690000 respectively These amounts were deferred and classified as long-term debt

with amortization to earnings over the remaining terms of the FHLB borrowings in accordance with SFAS

No 138 Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities During 2006 the $74 million in

FHLB borrowings was extinguished and the $2.1 million remaining unamortized net deferred loss on the

previously terminated hedges was charged to other operating expense
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The following table summarizes the notional amounts and estimated fair values of the Companys derivative

instruments at December 31 2008 and 2007 The Notional Principal Amount is not advanced to/from the

Counter-party It is used only as reference point to calculate the exchange of interest payment streams and is

not recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheets Positive fair values are recorded in other assets and negative

fair values are recorded in other liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets

2008 2007

Weighted Average

Notional Fair Years to Receive Pay Notional Fair

Amount Value Maturity Rate Rate Amount Value

dollars in thousands

Derivative instruments designated as hedges

of fair value

Pay fixed/receive variable swaps 23695 278
Receive fixed/pay variable swaps 24970 317 1.7 4.50% 4.28% 48416 94

Non-designated derivative instruments

Pay fixed/receive variable swaps 18000 1289 2.3 4.82% 5.09% 34818 1068
Receive fixed/pay variable swaps 32562 191

Pay fixed/receive variable swaps-

forward rate lock 1897 70

42970 972 1.9 4.63% 4.62% $141388 $l701

Forward sale loan commitments 60857 643 23051 96
Mortgage loan commitments 55358 423 17906 43

Total Loan Commitments 116215 220 40957 53

Total Derivative Instruments $159185 $1192 $182345 $1754

Hedging fixed rated loans

Hedging fixed rate certificates of deposits CDs
Includes fixed rate loan CD and COLT swaps which were not designated as hedging instruments under

SFAS No 133

Pursuant to SFAS No 133 Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities as modified by

SFAS No 138 and amended by SFAS No 149 all derivatives are recognized at fair value in the Consolidated

Balance Sheets including derivatives that do not qualify for Hedge accounting and are recognized in the

Consolidated Statements of Operations as they arise If the derivative qualifies for Hedge accounting depending

on the nature of the Hedge changes in the fair value of the derivative are either offset in the Statements of

Operations or are recorded as component of other comprehensive income in the Consolidated Statement of

Stockholders Equity

NOTE 10- FAIR VALUE

SFAS No 157 establishes fair value hierarchy which requires an entity to maximize the use of observable

inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value The standard describes three

levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value

Level Quoted prices unadjusted for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the entity has the

ability to access as of the measurement date quoted price in an active market provides the most reliable

evidence of fair value

Level Other observable inputs other than Level prices such as quoted prices for similar assets or

liabilities quoted prices in markets that are not active or other inputs that are observable or can be

corroborated by observable market data
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Level Unobservable inputs that reflect reporting entitys own assumptions about the assumptions that

market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on recurring basis The following table summarizes by

measurement hierarchy the various assets and liabilities of the Company that are measured at fair value on

recurring basis for the year ended December 31 2008

Fair Value Hierarchy

December 31
2008 Level Level Level

in thousands

Assets

Available for sale securities $831422 $75763 $745215 $10444

Interest rate swap agreements 317 317

Forward sale loan commitments 423 423

Total assets $832162 $75763 $745955 $10444

Liabilities

Hedged Deposits 25320 25320

Interest rate swap agreements 1289 1289

Forward sale loan commitments 644 644

Total liabilities 27253 27253

The fair values of securities available for sale are determined by obtaining quoted prices on nationally recognized

securities exchanges Level inputs or matrix pricing which is mathematical technique widely used in the

industry to value debt securities without relying exclusively on quoted prices for the specific securities but rather

by relying on the securities relationship to other benchmark quoted securities Level inputs

Securities classified as Level are pools backed by trust preferred securities issued by banks thrifts and

insurance companies The market for these securities Level at December 31 2008 was not active and markets

for similar securities Level were also not active The Company relies on broker quotes for pricing information

but in the current inactive market there are significant amount of unobservable inputs factored into the pricing

Information such as historical and current performance of the underlying collateral and tranche deferral/default

rates collateral coverage ratios break in yield calculations cash flow projections and liquidity and credit

premiums required by market participant are utilized in determining individual security valuations Due to

current market conditions as well as the limited trading activity of these securities the market value of the

securities is highly sensitive to assumption changes and market volatility Level

The Companys derivative instruments consist of mortgage loan commitments forward contracts and interest

rate swaps that trade in liquid markets As such significant fair value inputs can generally be verified and do not

typically involve significant management judgments Level inputs

The fair value of hedged deposits is based on internal pricing models using observable market inputs and

constant credit and liability spreads Credit spread is negligible as the deposits are FDIC insured
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Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on recurring basis using significant unobservable inputs The

following table reconciles the beginning and ending balances of the assets of the Company that are measured at

fair value on recurring basis using significant unobservable inputs for the year ended December 31 2008 There

currently are no liabilities of the Company that are measured at fair value on recurring basis using significant

unobservable inputs

Level

Available

for Sale Hedged
Total Securities Loans

in thousands

Balance at beginning of period 54745 30772 23973

Total realizedlunrealized gains losses

Included in earnings 580 580

Included in other comprehensive loss 18956 18956

Purchases issuances sales and settlements 1372 1372
Transfers out of Level 24553 24553

Balance at end of period 10444 10444

There were no total gains losses for the period included in earnings attributable to the change in unrealized

gains losses related to assets still held at December 31 2008 for all categories listed above The transfer out of

level relates to loans previously recorded at fair value because they were subject to qualified fair value hedge

During 2008 the derivatives associated with the hedged loans were terminated As result hedge accounting

that required the previously hedged loans to be recorded at fair value was discontinued and new cost basis

carrying value for the loans was established

Gains and losses realized and unrealized included in earnings for the above period are reported in other income

Other Income

in thousands

Total gains losses included in earnings for the year ended December 31 2008 580

Change in unrealized gains losses relating to assets still held at December 31 2008 $18956

Assets measured at fair value on non-recurring basis The following table summarizes by measurement

hierarchy financial assets of the Company that are measured at fair value on non-recurring basis

December 31 Total Gains

2008 Level Level Level Losses

in thousands

Impaired loans $58978 $58978 $l4108

The fair value of impaired loans with specific allocations of the allowance for loan losses is generally based on

recent real estate appraisals with further discounts applied These appraisals may utilize single valuation

approach or combination of approaches including comparable sales and the income approach Adjustments to

approved values and discounts used are typically significant and result in Level classification of the inputs for

determining fair value

As of December 31 2008 and in accordance with SFAS No 114 impaired loans with remaining carrying

amount of $78.1 million have been written down to an aggregate fair value of $59.0 million as measured by

underlying collateral or discounted cash flow through loss allocation in the allowance for loan losses

Allowance The amount of the allocation related to these loans was $19.1 million at December 31 2008

compared to $5.0 million for impaired loans at December 31 2007 resulting in net increase in the impairment

charge of $14.1 million for the year ending December 31 2008
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments Recorded at Historical Cost Fair values of financial instruments that are

not recorded at fair value on the Companys financial statements on either recurring or non-recurring basis have

been estimated by the Company using available market information and appropriate valuation methodologies as

discussed below Considerable judgment was required however to interpret market data to develop the estimates

of fair value Accordingly the estimates presented below are not necessarily indicative of the amounts the

Company could realize in current market exchange

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial instruments at December 31 2008

and 2007 that have liquid markets in which fair value is assumed to be equal to the carrying amount are based on

quoted prices for similar financial instruments or represent quoted surrender values Included in securities

available for sale are investments in FHLB and FRB stock that are held to satisfy membership requirements It is

not practical to determine the fair value of these stocks due to restrictions placed on their transferability

therefore they are presented at their carrying amount

2008 2007

Carrying Carrying
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value

in thousands

Cash and cash equivalents $138017 $138017 $132156 $132156

Interest earning deposits in banks and fed funds sold 1665 1665 12882 12882

Securities available for sale 26796 26796 24831 24831

Mortgage servicing rights 124 186 139 207

Company owned life insurance 144599 144599 140022 140022

The carrying amounts and fair values of accruing loans at December 31 2008 and 2007 were as follows

2008 2007

Carrying Carrying
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value

in thousands

Commercial financial and agricultural 720997 708550 765514 767527

Real estate 2384308 2325329 2791249 2819220
Installment and consumer net 376548 370839 334949 341679

Total accruing loans $3481853 $3404718 $3891712 $3928426

Fair values of loans were estimated for portfolios with similar characteristics The fair value of loans was

calculated by discounting contractual and prepayment cash flows using estimated market discount rates which

reflect the interest rate risk liquidity risk and credit risk inherent in the loan The fair value of non-accrual loans

was $285.1 million and $36.0 million in 2008 and 2007 respectively See Note for additional information

The carrying value of interest receivable and payable approximates fair value due to the relatively short period of

time between accrual and expected realization At December 31 2008 and 2007 interest receivable was $17.4

million and $25.5 million respectively and interest payable was $24.3 million and $19.7 million respectively
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The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial instrument liabilities at

December 31 2008 and 2007

2008 2007

Carrying Carrying
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value

in thousands

Non-interest-bearing deposits 465382 465382 508389 508389

Interest-bearing deposits 1224166 1224166 1912496 1912496

Time deposits 2204170 2297475 1582371 1598986

Short-term borrowings 435783 439018 397088 401025

Long-term borrowings 379667 406701 368858 388562

Letters of credit 233 354 794 1101

Deferred Compensation 8644 9216 12607 12963

The fair value of deposits with no stated maturity such as non-interest-bearing demand deposits savings NOW
and money market accounts is equal to the carrying amount in accordance with SFAS No 107 Disclosures

about Fair Value of Financial Instruments There is however additional value to the deposits of the Company

significant portion of which has not been recognized in the consolidated financial statements This value results

from the cost savings of these core-funding sources versus obtaining higher-rate funding in the market The fair

value of time deposits short-term borrowings and long-term borrowings was determined by discounting

contractual cash flows using offered rates for like instruments with similar remaining maturities

The fair value of letters of credit is equal to the carrying amount of deferred fees recorded in accordance with

FIN No 45 Guarantors Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees Including Indirect

Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others See discussion included in Note 13 for additional information

The above fair value estimates were made at discrete point in time based on relevant market information and

other assumptions about the financial instruments As no active market exists for significant portion of the

Companys financial instruments fair value estimates were based on judgments regarding current economic

conditions future expected cash flows and loss experience risk characteristics and other factors These estimates

are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and therefore cannot be calculated with precision Level

There may be inherent weaknesses in calculation techniques and changes in the underlying assumptions used

including discount rates and estimates of future cash flows which could significantly affect the results In

addition the fair value estimates are based on existing off-balance sheet financial instruments without attempting

to assess the value of anticipated future business and the value of assets and liabilities that are not considered

financial instruments Significant investments in subsidiaries specifically the Investment Management and Trust

operations are not considered financial instruments and the franchise values have not been included in the fair

value estimates Similarly premises and equipment and intangible assets have not been considered The fair

value of loans held for sale is based upon binding quotes from the Companys strategic arrangement with

national mortgage services company Level inputs

Many of the above financial instruments are also subject to credit risk Credit risk is the possibility that the

Company will incur loss due to the other partys failure to perform under its contractual obligations The

Companys exposure to credit loss in the event of non-performance by the other party with regard to

commitments to extend credit and letters of credit is represented by the contractual amount of those instruments

The Company uses the same credit policies in making commitments and conditional obligations as it does for

actual extensions of credit The credit risk involved for commitments to extend credit and in issuing letters of

credit is essentially the same as that involved in extending loans to customers The amount of collateral obtained

if deemed necessary by the Company upon extension of credit is based on managements credit evaluation of the

customer Collateral held varies but may include accounts receivable securities inventory property and

equipment and income-producing commercial properties The Company is also exposed to carrier credit risk with

respect to its $145 million investment in COLI AMCORE has managed this risk by utilizing separate
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accounts in which our credit exposure is to specific investment portfolio rather than carrier The underlying

investment portfolios which are managed by parties other than AMCORE consist of investment grade securities

and the investment guidelines typically have requirement to sell if the securities are downgraded In terms of

COLT accounts where AMCORE is directly exposed to carrier credit risk this risk has been managed by

diversifying its holdings among multiple carriers and by periodic internal credit reviews All carriers have

investment grade ratings from the major ratings agencies

summary of the contract amount of the Companys exposure to off-balance sheet credit risk as of

December 31 2008 and 2007 is as follows

2008 2007

in thousands

Financial instruments whose contract amount represent credit risk only

Commitments to extend credit $656407 $885334

Letters of credit 74165 191884

Commitments to extend credit are contractual agreements entered into with customers as long as there is no

violation of
any condition established on the contract Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or

other termination clauses and may require payment of fee Since many of the commitments are expected to

expire without being drawn upon the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash

requirements

Letters of credit are conditional but irrevocable commitments issued by the Company to guarantee the payment

of customer to third party Those guarantees are primarily issued to support public and private borrowing

arrangements including commercial paper bond financing and similar transactions

NOTE 11- STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

The Company has several stock-based compensation plans The Company provides an employee stock purchase

plan and makes awards of stock options restricted stock and performance share units PSUs The awards

granted under those plans are accounted for using the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No 123R
Share-Based Payment

The Companys actual expenses related to stock-based compensation for the years ended December 31 2008

2007 and 2006 were as follows

2008 2007 2006

in thousands

Compensation expense included in reported operating expenses

Stock options $1917 $2182 $2176

Employee stock purchase plan 158 102 49

Performance share units 131 552 593

Restricted stock 279 157 159

Total stock-based compensation expense $2223 $1889 $2977

Income tax benefits 778 676 $1112

At December 31 2008 total unrecognized stock-based compensation expense was $3.3 million net of estimated

forfeitures which will be recognized over weighted average
amortization period of 1.7 years SFAS No l23R

requires cash flows resulting from the tax benefits from tax deductions in excess of the compensation cost

recognized excess tax benefits to be classified as financing cash flows For the twelve months ended

December 31 2008 the Company did not have any excess tax benefit since there were no stock option exercises

For the twelve months ended December 31 2007 and 2006 respectively $733000 and $792000 of excess tax

benefits have been classified as an operating cash outflow and financing cash inflow
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The Company estimates the fair value of stock options using Black-Scholes valuation model The fair value of

restricted stock PSUs and employee stock purchase plan grants generally equals their intrinsic value on the date

of grant The fair value of stock-based grants is amortized to operating expense on straight-line basis over the

required vesting period of the grant Stock option grants made to retirement eligible employees are fully

expensed during the period in which the options are granted

The Company annually evaluates the assumptions used in the Black-Scholes model The Company believes that

the combination of historical and implied volatility provides reasonable estimate of expected stock price

volatility and will continue to monitor these and other relevant factors to estimate expected volatility for future

option grants The Company utilizes the simplified method for estimating the expected term of options granted

during the period as provided for in SAB 110 The Company continues to base the estimate of risk-free rate on

the U.S Treasury yield curve in effect at the date of grant Dividend yield is the Companys annual dividend rate

expressed as percentage of the closing stock price on grant date Estimated forfeitures are based on historical

employee termination experience The estimate of forfeitures is adjusted to the extent that actual forfeitures differ

from such estimates Changes in estimated forfeitures are recognized in subsequent periods as they occur

The Company adopted the alternative transition method provided in the FSP No FAS 23R-3 for calculating the

tax effects of stock-based compensation pursuant to SFAS No 123R The alternative transition method includes

simplified methods to establish the beginning balance of the additional paid-in capital pooi APIC pool related

to the tax effects of employee stock-based compensation and to determine the subsequent impact on the APIC

pool and Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows of the tax effects of employee stock-based compensation

awards

In December 2007 the SEC issued SAB No 110 in which the SEC concluded that company could under

certain circumstances continue to use the simplified method of estimating the expected term of options for grants

after December 31 2007 Due to the significant differences in terms and types of option grants received by

employees and recent significant structural changes historical exercise data did not provide reasonable basis

upon which to estimate expected term The Company therefore continued its use of the simplified method for

determining an estimate of expected term for its share options granted during 2008

The fair value of the Companys employee and director stock options granted was estimated using the Black

Scholes option-pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions

2008 2007 2006

Expected dividend yield
4.35% 2.38% 2.47%

Expected price volatility
25.86% 19.16% 19.08%

Expected term in years
6.2 6.1 6.0

Expected risk-free interest rate 3.38% 4.64% 4.77%

Estimated average fair value of options granted 3.53 6.33 6.14

Employee Stock Award and Incentive Plans The 2005 Stock Award and Incentive Plan SAIP allows for

awards to key employees of stock options restricted shares performance shares units PSUs and other forms of

stock-based awards The maximum number of shares to be granted under the plan is 2125000 The Company

will not reprice any awards under the SAIP unless such repricing is approved by majority vote of the

Companys stockholders Awards issued pursuant to the SAIP that expire are forfeited or terminated for any

reason shall again be available to grant
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Stock Options Non-qualified stock options are issued at an exercise price equal to the fair market value of the

shares on the grant date and generally vest within three to four years and expire from seven to ten years from the

date of grant Options issued are valued using the Black-Scholes model The activity during and the total options

outstanding and exercisable as of 2008 2007 and 2006 pursuant to the SAIP and previous incentive plans are as

follows

2008 2007 2006

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise

Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price

Options outstanding at beginning of year 2064424 $27.33 1954194 $25.94 1815566 $24.43

Options granted 536275 17.97 486994 31.33 479033 30.07

Option reloads 10698 30.14 8054 30.31

Options exercised 231859 23.19 269311 22.36

Options cancelled 161103 26.43 43196 26.79 16137 30.96

Options forfeited 120235 25.46 112407 29.55 63011 28.42

Options outstanding at end of year 2319361 $25.33 2064424 $27.33 1954194 $25.94

Options exercisable at end of year 1334441 $26.10 1167487 $25.12 1103975 $23.86

Weighted average remaining contractual life of outstanding and exercisable shares at December 31 2008 was 4.8

years and 2.8 years respectively For both options outstanding and those exercisable there was no aggregate

intrinsic value for the period ended December 31 2008

Performance Share Units The Company grants PSUs pursuant to the terms and conditions of various sub-plans

provided for in the SAIP The sub-plans establish performance goals and performance periods that are approved

by the Compensation Committee of the Companys Board of Directors Each PSU represents the right to receive

share of the Companys common stock at the end of the performance period some of which may be issued as

restricted shares One sub-plan allows for PSUs to be converted to common shares and issued at the end of the

three-year performance Two additional sub-plans allow for PSUs to be converted to restricted common shares

after the performance period and vest over five years

Compensation expense is calculated based upon the expected number of PSUs earned during the performance

period and is recorded over the service period The fair value is calculated equal to market value on the date of

grant less the present value of dividends that are not earned during the performance period Expense is adjusted

for forfeitures as they occur As of December 31 2008 PSUs expected to be earned and the weighted average

grant date fair value per PSU were as follows

2008 2007 2006

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average

Exercise Exercise Exercise

PSU Price PSU Price PSU Price

Units outstanding at beginning of
year 59070 $27.42 119511 $28.38 63146 $30.72

Units estimated to be granted 2000 30.30 27600 24.68 76115 27.65

Units forfeited 20000 29.70 26375 28.80 10710 29.86

Adjustment to estimated grants 2260 30.30 61666 27.45 9040 28.66

Units outstanding at end of year 38810 $26.23 59070 $27.42 119511 $28.38

Weighted average remaining vesting period of outstanding shares at December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 were 3.5

years 4.0 years and 3.7 years respectively
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Restricted Stock Awards The Company has periodically granted restricted stock awards to certain key

employees The shares are restricted as to transfer but are not restricted as to dividend payment and voting

rights Transfer restrictions lapse at the end of two three or seven years contingent upon continued employment

Restricted stock grants are valued at market value on the date of grant and are expensed over the service period

As of December 31 2008 non-vested shares totaled 17157 with weighted average fair value of $21.89 per

share During 2008 14000 shares were granted 210 restricted shares were forfeited and returned to treasury and

4816 restrictions were released During 2007 2500 were granted 2846 restricted shares were forfeited and

returned to treasury and restrictions were released on 867 shares

Directors Stock Plans The Restricted Stock Plan for Non-Employee Directors provides that eligible

non-employee directors receive in lieu of cash retainer shares of common stock of the Company Since May

2007 the value of restricted common stock issued was equal to two thirds of the equivalent of three years annual

retainer with the remaining one-third issued at the election of the director in either restricted stock cash or

deposited to Deferred Compensation account in the name of the director Prior to May 2007 the value of

restricted common stock issued was equal to three times the annual retainer Restricted stock grants are valued at

market value on the date of grant and are expensed over the required service period The shares vested annually

over three-year period based upon the anniversary date of the election and continued service as director As of

December 31 2008 restricted shares totaled 14868 with weighted average fair value of $20.12 per share

total of 9499 shares were issued restrictions were released on 5003 shares and 510 shares were cancelled

during the year

The 2001 Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors provides that each current eligible non-employee

director and each subsequently elected non-employee director receive options to purchase common stock of the

Company The maximum number of shares to be granted under the plan is 300000 Options granted have an

exercise price equal to the market value on the date of grant and generally vest within one to three years and

expire in seven to ten years from the date of grant Stock options granted pursuant to this plan are valued using

Black-Scholes model with assumptions as previously listed The following table presents certain information

with respect to stock options issued to non-employee directors pursuant to the 2001 Plan and previous stock

option plans

2008 2007 2006

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise

Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price

Options outstanding at beginning of
year 138500 $25.73 117250 $24.33 101000 $22.90

Options granted 24000 11.96 30000 29.71 20000 29.45

Options exercised 8750 20.59 3750 13.33

Options cancelled 5500 25.50

Options outstanding at end of year 157000 $23.63 138500 $25.73 117250 $24.33

Options exercisable at end of year 106330 $24.76 95170 $23.95 97250 $23.27

Weighted average remaining contractual life of outstanding and exercisable shares at December 31 2008 was 5.1

years and 3.4 years respectively For both options outstanding and those exercisable there was no aggregate

intrinsic value for the period ended December 31 2008
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Non-vested options and exercise proceeds summary of the Companys non-vested employee and director

stock options is presented below

Employee options Director options

Average Average
Shares Price Shares Price

Non-vested options at beginning of year 896937 $30.20 43330 $29.63

Options granted 536275 17.97 24000 11.96

Options forfeited 120235 25.46

Options vested 328057 29.76 16660 29.61

Non-vested options at December 31 2008 984920 $24.27 50670 $21.27

2008 2007 2006

Fair value of stock options vested during year 000s 2334 2256 2013

Per option fair value of stock options vested during year 6.77 6.54 7.18

Number of shares exercised during year 240609 273061

Intrinsic value of options exercised during year 000s 2062 2248

During 2008 there were no options exercised and therefore no cash or stock equivalent received or tax benefit

recognized for exercises The Company may periodically repurchase shares in open market and private

transactions in accordance with Exchange Act Rule lOb- 18 to replenish treasury stock for issuances related to

stock option exercises and other employee benefit plans

Employee Stock Purchase Plan ESPP The AMCORE Stock Option Advantage Plan permits eligible

employees to purchase from the Company shares of its common stock at an exercise or purchase price at 85% of

the lower of the closing price of the Companys common stock on the NASDAQ Stock Market on the first or last

day of each offering period Reserved for issuance under the ESPP is total of 600000 shares of unissued

common stock Shares issued pursuant to the ESPP are prohibited from sale by participant for two years after

the date of purchase Dividends earned are credited to participants account and used to purchase shares from

the Companys treasury stock at the same discounted price on the next purchase date Previous to the fourth

quarter 2008 the 15% discount was recorded as compensation expense and amortized on straight-line basis

over the two-year service period During the fourth quarter the Company suspended its practice of repurchasing

any unvested shares owned by terminated participant The unamortized balance of $72000 was immediately

expensed and all future compensation expense related to the ESPP will be expensed in the quarter of origination

NOTE 12- BENEFIT PLANS

Retirement Plans

The AMCORE Financial Security Plan Security Plan is qualified defined contribution plan under Sections

401a and 401k of the Internal Revenue Code All eligible employees of the Company participate in the

Security Plan which provides basic retirement contribution funded by the Company In addition employees

have the opportunity to make contributions that are eligible to receive matching Company contributions up to

certain levels The
expense

related to the Security Plan for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

was $3.6 million $4.0 million and $3.9 million respectively The Company also has non-qualified profit

sharing plan that provides cash payment based upon achievement of corporate performance goals to all

employees who have met service requirements The
expense related to the profit sharing plan for the years ended

December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 was $0 $458000 and $686000 respectively

81



The Company provides additional retirement benefits to certain senior officers through plans that are

non-qualified non-contributory and unfunded Under one such arrangement defined contribution plan the

additional retirement benefits replace what would have been provided under the Companys defined contribution

qualified plan in the absence of limits placed on qualified plan benefits by the Internal Revenue Code of 1986

The expense related to this arrangement for the years
ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 was $34000

$86000 and $102000 respectively

Another arrangement which is an unfunded non-qualified defined benefit plan provides supplemental

retirement benefits that are based upon three percent of final base salary times the number of years of service

Benefits under this plan may not exceed 70% or be less than 45% of participants final base salary less offsets

for employer retirement plan benefits attributable to employer contributions and 50% of participants Social

Security benefit Since the plan is unfunded there are no plan assets The measurement date for obligations of

this plan is as of December 31 The projected benefit obligation is $3.8 million and $3.4 million respectively at

December 31 2008 and 2007 The periodic benefit costs for the years ending December 31 2008 2007 and

2006 were $281000 $814000 and $1.5 million respectively

The Company has discontinued defined benefit plan that pays lifetime annual retainer to certain retired

non-employee directors However the Company continues to make payments to those non-employee directors

that became eligible prior to the discontinuation of the plan The plan is non-qualified and unfunded and since

the plan is unfunded there are no plan assets The measurement date for obligations of this plan is as of

December 31 The projected benefit obligation is $154000 and $279000 respectively at December 31 2008

and 2007 The periodic benefit cost for the years ending December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 was $42000

$204000 and $178000 respectively

The following tables summarize in aggregate for the two defined benefit retirement plans the changes in

obligations net periodic benefit costs and other information for the years ended December 31 As of

December 31 2008 all participants under both plans are in payout

2008 2007

in thousands

Change in benefit obligation

Projected benefit obligation at beginning of year $3700 $3569

Service cost 41 71

Interest cost 214 201

Actuarial losses settlement and adjustments
424 704

Benefits paid 394 845

Projected benefit obligation at end of year $3985 $3700

Plan Assets

Funded Status 3985 3700

Unrecognized transition obligation 38 80
Unrecognized actuarial loss 444

Liability recorded in Consolidated Balance Sheets $3503 $3620

Amounts recorded in Other Comprehensive Income

Transition obligation
47

2008 2007 2006

Components of net periodic benefit cost in thousands

Service cost 41 71 34

Interest cost 214 201 134

Transition obligation amortization 42 42 42

Actuarial losses settlement and adjustments 58 704 1515

Net periodic cost $239 $1018 $1725
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The net periodic costs for 2008 included an additional accrual for benefits payable to the retiring Chief Executive

Officer and for 2007 included lump-sum settlement in connection with the separation of senior executive and

an accrual to settle the obligations for two directors not yet in payout under the directors defined benefit plan

The remaining unrecognized transition obligation will be fully amortized in 2009

2008 2007 2006

Weighted-average assumptions

Discount rate at end of year
6.25% 5.99% 5.75%

Rate of compensation increase employee plan
4.00% 4.00% 4.00%

Estimated benefit payments in thousands

2009
382

2010
375

2011
375

2012
368

2013
368

2014-2018
1788

Contributions of $394000 and $845000 were made during 2008 and 2007 respectively to fund benefit

payments The plans have no assets at December 31 2008 or 2007 The plans liabilities as of December 31

2008 and 2007 were $3.5 million and $3.7 million respectively

Other Benefit Plans

The AMCORE Financial Inc Employee Health Benefit Plan Health Plan provides group medical pharmacy

dental and vision benefits to eligible participating employees of the Company and their dependents Employees

retirees and COBRA beneficiaries contribute specific premium amounts determined annually by the Health

Plans administrator based upon actuarial recommendations for coverage Retirees and COBRA beneficiaries

contribute 100% of their premiums The Companys share of the employee premiums and other Health Plan costs

are expensed as incurred Expense related to the Health Plan was $6.0 million $5.8 million and $5.3 million for

2008 2007 and 2006 respectively Life insurance benefits are provided to eligible active employees Because

retiree premiums are actuarially based and are paid 100% by the retiree the Company has not recorded

postretirement liability

The Company provides deferred compensation plan entitled AMCORE Financial Inc Deferred

Compensation Plan for certain key employees and directors This plan provides the opportunity to defer salary

bonuses and non-employee director fees Participants may defer up to 90% of base compensation and up to 100%

of bonus The deferred compensation liability to participants is recorded in other liabilities in the Consolidated

Balance Sheets The deferrals and earnings grow tax deferred until withdrawn from the plan The amount and

method of payment are pre-defined by participants
each year of deferral Earnings credited to individual accounts

are recorded as compensation expense when earned The total non-qualified deferred compensation plan liability

totaled $8.6 million and $12.6 million as of December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively Expense related to the

deferred compensation plan was $70000 $806000 and $992000 for 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

The Company also has various short term profit sharing and sales related incentive plans The expense
related to

such plans was $4.3 million $3.4 million and $6.0 million for 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively
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NOTE 13- CONTINGENCIES GUARANTEES AND REGULATORY MATTERS

Contingencies

Management believes that no litigation is threatened or pending in which the Company faces reasonable

possibility of loss or exposure which will materially affect the Companys consolidated financial position or

consolidated results of operations Since the Companys subsidiaries act as depositories of funds trustee and

escrow agents they occasionally are named as defendants in lawsuits involving claims to the ownership of funds

in particular accounts The Bank is also subject to counterclaims from defendants in connection with collection

actions brought by the Bank This and other litigation is incidental to the Companys business

During 2007 as member of the VISA Inc organization VISA the Company accrued $653000 liability for

its proportionate share of various claims against VISA This amount consisted of $217000 of claims settled by

VISA but not yet paid $68000 estimate of claims considered probable by VISA pursuant to SFAS No

Accounting for Contingencies and $368000 representing the Companys estimate of certain indemnification

obligations pursuant to FIN No 45 Guarantors Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees

Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others

During first quarter 2008 the Company received partial redemption distribution in connection with the initial

public offering IPO of VISA for which $1.0 million net security gain was recorded The gain included

partial reversal of litigation and guaranty losses described above to the extent they related to the Companys

share of IPO proceeds retained in escrow by VISA to fund the losses The remaining contingent liability as of

December 31 2008 is $338000

During fourth quarter 2008 VISA Inc reached settlement in certain litigation with Discover Financial Services

Discover The amount of the settlement with Discover exceeded the amount retained in escrow by VISA Inc

from the proceeds of its IPO VISA Inc issued sufficient escrowed stock to cover the additional reserve

requirement so no additional liability for this settlement was required to be accrued by the Company The

Company has determined that its share of the additional reserve requirements to settle the litigation with

Discover is not material with respect to its consolidated financial statements as of December 31 2008

Guarantees

The Bank as provider of financial services routinely enters into commitments to extend credit to its customers

including variety of letters of credit Letters of credit are conditional but generally irrevocable form of

guarantee on the part of the Bank to make payments to third party obligee upon the default of payment or

performance by the Bank customer or upon consummation of the underlying transaction as intended Letters of

credit are typically issued for period of one year to five years but can be extended depending on the Bank

customers needs As of December 31 2008 the maximum remaining term for any outstanding letter of credit

expires on March 31 2013

fee is normally charged to compensate the Bank for the value of the letter of credit that is issued at the request

of the Bank customer The fees are deferred and recognized as income over the term of the guarantee As of

December 31 2008 the carrying value of these deferrals was deferred credit of $232000 This amount

included an $83000 guarantee liability for letters of credit recorded in accordance with Financial Interpretation

FIN No 45 The remaining $149000 represented deferred fees charged for letters of credit exempted from the

scope
of FIN No.45

At December 31 2008 the contractual amount of all letters of credit including those exempted from FIN No 45

was $74.2 million These represent the maximum potential amount of future payments that the Company would

be obligated to pay under the guarantees

The issuance of letter of credit is generally backed by collateral The collateral can take various forms

including but not limited to bank accounts investments fixed assets inventory accounts receivable and real

estate At the time that the letters of credit are issued the value of the collateral is usually in an amount that is

considered sufficient to cover the contractual amount of the letter of credit
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In addition to the guarantee liability and deferred fees described above the Company has recorded contingent

liability for estimated probable losses on unfunded loan commitments and letters of credit outstanding This

liability was $5.8 million and $958000 of December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively which was recorded in

other expense in the Consolidated Statements of Operations

As noted above as of December 31 2008 pursuant to FIN No 45 the Company has an accrued liability of

$338000 representing the estimated fair value of its proportionate share of certain indemnification obligations

against VISA

Regulatory Matters

On May 31 2005 the Bank entered into Formal Agreement with the Office of the Comptroller of Currency

0CC the Banks primary regulator to strengthen the Banks consumer compliance program On August 10

2006 the Bank entered into Consent Order with the 0CC to strengthen its compliance monitoring policies

procedures training and overall program relating to the Bank Secrecy ActiAnti-Money Laundering BSA/AML
regulations The commitments and requirements imposed by these two items were completed and on April 14

2008 the Bank was notified that the 0CC had terminated the Formal Agreement and the Consent Order

On May 15 2008 the Bank entered into written agreement the Agreement with the 0CC The Agreement

describes commitments made by the Bank to address and strengthen banking practices relating to asset quality

and the overall administration of the credit function at the Bank The Bank has implemented enhancements to its

credit processes to address the matters identified by the 0CC and expects to comply with all the requirements

specified in the Agreement In the meantime the Agreement results in the Banks ineligibility for certain actions

and expedited approvals without the prior written consent and approval of the 0CC These actions include

among other things the appointment of directors and senior executives making or agreeing to make certain

payments to executives or directors business combinations and branching

NOTE 14-INCOME TAXES

The components of income tax expense benefit were as follows

Years ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

in thousands

Currently paid or payable receivable

Federal $26656 $18666 $18134

State 21 96 147

$26635 $18762 $18281

Deferred

Federal $30425 7660 591
State 13849 2188 34

$44274 $9848 625

Total Income Tax Benefit Expense $70909 8914 $17656

Income tax benefit expense is included in the financial statements as follows

Continuing operations $70909 8914 $18035

Discontinued operations 379

Total Income Tax Benefit Expense $70909 8914 $17656
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Income tax benefit expense from continuing operations was different than the amounts computed by applying

the federal statutory rate of 35% due to the following

Years ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

in thousands

Income tax benefit expense on income from continuing operations at

statutory rate $59048 $13004 $22772

Decrease increase resulting from

Tax-exempt income 2008 1327 2282
Company owned life insurance 1598 1900 2762
State income taxes net of federal benefit excluding impact of state law

change 8988 772 115

Non-deductible expenses net 261 446 439

Impact of state law change on deferred taxes 588
Goodwill 2102 37 38

Other net 1630 14 285

Total Income Tax Benefit Expense on Continuing Operations $70909 8914 $18035

Effective Tax Rate for Continuing Operations 42.0% 24.0% 27.7%

The tax effects of existing temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets

and deferred tax liabilities are as follows

At December 31

2008 2007

in thousands

Deferred tax assets

Deferred compensation 7338 8124
Allowance for loan losses 54.362 21113
Net operating loss and credit carryforwards 93 89 1220

Other 3021 1319

Gross deferred tax assets $74110 $31776

Less Valuation allowance 2563 1094

Total deferred tax assets $71 547 $30682

Deferred tax liabilities

Premises and equipment 3596 3759
Deferred loan fees 689 4166
Other 2823 2593

Total deferred tax liabilities 7108 $10518

Net Deferred Tax Asset $64439 $20164

Tax effect of net unrealized loss on securities available for sale reflected in

stockholders equity 5051 2034

Net Deferred Tax Asset Including Net Unrealized Loss on Securities Available

for Sale $69490 $22198

Net operating loss carryforwards for state income tax purposes were approximately $143.3 million at

December 31 2008 The associated deferred tax asset is $10.9 million $7.1 million net of federal The

carryforwards expire beginning December 31 2019 through December 31 2023 The Company also has

deferred tax asset for federal tax purposes
related to contributions general business credits and alternative

minimum tax credits in the amounts of $50000 $725000 and $1.5 million respectively at December 31 2008

The contribution canyforward expires December 31 2013 The general business credit carryforwards expire

beginning December 31 2027 through December 31 2028 The alternative minimum tax credit carryforwards

have an indefinite life valuation allowance of $2.6 million and $1.1 million was established at December 31

2008 and 2007 against the deferred tax asset due to the uncertainty surrounding the utilization of state net
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operating loss carryforwards The increase in the valuation allowance is attributable to loss carryforwards

originating in 2008 In February 2009 the State of Wisconsin enacted legislation that requires corporations to

report income on combined basis effective for tax years beginning on or after January 2009 Management is

still evaluating the financial statement impact of this legislation

Realization of the deferred tax asset over time is dependent upon the existence of taxable income in canyback

periods or the Company generating sufficient taxable earnings in future periods In determining that realization of

the deferred tax asset was more likely than not the Company gave consideration to number of factors including

its taxable income during carryback periods its recent earnings history its expectations for earnings in the future

and where applicable the expiration dates associated with tax carryforwards

Retained earnings at December 31 2008 includes $3.2 million for which no provision for income tax has been

made This amount represents allocations of income to former thrift bad debt deductions for tax purposes only

This amount will only be taxable upon the occurrence of certain events At this time management does not

foresee the occurrence of any of these events

Tax benefits of $43000 $880000 and $950000 have been credited directly to paid in capital with

corresponding decrease in the liability for current income taxes payable for stock related incentives during the

years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

The Company adopted the provisions of FIN 48 Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes on January

2007 The Company has no uncertain tax positions as of December 31 2008 and is not aware of any significant

changes that are reasonably possible within the next twelve months It is the Companys policy to recognize

accrued interest and penalties related to uncertain tax benefits in income taxes The Internal Revenue Service and

the State of Illinois recently completed audits of the years 2004 through 2006 and 2003 through 2005

respectively All subsequent years remain open to examination

NOTE 15- EARNINGS PER SHARE

Earnings per share EPS calculations are presented in the following table Share data for all years presented has

been restated to reflect $0135 per share stock dividends issued in both June and September 2008

For the years ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

in thousands except per share data

Numerator

Net Loss Income from continuing operations $97799 $28241 $47027

Income from discontinued operations net of tax 248

Net Loss Income $97799 $28241 $47275

Denominator restated

Average number of shares outstanding basic 22629 23546 25125

Plus Diluted potential common shares 52

Contingently issuable shares 10 44

Average number of shares outstanding diluted 22629 23556 25221

Loss Earnings per share from continuing operations

Basic 4.32 1.20 1.87

Diluted 4.32 1.20 1.86

Earnings per share from discontinued operations

Basic 0.01

Diluted
0.01

Loss Earnings per share

Basic 4.32 1.20 1.88

Diluted 4.32 1.20 1.87

87



As prescribed by SFAS No 128 Earnings Per Share basic EPS is computed by dividing income available to

common stockholders numerator by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding

denominator during the period Shares issued during the period and shares reacquired during the period are

weighted for the portion of the period they were outstanding

The computation of diluted EPS is similar to the computation of basic EPS except that the denominator is

increased to include the number of additional common shares that would have been outstanding if the dilutive

potential common shares had been issued and to include shares contingently issuable pursuant to employee

incentive plans Securities e.g options that do not have current right to participate fully in earnings but that

may do so in the future by virtue of their option rights are potentially dilutive shares The dilutive shares are

calculated based on the treasury stock method meaning that for the purposes of this calculation all outstanding

options are assumed to have been exercised during the period and the resulting proceeds used to repurchase

Company stock at the average market price during the period The assumed proceeds shall also include the

amount of compensation cost attributed to future services and not yet recognized In computing diluted EPS only

potential common shares that are dilutive those that reduce earnings per share or increase loss per share are

included Exercise of options is not assumed if the result would be antidilutive For the years ended 2008 2007
and 2006 options to purchase 2.5 million shares 1.0 million shares and 134000 shares respectively were

outstanding but not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share because they were antidilutive

NOTE 16- SEGMENT INFORMATION

AMCORE internal reporting and planning process focuses on its four primary lines of business Segments
Commercial Banking Retail Banking Investment Management and Trust and Mortgage Banking The financial

information presented was derived from the Companys internal profitability reporting system that is used by

management to monitor and manage the financial performance of the Company This information is based on

internal management accounting policies which have been developed to reflect the underlying economics of the

Segments and to the extent practicable to portray each Segment as if it operated on stand-alone basis Thus
each Segment in addition to its direct revenues expenses assets and liabilities includes an appropriate

allocation of shared support function expenses The Segments also include funds transfer adjustments to

appropriately reflect the cost of funds on assets and funding credits on liabilities and equity Apart from these

adjustments the accounting policies used are similar to those described in Note

Since there are no comprehensive standards for management accounting that are equivalent to accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States of America the information presented may not necessarily be

comparable with similar information from other financial institutions In addition methodologies used to

measure assign and allocate certain items may change from time-to-time to reflect among other things

accounting estimate refinements changes in risk profiles changes in customers or product lines and changes in

management structure For example during 2007 the Company refined its method for measuring fund transfer

adjustments to include non-earnings assets liabilities and equity in addition to funds transfer adjustments for

loans made and deposits generated The effect of this change from 2006 was to increase net interest income in

Commercial Banking and Retail Banking segments by $5.1 million and $1.9 million respectively and the

Mortgage Banking Segment declined by $86000

Total Segment results differ from consolidated results primarily due to inter-segment eliminations certain

corporate administration costs and items not otherwise allocated in the management accounting process and

treasury and investment activities such as the offset to the funds transfer adjustments made to the Segments

interest income on the securities investment portfolio gains and losses on the sale of securities CULl
CRA-related fund investment income and derivative gains and losses The affect of these items is aggregated to

reconcile the amounts presented for the Segments to the consolidated results and is included in the Other
column As result of the Federated and West Bane transactions the results of 1MG for the current and prior

periods are reported as discontinued operations Goodwill write-off totaling $6.1 million is included in the other
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non-interest expense
line of the segment financials and is further discussed in Note of the Notes to

Consolidated Financial Statements

The Commercial Banking Segment provides commercial banking services including lending business checking

and deposits treasury management and other traditional as well as electronic commerce commercial banking

services to middle market and small business customers through the Banks branch locations The Retail Banking

Segment provides retail banking services including direct and indirect lending checking savings money market

and certificate of deposit CD accounts safe deposit rental automated teller machines and other traditional and

electronic commerce retail banking services to individual customers through the Banks branch locations The

Investment Management and Trust segment provides its clients with wealth management services which include

trust services investment management estate administration and financial planning employee benefit plan

administration and recordkeeping services The Mortgage Banking segment provides variety of mortgage

lending products to meet customer needs The majority of the loans it originates are sold to third-party

mortgage services company which provides private-label loan processing and servicing support
for both loans

sold and loans retained by the Bank
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Operating Segments

Investment

Commercial Retail Management Mortgage
Banking Banking and Trust Banking Other Consolidated

dollars in thousands

Years ended December 31 2008

Net interest income 93450 58643 200 2778 23186 131885
Non-interest income 8556 37974 20024 466 7582 74602

Total revenue 102006 96617 20224 3244 15604 206487
Provision for loan losses 180454 21415 847 202716

Depreciation and amortization 1360 3200 75 23 3909 8775
Other non-interest expense 59278 66637 16556 2924 18309 163704

Loss income before income taxes 139086 5365 3593 758 37822 168708
Income tax benefit expense 53315 3485 1442 296 22225 70909

Net loss income 85771 1880 2151 462 15597 97799

Segment loss profit percentage 104% 2% 3% 1% N/A 100%

Assets $3022654 $823993 $11489 $201449 $1000239 $5059824

Years ended December 31 2007

Net interest income 116311 59381 439 3612 19159 160584
Non-interest income 7857 34378 21362 4284 3116 70997

Total revenue 124168 93759 21801 7896 16043 231581
Provision for loan losses 24817 4262 29087

Depreciation and amortization 1146 3558 69 350 2982 8105

Other non-interest expense 58848 55932 17332 5030 20092 157234

Income loss before income taxes 39357 30007 4400 2508 39117 37155
Income tax benefit expense 15349 11703 1850 978 20966 8914

Net income loss 24008 18304 2550 1530 18151 28241

Segment profit percentage 52% 39% 6% 3% N/A 100%

Assets $3139733 $691580 $12824 $264079 $1084562 $5192778

Years ended December 31 2006

Net interest income 108222 54181 436 4074 1955 164958

Non-interest income 8224 28176 19859 3581 15749 75589

Total revenue 116446 82357 20295 7655 13794 240547

Provision for loan losses 4184 6111 175 10120

Depreciation and amortization 943 2866 86 322 3.154 7371
Other non-interest expense 54489 54595 17639 8252 23019 157994

Income loss from continuing operations

before income taxes 56830 18785 2570 744 12379 65062
Income taxes benefit 22164 7326 1160 290 12325 18035

Income loss from continuing

operations 34666 11459 1410 454 54 47027

Discontinued operations

Loss from discontinued operations 131 131
Income tax benefit 379 379

Income from discontinued operations .. 248 248

Net income loss 34666 11459 1658 454 54 47275

Segment profit percentage continuing

operations 74% 24% 3% -1% N/A 100%

Assets $3147018 $664870 $14007 $305839 $1160649 $5292383
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NOTE 17- RESTRICTIONS ON SUBSIDIARY DIVIDENDS LOANS OR ADVANCES

Federal banking regulations place certain restrictions on dividends paid and loans or advances made by the Bank

to AMCORE Financial Inc and its affiliates The total amount of dividends which may be paid at any date is

generally limited to the retained earnings of the Bank Loans or advances to the Company and for each affiliate

must be secured and are limited to 10 percent of the Banks capital stock and surplus but no more than 20

percent in aggregate
Loans and advances must be made on secured basis

For 2009 the Bank is not expected to pay dividends Dividends paid by the Bank to the Company would be

prohibited if the effect thereof would cause the Banks capital to be reduced below applicable minimum capital

requirements See also Note 18

The amount available for loans or advances by the Bank to the Company and its affiliates amounted to $33

million however the Company does not have sufficient collateral to secure an advance

NOTE 18- CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS

The Company and the Bank Regulated Companies are subject to various regulatory capital requirements

administered by the federal banking agencies Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain

mandatory and possibly additional discretionary actions by regulators that if undertaken could have direct

material effect on the Companys Consolidated Financial Statements Under capital adequacy guidelines and the

regulatory framework for prompt corrective action the Regulated Companies must meet specific capital

guidelines that involve quantitative measures of their assets liabilities and certain off-balance-sheet items as

calculated under regulatory accounting practices Their capital amounts and classification are also subject to

qualitative judgments by the regulators about components risk weightings and other factors

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Regulated Companies to

maintain minimum amounts and ratios set forth in the table below of total and Tier capital to risk-weighted

assets and of Tier Capital to average assets Tier Capital includes common stockholders equity qualifying

preferred stock and Trust Preferred securities less goodwill and certain other deductions including the

unrealized net gains and losses after applicable taxes on available-for-sale securities carried at fair value Total

Capital includes Tier Capital plus preferred stock not qualifying as Tier Capital mandatory convertible debt

subordinated debt certain unsecured senior debt issued by the Company the allowance for loan and lease losses

and net unrealized gains on marketable equity securities subject to limitations by the guidelines

As the following table indicates AMCOREs total risk-based capital Tier capital and leverage ratio all

exceeded the regulatory minimums of capital adequacy as of December 31 2008 There are five levels of capital

defined by the regulations well-capitalized adequately capitalized undercapitalized significantly

undercapitalized and critically undercapitalized As of December 31 2008 the Bank is considered well

capitalized under this regulatory framework the highest designation AMCORE has historically maintained

capital at or above the well-capitalized minimum Also AMCORE has experienced steady declines in its capital

levels as credit losses have risen The Company expects the credit crisis that is affecting the economy in general

to persist into 2009 and will bring with it additional credit losses If these expectations are realized AMCORE

may temporarily or otherwise fall below the well-capitalized level during the first quarter 2009 Falling below

well-capitalized may potentially affect among other things the Companys borrowings costs and terms from

regulatory authorities and other third parties the Banks FDIC deposit insurance premiums and AMCOREs

ability to access the brokered CD markets Even so the Company expects to have sufficient liquidity to operate

with these limitations The Company is discussing with its regulators the regulatory standards notwithstanding
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what an appropriate level of capital should be given the current credit environment and the Banks level of

non-performing loans Such level may need to be higher than otherwise required by the regulations

For Capital Adequacy Purposes

Actual Minimum Well-Capitalized

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

dollars in thousands

As of December 31 2008

Total Capital to Risk Weighted Assets

Consolidated $408205 10.04% $325333 8.00% n/a n/a

AMCORE Bank N.A 411220 10.14% 324554 8.00% $405692 10.00%

Tier Capital to Risk Weighted Assets

Consolidated $306245 7.53% $162666 4.00% n/a n/a

AMCORE Bank N.A 309379 7.63% 162277 4.00% $243415 6.00%

Tier Capital to Average Assets

Consolidated $306245 6.06% $202006 4.00% n/a n/a

AMCORE Bank N.A 309379 6.14% 201549 4.00% $251937 5.00%

As of December 31 2007

Total Capital to Risk Weighted Assets

Consolidated $519487 11.68% $355697 00% n/a n/a

AMCORE Bank N.A 481669 10.91% 353046 8.00% $441308 10.00%

Tier Capital to Risk Weighted Assets

Consolidated $415371 9.34% $177849 4M0% n/a n/a

AMCORE Bank N.A 377553 8.56% 176523 4.00% $264785 6.00%

Tier Capital to Average Assets

Consolidated $415371 8.00% $207725 4.00% n/a n/a

AMCORE Bank N.A 377553 7.33% 206130 4.00% $257662 5.00%
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NOTE 19- CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF PARENT COMPANY

CONDENSED PARENT COMPANY BALANCE SHEETS

December 31

2008 2007

in thousands

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
1193 2479

Short-term investments 4063 12061

Investment in subsidiaries 312560 390793

Other assets 22455 36312

Total Assets 340271 441645

LIABILITIES

Short-term borrowings
20000 2150

Long-term borrowings
51547 61547

Other liabilities
6726 9381

Total Liabilities 78273 73078

STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
Preferred stock

Common stock 6684 6666

Additional paid-in capital
69838 77433

Retained earnings
365684 475728

Treasury stock 172293 187944

Accumulated other comprehensive loss 7915 3316

Total Stockholders Equity
261998 368567

Total Liabilities and Stockholders Equity 340271 441645

CONDENSED PARENT COMPANY STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

in thousands

INCOME
Dividends from subsidiaries 60000 $55000

Interest income 224 465 424

Non-interest income 314 3148 4876

Total Income 538 63613 $60300

EXPENSES

Interest expense
3979 3771 3882

Compensation expense and employee benefits 5119 4019 5169

Other 3213 4356 2625

Total Expenses
$12311 $12146 $11676

Loss Income before income tax benefits and equity in undistributed net income of

subsidiaries $l 1773 51467 $48624

Income tax benefits 4446 3514 3019

Loss Income before equity in undistributed net losses of subsidiaries 7327 54981 $51643

Equity in undistributed net losses of subsidiaries 90571 26845 4484

Net Loss Income before unconsolidated subsidiary $97898 28136 $47159

Income from unconsolidated subsidiary
99 105 116

Net Loss Income $97799 28241 $47275
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CONDENSED PARENT COMPANY STA TEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

in thousands

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net Loss Income $97799 28241 47275
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating

activities

Depreciation and amortization 11 21 19

Deferred compensation amortization 294

Equity in undistributed net losses of subsidiaries 90571 26845 4484
Stock-based compensation expense 1315 856 915

Tax benefit on exercise of stock options 764 845

Excess tax benefit from stock based compensation 733 792
Decrease in due from subsidiaries 24

Increase decrease in other assets 2327 3454 2252
Decrease increase in other liabilities 2655 208 602

Other net 105 210 923
Net cash used in provided by operating activities 510779 59450 50491

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Net decrease increase in short term investments 7998 12.061 2000
Transfer of premises and equipment to affiliates 15
Other net

_______
721

Net cash provided by used in investing activities 7989 $l2.076 2721

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Net decrease increase in short-term borrowings 2150 2.150 2000
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 10000 61547

Payment of long-term borrowings 41238
Dividends paid 6292 16829 18072
Issuance of common shares for employee stock plan 434 665 836

Excess tax benefit from stock based compensation 733 792

Cancellation reissuance of treasury shares for incentive plans 140 5706 5287
Purchase of shares for treasury 348 59609 40244

Net cash provided by used in financing activities 1504 $46875 $53401

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 1286 499 189
Cash and cash equivalents

Beginning of year 2479 1.980 2169

End of
year 1193 2479 1980
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CONDENSED QUARTERLY EARNINGS STOCK PRICE SUMMARY unaudited

2008 2007

First Second Third Fourth First Second Third Fourth

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

in thousands except per share data

Interest income 75801 69088 66452 61415 $85742 $86817 $87592 $83865

Interest expense 39135 33079 34190 34467 45346 46099 47221 44766

Net interest income 36666 36009 32262 26948 $40396 $40718 $40371 $39099

Provision for loan losses 57229 40000 48000 57487 3179 4227 15281 6400

Non-interest income 17899 19533 20245 16925 19380 19448 14025 18144

Operating expenses
44881 48300 38364 40934 44982 40548 39060 40749

Loss Income before income

taxes $47545 $32758 $33857 $54548 $1 1615 $15391 55 $10094

Income tax benefit expense 20086 12524 15870 22429 3396 4788 1834 2564

Net Loss Income $27459 20234 $17987 $32119 8219 $10603 1889 7530

Basic loss earnings per

share 1.21 0.89 0.79 1.42 0.34 0.45 0.08 0.33

Diluted loss earnings per

share 1.21 0.89 0.79 1.42 0.34 0.45 0.08 0.33

Dividends per common share 0.180 0.049 0.049 0.180 0.180 0.180 0.180

Stockpricerangeshigh 23.00 21.25 14.50 9.37 34.58 32.42 29.26 27.14

low 17.25 5.53 3.09 2.51 31.01 28.50 22.48 21.16

close 20.35 5.66 9.37 3.62 31.75 28.99 24.92 22.70

The financial information contains all normal and recurring reclassifications for fair and consistent

presentation Share data for all periods presented have been restated to reflect $0 135 per share stock dividends

paid in both June and September 2008

Quotes have been obtained from NASDAQ.com These quotes
do not reflect retail mark-ups mark-downs or

commissions nor are they necessarily representative of actual transactions
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of AMCORE Financial Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of AMCORE Financial Inc the Company as

of December 31 2008 and 2007 and the related consolidated statements of operations stockholders equity and

cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31 2008 We also have audited the

Companys internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2008 based on criteria established in

Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission The Companys management is responsible for these financial statements for maintaining effective

internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over

financial reporting included in the accompanying Managements Report on Internal Control Over Financial

Reporting Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and an opinion on the

Companys internal control over financial reporting based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control over

financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our audits of the financial statements included

examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements assessing

the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management and evaluating the overall

financial statement presentation Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an

understanding of internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk that material weakness exists

testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk Our

audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances We
believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinions

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed by or under the supervision of the

companys principal executive and principal financial officers or persons performing similar functions and

effected by the companys board of directors management and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles companys internal control over financial reporting

includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail

accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company provide reasonable

assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance

with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made

only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company and provide reasonable

assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the

companys assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting including the possibility of collusion

or improper management override of controls material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or

detected on timely basis Also projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over

financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of

changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate
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In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the

financial position of AMCORE Financial Inc as of December 31 2008 and 2007 and the results of their

operations and their cash flows for each of the two years
in the period ended December 31 2008 in conformity

with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America Also in our opinion the

Company maintained in all material respects
effective internal control over financial reporting as of

December 31 2008 based on the criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the

Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission

14 LL

Milwaukee Wisconsin

March 16 2009
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Stockholders and Board of

Directors of AMCORE Financial Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of income stockholders equity and cash flows of

AMCORE Financial Inc and subsidiaries the Company for the year ended December 31 2006 These

consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Companys management Our responsibility is to

express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on test basis

evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes assessing the

accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall

financial statement presentation We believe that our audit provides reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the

results of the Companys operations and cash flows for the year ended December 31 2006 in conformity with

U.S generally accepted accounting principles

LCP

Chicago Illinois

March 15 2007

98



ITEM CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND

FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None

ITEM 9A CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Companys management with the participation of the Companys Chief Executive Officer and Chief

Financial Officer has evaluated the effectiveness of the Companys disclosure controls and procedures as such

term is defined in Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended the

Exchange Act as of the end of the period covered by this report Based on such evaluation the Companys

Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that as of the end of such period the

Companys disclosure controls and procedures are effective

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management of AMCORE Financial Inc and its subsidiaries AMCORE is responsible for establishing

and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting This internal control contains monitoring

mechanisms and actions are taken to correct deficiencies identified

Management assessed AMCOREs internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2008 This

assessment was based on criteria for effective internal control over financial reporting described in Internal

Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway

Commission COSO

Based on this assessment management believes that as of December 31 2008 AMCORE maintained

effective internal control over financial reporting including policies and procedures that pertain to the

maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and

dispositions of its assets provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit

preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States of America and that receipts and expenditures are being made only in

accordance with authorizations of management and directors and provide reasonable assurance regarding

prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of assets that could have

material effect on the Companys financial statements

The effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2008 has been audited by

Deloitte Touche LLP an independent registered public accounting firm as stated in their report dated

March 16 2009 which is included herein

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm See report of Deloitte Touche LLP included

in Item of this report on Form 10-K

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There have not been any changes in the Companys internal control over financial reporting as such term is

defined in Rules 13a-15f and 15d-15f under the Exchange Act during the last fiscal quarter ending as of this

report date to which this report relates that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect

the Companys internal control over financial reporting

ITEM 9B OTHER INFORMATION

None
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PART III

ITEM 10 DIRECTORS EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Proxy Statement and Notice of 2009 Annual Meeting dated March 19 2009 are incorporated herein by
reference

Executive Officers of the Registrant The information is presented in Item of this document

Code of Ethics The Company has adopted code of ethics applicable to all employees including the

principal executive principal financial and principal accounting officers of the Company The AMCORE
Financial Inc Code of Ethics is posted on the Companys website at www.AMCORE.comlgovernance See

Part Item of this report on Form 10-K for additional information

ITEM 11 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The Proxy Statement and Notice of 2009 Annual Meeting dated March 19 2009 are incorporated herein by
reference

ITEM 12 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The Proxy Statement and Notice of 2009 Annual Meeting dated March 19 2009 are incorporated herein by

reference

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table sets forth information as of the end of the Companys 2008 fiscal
year with respect to all

incentive/option plans under which equity securities are authorized for issuance

Number of securities

Number of securities Weighted average remaining available for future

to be issued upon exercise of exercise price of issuance under equity

outstanding options outstanding options compensation plans excluding
Plan Category warrants and rights warrants and rights securities reflected in column

Equity compensation plans approved

by security holders 23 2477831 $25.22 845527

Equity compensation plans not

approved by security holders N/A N/A N/A

Total 2477831 $25.22 845527

Includes options that have not vested and therefore are not currently exercisable See Note 11 of the Notes

to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information on vesting schedules For purposes of

determining diluted shares for earnings per share calculations only options which are in-the-money are

included in the calculation See Note 15 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional

information

Includes options granted pursuant to the AMCORE Financial Inc 2005 Stock Award and Incentive Plan

SAIP and previous stock incentive plans The SAIP provides for the grant of stock options stock

appreciation rights restricted stock awards deferred stock dividend equivalents stock bonus awards or

performance unit awards either singly or in combination to employees of the Company or its subsidiaries

The total shares reserved for issuance is 2.5% of the total shares of the Companys outstanding common
stock on the date of adoption and for each subsequent year the lesser of 425000 shares or 1.5% of the total

shares of the Companys outstanding common stock as of each January The number of shares of stock

available for issuance under the 2005 SAIP as of the beginning of
any calendar year plus the number of

shares of stock reserved for outstanding awards shall not exceed 12% of the outstanding shares at such time
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During the five-year term of the AlP total shares granted shall not exceed 2125000 shares with

maximum of 550000 shares granted in any one calendar year The Company will not reprice any options

under the SAIP unless such repricing is authorized by majority vote of the shareholders Any shares

subject to an award that for any reason expires is forfeited or is terminated unexercised shall again be

available under the SAIP

The Directors Restricted Stock Plan for Non-employee Directors provides for the issuance of restricted

shares The remaining shares available for grant total 195858

ITEM 13 CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR

INDEPENDENCE

The Proxy Statement and Notice of 2009 Annual Meeting dated March 19 2009 are incorporated herein by

reference See also Note of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

ITEM 14 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The Proxy Statement and Notice of 2009 Annual Meeting dated March 19 2009 are incorporated herein by

reference

PART IV

ITEM 15 EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SCHEDULES

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following Consolidated Financial Statements of AMCORE are filed as part of this document under Item

Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Consolidated Balance Sheets December 2008 and 2007

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders Equity for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firms
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SCHEDULES

All financial statements schedules have been included in the Consolidated Financial Statements or are either not

applicable or not significant

EXHIBITS

3.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of AMCORE Financial Inc dated April 1986

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit of AMCORE Quarterly Report on Form 0-Q for the quarter

ended March 31 1986 as amended May 1988 to Article Incorporated by reference to

AMCOREs definitive 1988 Proxy Statement dated March 18 1988 and as amended May 1990 to

Article Incorporated by reference to AMCORE definitive 1990 Proxy Statement dated March 21

1990

3.2 By-laws of AMCORE Financial Inc as amended February 11 2004 Incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 3.2 of AMCOREs Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2003

4.1 Indenture dated as of March 27 2007 between the Company and Wilmington Trust Company

Incorporated by reference to AMCORE exhibit 4.1 of AMCORE Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q

for the quarter ended March 31 2007

4.2 Form of New Guarantee between the Company and Wilmington Trust Company Incorporated by

reference to AMCORE exhibit 4.2 of AMCORE Quarterly Report on Form l0-Q for the quarter

ended March 31 2007

10.1 AMCORE Financial Inc 2000 Stock Incentive Plan Incorporated by referec.ce to AMCOREs Proxy

Statement Appendix filed as Exhibit 22 to AMCORE Annual Repon on Form 10-K for year

ended December 31 1999

10.2 AMCORE Financial Inc 2001 Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors Incorporated by

reference to AMCOREs Proxy Statement Appendix filed as Exhibit 22 to AMCOREs Annual

Report on Form 10-K for year ended December 31 2000

10.3 Amended and Restated AMCORE Stock Option Advantage Plan Incorporated by reference to

AMCOREs Proxy Statement Appendix filed as Exhibit 22 to AMCOREs Annual Report on

Form 10-K for year ended December 31 2003

10.4 Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan dated May 20 1998 Incorporated by reference to Exhibit

10.9 of AMCOREs Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 1999

10.5 AMCORE Financial Inc Amended and Restated Deferred Compensation Plan Incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.3 of AMCORE Quarterly Report on Form 0-Q for the quarter ended June

30 2002

10.6 AMCORE Financial Inc Performance Share Program Incorporated by reference to AMCOREs
Form 8-K as filed with the Commission on May 2005

10.7 AMCORE Financial Inc 2005 Stock Award and Incentive Plan Incorporated by reference to

AMCOREs Proxy Statement Appendix filed as Exhibit 22 to AMCOREs Annual Report on Form

10-K for year ended December 31 2004

10.8 Amended and Restated Transitional Compensation Agreement dated January 2008 between

AMCORE Financial Inc and the following individuals Lon Burke Russell Campbell Richard Stiles

Thomas Szmanda and Donald Wilson Incorporated by reference to AMCOREs Form 10-K as

filed with the Commission on March 17 2008

10.9 Separation Release and Consulting Agreement dated February 22 2008 between AMCORE
Financial Inc and Kenneth Edge Incorporated by reference to AMCOREs Form 8-K as filed with

the Commission on February 25 2008

10.10 AMCORE Financial Inc Annual Incentive Plan as revised February 22 2008 Incorporated by

reference to AMCOREs Form 10-K as filed with the Commission on March 17 2008
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10.11 Written Agreement between AMCORE Bank N.A and the Officer of the Comptroller of the Currency

dated May 15 2008 Incorporated by reference to AMCOREs Form 8-K as filed with the

Commission on May 16 2008

10.12 Transitional Compensation Agreement dated May 2008 between AMCORE Financial Inc and

Judith Sutfin Incorporated by reference to AMCORE exhibit 10.1 of AMCORE Quarterly

Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30 2008

10.13 Transitional Compensation Agreement dated August 25 2008 between AMCORE Financial Inc and

Guy Francesconi Incorporated by reference to AMCORE exhibit 10.1 of AMCORE Quarterly

Report on Form lO-Q for the quarter
ended September 30 2008

16 Letter of KPMG LLP Incorporated by reference to AMCOREs Form 8-K as filed with the

Commission on May 21 2007

21 Subsidiaries of the Registrant

23.1 Consent of Deloitte Touche LLP

23.2 Consent of KPMG LLP

24 Power of Attorney

31.1 Certification of CEO pursuant to Rule 13a-14 and Rule 15d-14 of the Exchange Act as adopted

pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Certification of CFO pursuant to Rule 13a-14 and Rule 15d-14 of the Exchange Act as adopted

pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1 Certification of CEO pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 Certification of CFO pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Act of 1934 the Registrant has duly caused

this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

AMCORE FJNANCIAL INC

5d-
Date March 16 2009 By

Judith CarrØSuttin

Executive Vice President and

Chief Financial Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1934 this report has been signed below on the 16th day of

March 2009 by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant in the capacities indicated

Name Tftle

________________________________________ Chief Executive Officer

William McManaman
principal executive officer

Lt Za
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

principal financial officer and principal

Judith CarrØSutfin
accounting officer

Directors Paula Bauer Paul Donovan John Gleeson John Halbrook Frederick Hay Teresa

Iglesias-Solomon William McManaman Steven Rogers and Jack Ward

William McManaman

ZauQ 5d
Judith CarrØ Sutfin

Attorney in Fact
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Dividend Information

In November 2008 the Board of Directors temporarily suspended the quarterly dividend The following dividends have

been paid over the past five years $0.28 per share in 2008 $0.72 per share in 2007 and 2006 and $0.66 per share in 2005

and 2004 AMCORE has Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan Participation is voluntary and allows for

automatic reinvestment of cash dividends For more information contact our transfer agent Wells Fargo Shareowner

Services at 1-800-468-9716

AMCORE is an equal opportunity employer and supports affirmative action

Contact information

Katherine Taylor Gerard Dolci

Vice President Officer

Corporate Communications Executive Compensation
and Investor Relations Manager and Equity Specialist

AMCORE Financial Inc AMCORE Financial Inc

501 Seventh St 501 Seventh St

Rockford IL 61104 Rockford IL 61104

Phone 815 961-7164 Phone 815 961-7146

The stock transfer agent for AMCORE Financial Inc is

Wells Fargo Shareowner Services

161 North Concord Exchange

South St Paul MN 55075

1-800-468-9716

Disclosure

This annual report contains periodic filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission and written or oral statements made by the

Companys officers and directors to the press potential investors securities analysts and others will contain forward-looking statements

within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21 of the Securities Act of 1934 and the Company intends

that such forward-looking statements be subject to the safe harbors created thereby with respect to among other things the financial

condition results of operations plans objectives future performance and business of AMCORE Statements that are not historical facts

including statements about beliefs and expectations are forward-looking statements These statements are based upon beliefs and

assumptions of AMCOREs management and on information currently available to such management The use of the words believe
expect anticipate plan estimate should may will or similar expressions identify forward-looking statements Forward-

looking statements speak only as of the date they are made and AMCORE undertakes no obligation to update publicly any

forward-looking statements in light of new information or future events

Contemplated projected forecasted or estimated results in such forward-looking statements involve certain inherent risks and
uncertainties number of factors many of which are beyond the ability of the Company to control or predict could cause actual results

to differ materially from those in its forward-looking statements These factors include among others the following possibilities

heightened competition including specifically the intensification of price competition the entry of new competitors and the formation of

new products by new or existing competitors II adverse state local and federal legislation and regulation or adverse findings or rulings

made by local state or federal regulators or agencies regarding AMCORE and its operations Ill failure to obtain new customers and
retain existing customers IV inability to carry out marketing and/or expansion plans ability to attract and retain key executives or

personnel VI changes in interest rates including the effect of prepayments VII general economic and business conditions which are less

favorable than expected VIII equity and fixed income market fluctuations IX unanticipated changes in industry trends unanticipated

changes in credit quality and risk factors Xl success in gaining regulatory approvals when required XII changes in Federal Reserve

Board monetary policies XIII unexpected outcomes on existing or new litigation in which AMCORE its subsidiaries officers directors or

employees are named defendants XIV technological changes XV changes in accounting principles generally accepted in the United

States of America XVI changes in assumptions or conditions affecting the application of critical accounting estimates XVII inability of

third-party vendors to perform critical services for the Company or its customers XVIII disruption of operations caused by the conversion

and installation of data processing systems XIX adverse economic or business conditions affecting specific loan portfolio types in which

the Company has concentration such as construction land development and other land loans XX zoning restrictions or other

limitations at the local level which could prevent limited branch offices from transitioning to full-service facilities XXI possible changes in

the creditworthiness of customers and value of collateral and the possible impairment of collectibility of loans XXII changes in lending
terms to the Company and its subsidiaries by the Federal Reserve Federal Home Loan Bank or any other regulatory agency or third party
and XXIII the recently enacted Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008 and the various programs the U.S Treasury and the

banking regulators are implementing to address capital and liquidity issues in the banking system all of which may have significant effects

on the Company and the financial services industry the exact nature and extent of which cannot be determined at this time
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